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Mr. Xu Jianfeng (Chairman)

(appointed with effect from 26 January 2022)
Mr. Ho Man
Mr. Wang Zhengjun

(appointed with effect from 26 January 2022)
Ms. Zeng Zhu

(appointed with effect from 13 April 2022)
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

(resigned with effect from 26 January 2022)
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet

Company Secretary

Ms. Au Man Wai
(appointed with effect from 22 June 2022)

Mr. Ng Kit Man
(appointed with effect from 10 May 2022)
(resigned with effect from 22 June 2022)

Mr. Ng Kwong Kui
(appointed with effect from 25 February 2022)
(resigned with effect from 10 May 2022)

Ms. Ng Yee Man Fiona
(resigned with effect from 25 February 2022)

Authorised Representatives

Ms. Au Man Wai
(appointed with effect from 22 June 2022)
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet
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Ms. Ng Yee Man Fiona
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Independent Auditor

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1

30 Canton Road

Tsimshatsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Legal Advisers

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
KCL & Partners

Registered Office

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Units D & E, 20 Floor
China Overseas Building
139 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Other Office in the People’s Republic of China

Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou Midas Printing
Limited

Xianan Administration District
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Registrars
Principal Share Registrar

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

(before 15 August 2022) or
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Stock Code
1172

Website

www.mcgrouphk.com
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Financial Highlights
MBS E

2022 2021
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAETT BEET
Revenue A 1,587 2,141
Gross profit EF 57 118
(Loss)/earnings before interest expense and HRETF B R IER]
tax (“LBIT")/("EBIT”) (B548) &# ("LBIT)) /(TEBITJ) (534) 13
(Loss)/earnings before interest expense, tax,  k&tFIEFE « 118 ~ ITEE LY
depreciation and amortization B (B548) /& ¥
(“LBITDA”)/(“EBITDA”) (TLBITDAI) / (TEBITDAI) (526) 23
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KABEE NEERES
owners of the Company (E548) @Al (270) 3
Total assets BEE 1,528 3,096
Quick assets' RENEBE 291 533
Net current assets REBEEEE 246 732
Net debt? (EFS HEE2 106 41
Shareholders’ funds® BREREERS 653 899
2022 2021
Shares in issue BETRM 5,779,196,660  5,779,196,660
shares shares
5,779,196,660 )% 5,779,196,660 f%
Net asset value® per share SREEZE? HK$0.11 HK$0.16
0.11#75T 0.16787T
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREAX (518) /&BF (4.67) HK cents 0.05 HK cent
(4.67) &AL 0.05 7l
Current ratio* TRENEE R 1.30 1.39
Quick ratio® RENELEES 0.35 0.29
Gearing ratio® BAREELEES 0.27 0.24
Net gearing ratio” FEARAMEIERT 0.16 0.05
Return on equity? e am 8 (41%) 0.3%

Quick assets represent current assets less inventories, properties under
development, completed properties for sale and restricted bank balances

Net debt represents bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents

Net asset value or shareholders’ funds represents the amount of equity attributable
to owners of the Company

Current ratio represents the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

Quick ratio represents the ratio of quick assets to current liabilities

Gearing ratio represents the ratio of bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds
Net gearing ratio represents the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ funds

Return on equity represents the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company as a percentage of shareholders’ funds

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B4 A S ER&H B R A 7
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Directors’ Statement

EFHS

Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the annual results of Magnus Concordia
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$1,587 million (2021: HK$2,141 million),
representing a decrease of 26% from that of the preceding year. Net
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$270 million (2021: net profit of approximately HK$3
million), and loss per share was 4.67 HK cents (2021: earnings per
share of 0.05 HK cent). Shareholders’ funds dropped by 27% to
approximately HK$653 million (2021: HK$899 million), representing net
asset value per share of HK$0.11 (2021: HK$0.16).

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company
has resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (2021: nil).

The turnaround of the Group’s results was mainly affected by the net
loss of the property development business, mainly resulting from the
provision for impairment of stock of properties made as at 31 March
2022 for the property development project in Zigong City, Sichuan
Province, the People’s Republic of China.
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Directors’ Statement

EFEHS

The post-pandemic global economic recovery continues, while the
supply chain disruption and inflation dynamics pose challenges to the
recovery momentum. Central banks worldwide are trying to alleviate
the threat to economic growth and labor market recovery brought by
rising interest rate and liquidity tightening. Consequently, investors are
becoming more cautious and conservative, with growing interest in
making quality impact investments and capturing alternative market
opportunities with strong fundamentals to achieve investment
diversification. The change in investment sentiments has also induced
the volatility in evaluating the real estate investing and fixed-income
investing returns.

The Group has succeeded in refining its development strategy to
expand the property development business and has brought
substantial business growth to the Group. The Group remains
optimistic about the economic benefits to be brought by the project’s
competitive edges through its expertise resources and privileged
natural environment.

A detailed review of the Group’s operations this year is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 14 to 24 of
this annual report.

The Group continues to carry out effective internal control measures,
comply with overall corporate governance practices and maintain
proper corporate communications with investors and other
stakeholders. Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices
and corporate social responsibilities are included in the “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”.
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Directors’ Statement

EFHS

Leveraging on the effective risk management and internal control
systems, we are staying particular alert to market value volatility of our
investment portfolios. Anchored by decades of remarkable operation of
the printing business, we are seeking further business development in
growth-enhancing investment opportunities of various industries.

On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to our shareholders, customers and partners for
their continuous support and confidence in the Group, as well as our
appreciation to our executives and staff for their dedication and
contribution during the past year.

Your faithfully,
On behalf of the Board of
Magnus Concordia Group Limited

Zeng Zhu
Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEwmE DR

Review of financial performance

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$1,587 million (2021: HK$2,141 million),
representing a decrease of 26% from the last year. The drop in revenue
was mainly resulted from the decrease in sales of residential units of a
property development project in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Consequently, the Group’s gross profit decreased by 51% from the
last corresponding year to approximately HK$57 million (2021: HK$118
million). The Group’s gross margin dropped to 4% (2021: 5%) of the
consolidated revenue, as a result of lower gross margin recorded from
the residential units sold in Zigong City. The printing business was able
to maintain similar gross margin of last financial year after spending
efforts to lower the production costs while sustaining market share
expansion.

During the year under review, a provision for impairment of stock of
properties of approximately HK$418 million (2021: nil) was charged to
the consolidated income statement for the property development
project in Zigong City. Liquidity issues of numerous property developers
emerged during the current financial year and the market-cooling
regulatory measures had scaled down the overall real estate market in
Mainland China by a significant year-on-year drop in contracted
residential property sales. Property developers of non-first-tier cities
react by triggering price discounting to spur home sales and recoup
cash. Moreover, the escalating construction costs inflation further
deteriorated the gross margin of property developers. Consequently,
the estimated gross margin of our high-end residential villas and car
parks in Zigong City was being particularly affected and an excess of
carrying values of the properties over their recoverable amounts was
resulted. Accordingly, a provision for impairment on the stock of
properties was made as at 31 March 2022 in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies of the Company.

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased to
approximately HK$58 million (2021: HK$43 million), which was
corresponded to the increase in marketing efforts to encounter the
contractionary pressure in residential properties market during the year.
The administrative and other operating expenses maintained at similar
level of approximately HK$53 million (2021: HK$53 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of financial performance (Continued)

The Group’s other income, expense and net losses and fair value
change of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
amounted to a net loss of approximately HK$22 million (2021: HK$5
million). The amount mainly included the fair value drop on mark-to-
market valuation of quoted bonds portfolio of approximately HK$12
million (2021: gain of HK$7 million), write-down of other non-current
assets of approximately HK$7 million (2021: HK$1 million) and
termination benefit costs of approximately HK$6 million (2021: nil).

The fair value loss from revaluation of investment properties as at 31
March 2022 amounted to approximately HK$41 million (2021: HK$3
million). The market values of certain investment properties as at 31
March 2022 were being affected by the weak market sentiment
resulting from the temporary quarantine measures for the novel
coronavirus, despite that stable rental income continues to be
generated from such properties.

The Group’s finance costs amounted to approximately HK$2 million
(2021: HK$3 million), which were mainly related to interest charged by
bank borrowings to finance the general working capital of the Group
during the year.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a loss before tax of
approximately HK$536 million (2021: profit before tax of approximately
HK$10 million), which was attributed to the following operating
segments and factors:

(i) Property development — loss of approximately HK$459 million
(2021: profit of approximately HK$33 million);

(i) Printing business — profit of approximately HK$4 million (2021:
loss of approximately HK$3 million);

(i) Property investment — loss of approximately HK$39 million (2021:
profit of approximately HK$5 million);

(iv)  Treasury — loss of approximately HK$11 million (2021: profit of
approximately HK$12 million);

(v)  Net corporate expenses and other businesses of approximately
HK$29 million (2021: HK$34 million); and

(vij  Finance costs of approximately HK$2 million (2021: HK$3
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of financial performance (Continued)

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$270 million (2021: profit of HK$3 million), and loss
per share was 4.67 HK cents (2021: earnings per share of 0.05 HK
cent). The turnaround of the Group’s results was mainly affected by the
net loss after tax of the property development business, mainly
resulting from the provision for impairment of stock of properties made
as at 31 March 2022 for the property development project in Zigong
City.

Review of financial position

Regarding the Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2022, total
assets decreased by 51% to approximately HK$1,528 million (2021:
HK$3,096 million), which was mainly due to the recognition of carrying
costs of stock of properties to costs of properties sold arising from the
scheduled bulk delivery of presold properties during the year. As at 31
March 2022, net current assets amounted to approximately HK$246
million (2021: HK$732 million), whereas current ratio deriving from the
ratio of current assets to current liabilities amounted to 1.30 times
(2021: 1.39 times). Such changes were affected by the provision for
impairment of stock of properties made as at 31 March 2022 for the
property development project in Zigong City.

The net cash outflow from operating activities was approximately
HK$16 million (2021: net cash inflow of approximately HK$30 million).
The net cash outflow from investing activities was approximately
HK$30 million (2021: net cash inflow of approximately HK$9 million).
Taking into account the net cash outflow from financing activities of
approximately HK$51 million (2021: HK$169 million), the Group
recorded a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$97 million (2021: HK$130 million). After accounting for the
exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$2
million during the year under review, the balance of cash and cash
equivalents (excluding restricted bank balance of approximately HK$15
million) amounted to approximately HK$54 million as at 31 March 2022
(2021: HK$149 million).

Shareholders’ funds attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by 27% to approximately HK$653 million (2021: HK$899 million),
representing HK$0.11 per share (2021: HK$0.16 per share) as at 31
March 2022. The change in equity was resulted from the net loss for
the year of approximately HK$270 million, and after net of the Renminbi
exchange gain arising from translation of foreign operations of
approximately HK$24 million during the year under review.
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Review of operations and business
development

Property development business

The property development business involves the development, sale
and trading of real estate properties principally in Mainland China. It
recorded an operating loss of approximately HK$459 million (2021:
operating profit of approximately HK$33 million) for the year. The
operating loss was mainly resulted from the provision for impairment of
stock of properties relating to the high-end residential villas and car
parks of approximately HK$418 million (2021: nil) for the property
development project in Zigong City, as being affected by the liquidity
crisis of property developers to recoup cash by lowering price and the
escalating inflationary construction costs. The project contributed
revenue of approximately HK$1,327 million (2021: HK$1,928 million) to
the Group, which was generated from the delivery of residential units
with gross floor area of approximately 186,000 square meters (“sgq m”)
(2021: 258,000 sq m) during the year.

On 1 August 2019, the Group acquired a residential property
development business containing three plots of land forming part of the
Zhonggang Shenhai Forest Project (FI7E %878 MIEH ), located in the
high-tech industrial development zone of the Yanluyu District of Wolong
Lake in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC (R I[ZBE&H S
METEXRZEESHMEABENENA R &) Despite the gross floor
area of approximately 190,000 sg m being sold and delivered before
the date of acquisition, the three plots of land have an aggregate
remaining gross floor area of approximately 500,000 sg m available for
sales recognition subsequent to 1 August 2019. As at 31 March 2022,
out of this gross floor area of approximately 500,000 sg m, completed
residential units with gross floor area of approximately 458,000 sg m
had been delivered to customers and residential units under
development with gross floor area of approximately 12,000 sq m had
been presold and not yet delivered. As at 31 March 2022, the total
carrying value of the completed properties for sale and properties
under development in Zigong City amounted to approximately HK$692
million (2021: HK$1,952 million).
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Review of operations and business
development (Continued)

Property development business (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group also held 18 units of residential villas
for sale at the estate Ju Hao Shan Zhuang (also known as Beverly Hills)
situated in Changsha City, Hunan Province, the PRC, with total gross
floor area of approximately 5,600 sg m and carrying value of
approximately HK$57 million (2021: HK$55 million). The management
has negotiated with potential customers for sales of the properties and
such negotiation is yet to conclude. With reference to the latest regional
urban planning and development of Changsha City, the management
is optimistic about the prospects of these higher-end residential
properties and expects to bring substantial yield to the Group.

Benefiting from the expertise of our residential development projects,
the Group is exploring business opportunities for the property
development business.

Printing business

The printing business includes the manufacture and sale of printed
products, including art books, packaging boxes and children’s books,
with the production facilities located in Huizhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC. It recorded an operating profit of approximately
HK$4 million (2021: operating loss of HK$3 million) for the year under
review.

After spending efforts to lower the production costs while sustaining
market share expansion, the revenue of the printing business recorded
an increase to approximately HK$248 million (2021: HK$195 million)
for the year under review. A profit margin similar to last financial year
was being maintained by adopting various cost control measures and
by enhancing its competitive edge in innovative design, quality
management and production resources. The management also reacts
promptly to reduce the market challenges to a minimum by devising
various modernized sourcing, manufacturing, distribution, logistics and
market segmentation solutions.

The management remains cautiously optimistic about the growth
momentum in the global book printing and paper packaging markets,
and appropriate risk management and prompt business deployment
have been carried out to channel threats into growth opportunities.
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Review of operations and business
development (Continued)

Property investment business

The property investment business involves the investment and leasing
of real estate properties, which recorded an operating loss of
approximately HK$39 million (2021: operating profit of approximately
HK$5 million) for the year under review. The loss was mainly attributed
to the unrealised revaluation loss of the investment properties located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China of approximately HK$41 million
(2021: HK$3 million), which their market values as at 31 March 2022
were adversely affected by the weak market sentiment resulting from
the temporary quarantine measures for the novel coronavirus.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held the following investment
properties carried at fair market value of approximately HK$407 million
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(2021: HK$442 million), which contributed rental income of B » RERNSEESW AL 008 ETT

approximately HK$9 million (2021: HK$11 million) during the year: (ZZE-—% 1 1,100887T) !

Location Gross Floor Area Usage

2 BEmEmE AR

Investment properties in Hong Kong

BRZEEME

Shop B, Ground Floor, Wuhu Residence, No. 111 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, Kowloon 1,014 square feet  Commercial

(“Sq ﬂ!!)

FURBALRNFOME 111 SRECH B T B & 1,014 FFR  mEE

Shop D, Ground Floor, Wuhu Residence, No. 111 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, Kowloon 1,293 sg ft  Commercial

JUBRATH Z I 111 SEECHM B T D P 1,293 FHR

Shops 3, 4, 5, Parkes Residence, No. 101 Parkes Street, Kowloon 2,090 sqft Commercial

FBER N 101 5538 - FF T 358 ~ 4585 5 5L & 2,000 AR  mEE

Investment properties in Mainland China

PEXEZREME

Level 6, Chengdu Digital Plaza, No. 1 Renmin South Road Fourth Portion, 4,255sgm  Commercial
Wuhou District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, the PRC

FREIPT) || pE T VR R A KRR IO ER 1 SR AR B 35 618 4255 5K %

Units 01, 02, 03, 06 and 07, 38th Floor, R&F Yingkai Square, No. 16 Huaxia Road, 895sgm Office
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC

FREEREEMND RN RESIK 16552 IATESH38B01E ~02F ~ 03F » 895K RFE

06EKO7TE
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Review of operations and business
development (Continued)

Property investment business (Continued)

The Group remains cautiously optimistic about the prospect of the
property investment business. The portfolio of investment properties
was acquired for long term investment purpose so as to provide a
stable income stream to the Group. The Group keeps on monitoring
the capital change and rental yields of the portfolio and considers to
rebalance the investment portfolio when ideal opportunities arise.

Treasury business

The treasury business involves the investment and trading of debts,
equity and other treasury instruments, as well as the licensed regulated
activities namely advising on securities (Type 4) and asset management
(Type 9) under the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Law of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong commenced during the year. An
operating loss of approximately HK$11 million (2021: operating profit of
approximately HK$12 million) was recorded for the year under review,
which was mainly affected by an unrealised fair value loss of mark-to-
market valuation of the corporate bonds portfolio as at 31 March 2022
of approximately HK$12 million (2021: gain of approximately HK$7
million). During the year, the portfolio of high-yield corporate bonds
generated interest income of approximately HK$2 million (2021: HK$5
million).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held high-yield listed corporate bonds
carried at mark-to-market valuation of approximately HK$2 million
(2021: HK$43 million), equivalent to approximately 0.1% (2021: 1%) of
the Group’s total assets. Considering the high volatility in returns of the
fixed-income market during the year, the Group had strategically
reduced the investment portfolio of corporate bonds. The corporate
bonds held by the Group as at 31 March 2022 represented bonds
issued by a Hong Kong listed property developer with maturity within
one year.

The Group remains cautious to monitor the investment portfolio’s
underlying price risk and credit risk by adopting an optimal risk-return
balance investment strategy. In order to capture opportunities in the
Hong Kong asset management market emerging from being a leading
global financial hub with wealth management connect in the Greater
Bay Area, the Group is exploring into the financial and asset
management services markets.
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Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately HK$1,528 million (2021: HK$3,096 million), which were
financed by shareholders’ funds and various credit facilities. Banking
facilities are maintained to finance the Group’s working capital and
committed capital expenditures, which bear interest at market rate with
contractual terms of repayment ranging from within one year to five
years. The Group adopts a treasury policy to maximize the return on
equity, which manages the funding requirements for new capital
projects by considering all available options including a hybrid of debt
and equity financing.

The Group mainly generated income and incurred costs in Hong Kong
dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. During the year, no financial
instruments had been used for hedging purpose, and no foreign
currency net investments had been hedged by currency borrowings or
other hedging instruments. The Group manages the exposures of
fluctuation on exchange rate and interest rate on individual transaction
basis.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$175 million (2021: HK$219 million) and were
repayable on demand or within one year. The bank borrowings bore
interest at floating rate, approximately HK$166 million (2021: HK$205
million) of which were denominated in Hong Kong dollar, approximately
HK$9 million (2021: HK$12 million) of which were denominated in
Renminbi and approximately HK$0.1 million (2021: HK$2 million) of
which were denominated in United States dollar. The Group’s gearing
ratio was 0.27 (2021: 0.24), which was calculated based on the ratio of
total bank borrowings of approximately HK$175 million (2021: HK$219
million) to the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$653 million
(2021: HK$899 million).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$69 million (2021: HK$178 million),
which included restricted bank balances of approximately HK$15
million (2021: HK$29 million). Approximately HK$25 million (2021:
HK$42 million) of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, approximately HK$9 million (2021:
HK$61 million) were denominated in United States dollar,
approximately HK$34 million (2021: HK$73 million) were denominated
in Renminbi and approximately HK$1 million (2021: HK$2 million) were
denominated in other currencies. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had
a net debt position (being bank borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) of approximately HK$106 million (2021: HK$41 million).
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Outlook

The post-pandemic global economic recovery continues, while the
supply chain disruption and inflation dynamics pose challenges to the
recovery momentum. Central banks worldwide are trying to alleviate
the threat to economic growth and labor market recovery brought by
rising interest rate and liquidity tightening. Consequently, investors are
becoming more cautious and conservative, with growing interest in
making quality impact investments and capturing alternative market
opportunities with strong fundamentals to achieve investment
diversification. The change in investment sentiments has also induced
the volatility in evaluating the real estate investing and fixed-income
investing returns.

The Group has succeeded in refining its development strategy to
expand the property development business and has brought
substantial business growth to the Group. The Group remains
optimistic about the economic benefits to be brought by the project’s
competitive edges through its expertise resources and privileged
natural environment. Leveraging on the effective risk management and
internal control systems, we are staying particular alert to market value
volatility of our investment portfolios. Anchored by decades of
remarkable operation of the printing business, we are seeking further
business development in growth-enhancing investment opportunities
of various industries.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2022, the Group provided financial guarantees in
respect of mortgage loans made by certain banks to certain purchasers
of the properties in the PRC, either directly provided to the banks or to
the housing provident fund management center who arranged the
bank mortgage, which amounted to approximately HK$1,369 million
(2021: HK$1,818 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2022, the Group pledged certain assets including right-
of-use assets and owned assets under property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and accounts receivable with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$289 million (2021: HK$320 million)
to secure bank facilities of the Group. The bank facilities of the Group
are also secured by charges over equity interests in certain subsidiaries
of the Group.
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Commitments

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements (2021: approximately HK$3 million in respect of acquisition
of an equity).

Environmental, Social and Compliance Matters

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of the business
operations and the key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have significant impact on the Group are
provided in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set
out on pages 73 to 151 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the Group had complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impacts on the
businesses and operations of the Group. As far as the Board and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that
has a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

As stated in the enterprise risk management framework of the
“Corporate Governance Report”, the Group has assessed and
identified key risks in terms of strategic, operational and financial
aspects facing the Group in accordance with the likelihood of their
occurrence and the significance of their impact on the business of the
Group. An effective risk management system is in place to manage the
key risks and response plans have been evaluated by the
management.

Certain financial risks and uncertainties about significant accounting
judgements and estimates are also set out in notes 38 and 3,
respectively to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Certain environmental and social related risks have been described in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on
pages 73 to 151 of this annual report.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal of MIE A B KBk EB AT 2 EARUTEE R
Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies HEEIE

The Group did not have any material acquisition and disposal of #AEBERHE_ZE - _—F#=-F=+—HILEEL
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31  E{EAIB AT ~ BiE AT REEDE B AW

March 2022. BREESEIF-
Event After the Reporting Period IREHAREIA

No significant event affecting the Group occurred after the reporting  RERESHEERBEEAFERAL > TEE S HAE
period and up to the date of this annual report. BEELEFECEARFEEF
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet (“Ms. Au”), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director on 26 January 2018. She is also a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. She has been the investment director and deputy general
manager of SFund International since June 2017 and March 2018,
respectively. Prior to joining SFund International, Ms. Au had work
experience in the financial services industry at The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. from July 2000 to October 2002 and Morgan Stanley Asia
Limited from August 2008 to April 2009 and from September 2009 to
April 2013. Ms. Au then worked as the deputy general manager at WH
Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange; stock code:
288) from May 2013 to October 2014 and the chief financial officer and
director of Eddingpharm International Holdings Limited from November
2014 to March 2016, and Ms. Au worked as a consultant at Baring
Private Equity Asia Limited from October 2016 to May 2017. Ms. Au is
also a director of Qingda (a direct controlling shareholder of the
Company), New Element (an indirect controlling shareholder of the
Company) and Kapok Wish (the general partner of Integrity Fund,
which is an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company).

Ms. Au obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University of
Rochester in May 2000. Ms. Au received a master of business
administration degree from the Columbia University in May 2008. Ms.
Au has over 15 years of experience in mergers & acquisitions and
corporate management.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Zeng Zhu

Ms. Zeng Zhu (“Ms. Zeng”), aged 31, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 August 2021 and was appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 13 April 2022. Ms. Zeng has about 10 years’ experience of
providing audit and advisory services to listed companies, multinational
companies and other entities. She has extensive experience in handling
various investment projects, fund raising projects and corporate
governance matters. Ms. Zeng obtained her bachelor degree in
accounting from the Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics (FARAAEAKZ) in June 2012.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Zeng worked in the audit department
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shenzhen Branch from September 2012 to October 2019, and her last
position was an audit manager.

Mr. Liang Fan

Mr. Liang Fan (“Mr. Liang”), aged 41, was appointed as an executive
Director on 13 April 2022. Mr. Liang has been working as the group
general manager of Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism Investment
Company Limited* (BEEHEXIERELREBFRAT) (“Zhongzhi”),
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since December
2021. Prior to joining Zhongzhi, he worked as the general manager of
Hainan Haili Private Equity Fund Management Co., Ltd.* GEFEFIFA
HEESEEAERAT) from June 2021 to November 2021, a fund
manager of Tibet Link Up Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (Faf#EE
SEEEEEAMRAT) from September 2019 to January 2021, and
had worked as the chief business manager and later a senior business
manager of the corporate finance department of Sichuan Branch of
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. from November 2006 to June 2019. Mr.
Liang obtained an electronic information engineering graduate
qualification from the University of Electronic Science and Technology
of China in 2006. Mr. Liang is experienced in corporate management,
fund investment and management, mergers and acquisitions and
corporate finance.

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Ho Man (“Mr. Ho”), aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 January 2018. He is also the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho has
over 20 years of working experience in private equity investment and
finance and is currently the managing director of an investment holding
company. Prior to that, Mr. Ho served as an executive partner
representative of a Chengdu-based private equity investment fund from
December 2011 to May 2014. Mr. Ho worked for a Hong Kong-based
private fund management company during January 2010 to December
2018 and was the managing director and head of China growth and
expansion capital of CLSA Capital Partners (HK) Limited from August
1997 to October 2009.

Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of Fu Shou
Yuan International Group Limited (stock code: 1448) since December
2013; an independent non-executive director of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 401) since February 2018; and an independent
non-executive director of Grand Ocean Advanced Resources Company
Limited (stock code: 65) since 22 January 2020, all being companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho was awarded an Executive Master of Business Administration

degree from Tsinghua University and a master’s degree in finance from
the London Business School. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Xu Jianfeng

Mr. Xu Jianfeng (“Mr. Xu”), aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
on 26 January 2022. Mr. Xu has been the senior partner of Sichuan
Yongdaohe Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd (“Sichuan
Yongdaohe CPA”) since 2005, and in charge of corporate auditing,
accounting consultation, corporate investment and mergers and
acquisitions. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 2003 and a bachelor’s degree in law
from Sichuan University in the PRC in 2007. Mr. Xu is also a certified
public accountant* (FEM&5tHEM) in the PRC, a certified internal
auditor* (BIPRsEMAEEERETE) | a certified public valuer* (FE & E&F
& 8M) in the PRC, a certified real estate appraiser* (3£ &= Hh E G 1E
BM) in the PRC and a certified human resources professional, Grade 1*
(EAR—HEANEREIEAN) , in the PRC.

Mr. Xu has extensive experience in corporate financial management,
corporate investment and financing and corporate governance. Before
joining Sichuan Yongdaohe CPA, he worked in Sichuan Tianyuan
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd from 2001 to 2005, and his last
position was the senior manager. From 1990 to 2001, Mr. Xu served
as the audit section officer of the Second Light Industry Bureau of
Rong County, Sichuan Province* (F0)I| & &8 8T #F) (currently
known as Economy, Commerce and Information Technology Bureau of
Rong County, Sichuan Province* (FU)I|& BT RHFEMESLER) ).
Mr. Xu is currently the executive chairman of the domestic advisory
committee of Chinese Relief & Development Foundation, Sichuan
Province* ()| ERHEHBEESZHNEHNEEE), the president of
Guoyang Charity Fund Working Committee, Sichuan Province* (P9 ]1]
BERABLAGESTELZES), and the deputy director of Civilian
Aging Working Committee of Chengdu City* (REESHEL TI1EE
B%), the chairman of Guoyang Health Industry Investment Co., Ltd.,
Sichuan Province* (FO)II RFRBEEXLERMDBERAF), the
chairman of Guoyang Investment Management Co., Ltd., Sichuan
Province* (I RFREEE B R A 8 ), and the chairman of
Chengdu Guoyang Holiday Agriculture Co., Ltd.* (BY#BER ¥R H &2
BRRED .

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Wang Zhengjun

Mr. Wang Zhengjun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee on 26 January 2022. Mr. Wang serves as
the Dean of the Dongwei Research Institute of Beijing Dongwei Law
Firm from 2021 and is mainly responsible for negotiating commercial
litigation cases, commercial bankruptcy cases, corporate mergers and
acquisitions and reorganisation, advising legal opinions, research on
legal professional issues and conducting legal case studies.

Mr. Wang possess years of experience in enterprise operation and
management. Before joining Beijing Dongwei Law Firm, Mr. Wang
served in Law Press China from 2013 to 2020 and his last position was
the deputy general manager and the sales director. Mr. Wang worked
in China Legal Books Co., Ltd. from 2005 to 2012 and his last position
was the chairman of the board and the general manager.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from the School
of Economics, Renmin University of China in 1994. He received a
master’s degree from the Law School of Renmin University of China in
2000.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREEEEASZEEFRE

Senior Management

Mr. Leung Ho Man (“Mr. Leung”), joined the Group in February 2018
and is the Financial Controller of the Company. He is responsible for
the financial management and treasury functions of the Group, and
acts as the coordinator for the internal audit, internal control and risk
management functions of the Group in relation to corporate
governance compliance.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance and a Master of Science degree in Financial
Analysis. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in
financial management, accounting, auditing and corporate governance
in an international accounting firm and listed companies.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERELRBSE

Introduction

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance that properly protects and promotes the interests of its
shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the “Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 March
2022, the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the CG Code.

Linkage between corporate governance and
environment, social and governance

Corporate governance can be considered as the framework within
which the Board forms their decisions and develop their businesses.
The Board’s focus is on creating long-term sustainable growth for the
shareholders and delivering long-term values to the stakeholders.

An effective corporate governance structure allows the Group to have
a better understanding of, evaluate and manage risks, including
environment, social and governance (“ESG”) risks. The Board is
responsible for setting strategic objectives for risk management,
implementing risk management values, evaluating and approving risk
management policies, ensuring effective and adequacy of the risk
management system.

For the principal risks faced by the Group’s business, please refer to
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties” set out in section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

For the details of environmental, social and governance matters for the
year ended 31 March 2022, please refer to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” as set out on pages 73 to 151 of this annual
report.
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EERELRBSE

(A) The Board

34

The Board is responsible for overseeing the business and
strategies of the Group with the objective of enhancing value for
its shareholders. The Board determines business plans and
budgets, regularly reviews the Group’s financial performance and
monitors the Group’s management. To cultivate good
governance, the Board also reviews the Group’s operation and
policies from time to time.

(i) Board Composition

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The Board
has on a regular basis reviewed the composition of the
Board and the skills and experience required for both the
executive and non-executive Directors, in the context of the
business and strategies of the Group.

The composition of the Board as at 31 March 2022 and up
to the date of this annual report were as follows:

(A) EFT

EXE0aREBEAEEZEGRRE > 5
ERHERRIEE SEEBEXHTER
BE EHERAEEYBRELREER
EEEETF - ABUREESLR BFF
TRARR S A E BB EE R EUR °

() EFgREHES

ESgEBY > MEBREFIARE
HEAEEEHRAC SEMNHE - K5k
K/ REENH - EFRAEAER
ZEBRREEMBHEFEZNE
HENMBERTRIFRITESREK
Z I RERAEER o

N_E - _F=RB=1+—HKEEX
FREH > EFGUENESNT !

Names Positions

3 B 187

Ms. Zeng Zhu (appointed with effect from 26 August 2021) Executive Director
24t (ZEER_Z_—EN\BZ+/NBHREXR HITES

Mr. Liang Fan (appointed with effect from 13 April 2022) Executive Director
PEEL (FER-S - _FNA+=HEEN BITES

Mr. Li Qing (resigned with effect from 2 April 2022) Executive Director
ZERE (BER-_ZS - _EMA T BRREN HITES

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet Executive Director
EBHFIZ L HITES

Mr. Ho Man Independent Non-executive Director
I8 s B IFITES

Mr. Xu Jianfeng (appointed with effect from 26 January 2022)
HRESEE (HEER-_T - _E-HF - +HRERBEX

Mr. Wang Zhengjun (appointed with effect from 26 January 2022)
FHESRE (EER-BE-_F—A " +ABEEW

Biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report. None of the
existing members of the Board nor the senior management
of the Company is related to one another.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B4 A S ER&H B R A 7

Independent Non-executive Director
BIIFNTES
Independent Non-executive Director
BIIFNTES

BEFZEEFBHNAFEREF
kEBEEBABZEBEFIE —& -
ARBEFEREMERSEEEA



Corporate Governance Report
EERELRBSE

(A) The Board (Continued)

(i) Board Meetings

Arrangements were in place to ensure that sufficient notice
and adequate information were given to each Director prior
to the Board meetings. The Company’s company secretary
and senior management assist the Directors in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensure that all applicable rules
and regulations are complied with. The Directors are able
to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense in appropriate
circumstances or upon their request.

Minutes of Board and committees meetings were kept in
sufficient details to reflect the decisions made in the
relevant meetings and were available for inspection by the
Directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year.
Special meeting of the Board will be convened whenever
necessary. The Board has held four meetings during the
year under review. The table below sets out the number of
meetings of the Board and its committees, individual
attendance by the Board and committee members at these
meetings and the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
during the year under review.
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EEXERBRSE

(A) The Board (Continued)

36

(A) EET (48)

(i) Board Meetings (Continued) (i) E=FTEE @B
The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings BNESETFRNEF T EHHELR
held during the year is as follows: mr
Chairman and
Independent
Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit Non-executive
Committee Committee Committee Directors
Name of Directors Board Meetings Meeting Meetings Meetings AGM Meeting'
IER
4 REZE% e BHZEE kxEE BEHT
EE32 L ] EE EE EE X EE-E
Number of meeting(s) attended/held
L/ BTeER8
Executive Directors HnES
Ms. Au Hoi Les Janet BHALT 44 1 1 NATEE 1 1
Ms. Zeng Zhu (appointed with effect Myt (ZAR_5_-F 3 NATER NARER NARER NATER NATER
from 26 August 2021) NBZHRREER)
Mr. Liang Fan (appointed with effect 2T (BAACECE NAREA NARER NATEE NATBE NATBA NAREA
from 13 April 2022) @HJr BiEEw)
Mr. Li Qing (resigned with effect TEREREACECE 24 NARER NATEE NATREE 01 NARER
from 2 April 2022) @H_Et@ﬁz)
Independent Non-executive Directors BukgnEs
M. Ho Man aE 44 1 1! 2 1 1
Mr. Xu Jianfeng (appointed with effect BRE(EER-E-CE 1 NATER NATER NATER NATER NATER
from 26 January 2022) —BZ AR
Mr. Wang Zhengjun (appointed with effect INEZIR-5__F il NATER NATER NATER NATER NATER
from 26 January 2022) —BZ AR
Mr. Lam Chi Hung (resigned with effect WEELE (BAB-3F 33 NARER 1 2 1 1
from 26 January 2022) —BZ AR
Mr. Hung Kin Man (resigned with effect ERRAE (AR5 33 I NATEE 22 17 17
from 26 January 2022) —BZ AR
Note: B EE -
1. Code provision C.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the Board (the 1. TFRARNBC27THRAEESEER (£

“Chairman”) should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of other
directors. Since the roles of the Company’s Chairman and chief
executive officer have been performed by the executive Directors on
a collective basis, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet served as role of Chairman
to hold a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
during the year. The Board believes that the Company has complied

with the code provision C.2.7.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERELRBSE

(A) The Board (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

During the year, the roles of the Company’s Chairman and
chief executive officer have been performed by the
executive Directors on a collective basis.

The Board believes that the aforesaid arrangement
provided the Company with flexibility and allowed for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of
business decisions and strategies. The Board also
considers that the above-mentioned arrangement did not
impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company. The Board
will review the current practice from time to time and make
appropriate changes if necessary.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The procedures and process of the appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors are laid down in the
Company’s Articles of Association. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors,
including those appointed for a specific term, for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not exceeding, one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that all the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation no later than
the third annual general meeting of the Company after he/
she was last elected or re-elected. Besides, any new
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting after appointment and are eligible for re-election.
All retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the
shareholders at the respective general meetings.

(A) EFF (@)

(iii)

(iv)
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(iv) Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

v)

38

Directors (Continued)

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
an initial term of two years, subject to retirement by rotation
as aforesaid.

Nomination Committee

A nomination committee was established by the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) with clear terms of reference.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, a board diversity
policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and a
nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”)
on a regular basis, recommending any proposed changes
to the Board for approval, and assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive
Directors, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet, Ms. Zeng Zhu, and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wang Zhengjun,
Mr. Ho Man and Mr. Xu Jianfeng, with Mr. Wang Zhengjun
acting as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee is summarized as follows:

— reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board;

—  considered and recommended to the Board on the
re-election of the retiring Directors at the Company’s
2021 annual general meeting;
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EERELRBSE

(A) The Board (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

— assessed the independence of each independent
non-executive Director; and

—  reviewed the terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year. The Nomination Committee considered that an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
is maintained and will continue to achieve the measurable
objective to implement the Board Diversity Policy. The
attendance record of the members at the Nomination
Committee meeting is set out in the table under “The
Board” section.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy was adopted in January 2019. In
accordance with the Nomination Policy, the Nomination
Committee shall consider, among other things, the
following factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate: (a) reputation for integrity; (b) qualifications,
skills, experience and independence that the candidate can
bring to the Board in all its aspects; (c) commitment in
respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
Company’s business; and (d) the Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee has discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate. Proposed candidates
will be asked to submit the necessary personal information,
together with their written consent to be appointed as a
director and to the public disclosure of their personal data
on any documents or relevant websites in relation to their
nomination or otherwise pursuant to applicable legal and
regulatory requirements. The Nomination Committee may
request candidates to provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary. The Nomination
Policy is available on the website of the Company.

(A) EFF (@)

(v)

(vi)
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(vii) Board Diversity

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has
the appropriate balance of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of perspectives that are required to support
the execution of its business strategy for sustainable and
balanced development.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted in September
2013 and revised in January 2019. The Nomination
Committee is delegated the authority, amongst other
things, to review and assess the diversity of the Board and
recommend suitable candidate to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors. In designing
the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee shall
consider a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural, educational background, professional
experience and skills and shall also take into account
factors based on the Company’s own business model and
specific needs. The Nomination Committee shall review
and assess the structure, size, composition of the Board
from time to time and make recommendations to the Board
for implementing diversity with adequate consideration of
the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate.

The selection of candidates will be based on the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy. The
ultimate decision shall be based on a merit basis against
objective criteria and contribution that the candidate will
bring to the Board. The Company values gender diversity
and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity
at all levels of our Company, including but without limitation
at the Board and senior management levels, to enhance
the effectiveness of our corporate governance as a whole.
Taking into account of our existing business model and the
background and experience of our Directors, the
Nomination Committee considered that the composition of
the Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy. The Board
Diversity Paolicy is available on the website of the Company.

The Company’s measurable objective is to achieve not less
than one-fifth of the Board comprising of females and not
less than one-third of our workforce (including senior
management) comprising of females.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(vii) Board Diversity (Continued)

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board

as at 31 March 2022:

Number of Directors

ESAH
6 —

Over 50
5057 A £

Gender Age Group
£ 51 FHAER

Skills & Knowledge
FRRER AN
Real estate investment & fund management
BHERERESERR
Corporate management
hEER
Legal
TEE
Accountant
w5t

As at 31 March 2022, there is one-third of the Board
members comprising of females while there is three-fifths
of our workforce (including senior management) comprising
of females.

30-39
30-397%

(A) EFT (48)
(vi) EEEZiE (@)
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Independent
non-executive
Directors

BYFMITES |

Executive Directors
WITEF

Designation

11 1 B
preeee

17%
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(viii) Responsibilities of Directors

(ix)

Each Director is required to keep abreast of his/her
responsibilities as a Director and each Director is provided
in a timely manner with appropriate information of the
Group to enable him/her to make an informed decision and
to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities as a
Director. On appointment, new Director will be given a
comprehensive induction to the Group’s business.
Directors ensure that they give sufficient time and attention
to the Company’s affairs. Appropriate insurance coverage
in respect of legal action against the Directors is arranged
by the Company.

Directors’ and Relevant Employees’
Dealings in Securities

The Company has adopted the model code for securities
transactions by directors of listed issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities
of the Company by the Directors. In response to specific
enquiries by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines and
adopted the Model Code (collectively, the “Guidelines”) to
govern securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company and/or its
securities. No incident of non-compliance with the
Guidelines by relevant employees was noted by the
Company.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(x)

Independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors

In order to ensure that independent views and input of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are made available to
the Board, the Nomination Committee and the Board are
committed to assessing the Directors’ independence
annually with regards to all relevant factors related to the
Independent Non-executive Directors including the
following:

° required character, integrity, expertise, experience
and stability to fulfill their roles;

° time commitment and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

° firm commitment to their independent roles and to
the Board;

° declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as
Independent Non-executive Directors;

o cross directorships or significant links with other
Directors;

° no involvement in the daily management of the
Company nor in any relationship or circumstances
which would affect the exercise of their independent
judgement;

° further reappointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director (including the long-serving
Independent Non-executive Director) is subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders; and

° a designated director served as role of Chairman to
meet with the Independent Non-executive Directors
regularly.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Man, Mr. Xu
Jianfeng and Mr. Wang Zhengjun, an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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(x)

Independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors (Continued)

The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in light of the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee and the Board have also taken
into account the respective contributions to the Board of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and their firm
commitments to their independent roles.

Mr. Ho Man has over 20 years of working experience in
private equity investment and finance which enable him to
provide valuable insight and advice to the Board and
Company.

Mr. Xu Jianfeng’s strong finance, accounting and tax
expertise and his firm commitment to his independent role
enable him to provide key strategic guidance to the Board
and the Company in areas such as financial review, risk
management, compliance and internal control.

Mr. Wang Zhengjun has extensive knowledge in enterprise
operation and management, especially in areas such as
commercial litigation cases, corporate mergers and
acquisitions and reorganization and provides valuable
insight and advice to the Board and Company.

The wide breath of knowledge and diversity of their
experiences make each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors invaluable members of, and active contributors,
to the Board. Moreover, they do not hold any cross-
directorships or have any significant links with other
Directors through involvement in other companies or
bodies that could give rise to conflicts of interest in their
roles as Independent Non-executive Directors and they are
not involved in the daily management of the Company nor
in any relationships or circumstances which would affect
the exercise of their independent judgment. They continue
to demonstrate their ability to provide an independent,
balanced and objective view to the affairs of the Company.

The Nomination Committee was satisfied that each of the
Independent Non-executive Director has the required
character, integrity and experience to fulfill the role of an
independent non-executive Director.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B KB DB R A A

(A) EET (48)
(x) BILIEITEE 2B (EB)

BiE EHRAIFFE 2 \IE5] > AR
BIREFBEILIFRITESABILA
+o

REZEGNEFEUEE T HIUIF
HTESSEHEFTNERMNAEY
B ABBREKGE

WYEEALERERENMESE
BEHEB0FNTIFESR > SENAE
FENRBDRHEEENRENES -

BB EHEA BRI « G541
M5 H E R LU R A BRI ERE
Aok 0 EMENTEMHESD  ARE
B oRNRBEREFREAESS
MABRHEARERES -

ITHEREECEEENEE T EE
BEEENNHE - [ REBFHNE
s EEHBRESFELY > HESE
MABRM T EENRBMES

SEMAHENESENERESAIBIL
IFNTEFAAEFTETHEEMEM
RIBRERE o Ih5h > I R E(E
WEEFHS > NASEHMAT K
WREMEHMEFEEMEARME
BRSEEREERBIIFATESY
AEHRNEER > AN H
ARNEBERE > hRATAERE
HB I FEBIRR R IE N o thifIMiia
ERFPIH AR EHRMEEIL » ¥
MEBERREBIAES] ©

REZEEEMEBUIFNTESA
BEITELIFRTESABMEN®R
18~ BLIE R SR ©



Corporate Governance Report
EERELRBSE

(A) The Board (Continued)

(xi) Directors’ Training

According to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible
for arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
Directors.

During the year, the Company had arranged seminars and
provided reading materials to the Directors that are relevant
to their duties and responsibilities. A summary of the
training record of each Director received by the Company

is as follows:

(A) EF7F (18)
(xi) ESZZHEI

RIREEERTRIZTRIFRSCECA.4
R FIEEFRHASHEFEEES
J& o LABE R R B HLR A Re B BE » B
RERBESERERZER D KA
ZEHM  AREABEZHRENE
> THEEZ A0 BERBET
iBE 2 ER o

REE > ARBREBEFZHERH
HBARSZHMSERERREE
ke LT ATATRIARESUES
ZIEGIEEER IR

Attending Reading/
briefings/ studying
seminars/ training or
conferences/ other
forums materials
HEEGNE R 23
thetg/ 1K
Name of Directors BEEpE B3 wiE Hethit i
Executive Directors ITES
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet BHHZ T v 4
Ms. Zeng Zhu (appointed with effect BMZL (EEH-S &
from 26 August 2021) NBZ A HZER) v 4
Mr. Li Qing (resigned with effect FELE BIAS_&
from 2 April 2022) MME Z B4 v 4
Independent Non-executive Directors i JEHMITES
Mr. Ho Man (EECae 4 4
Mr. Xu Jianfeng (appointed with effect HEREE (REHE &
from 26 January 2022) —AZH+ HEEX) v/ 4
Mr. Wang Zhengjun (appointed with ITHELYE (RERE__F
effect from 26 January 2022) —BZt+/HEER) v 4
Mr. Lam Chi Hung (resigned with MEEEE BER-S 228
effect from 26 January 2022) —BZ+NHEER) v 4
Mr. Hung Kin Man (resigned with EREAERIHEIZZTF
effect from 26 January 2022) —BZ+NHEER) v 4
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(i)

(i)

Remuneration Policy of Directors and
Senior Management

The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to provide a fair
market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate
high quality staff. The Group will set levels of remuneration
to ensure comparability and competitiveness with
companies competing within a similar talent pool.

Such fees and the amounts of emolument of the other
Directors are determined by reference to their duties and
responsibilities within the Company, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee was established by the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) with clear terms
of reference and is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure of all Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration, on the Company’s
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy, on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management,
and on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee performs an advisory role to the
Board with the Board retaining the final authority to approve
the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model (c)(ii) as stipulated in code
provision E.1.2(c) of the CG Code is adopted).
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EEXERBRSE

(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior B) EEXRaEEIEAE Z i
Management (Continued) (48)
(i) Remuneration Committee (Continued) (i) FNZET (B
The Remuneration Committee comprises two executive FMEEEHEBIEMUIITERE
Directors, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet and Ms. Zeng Zhu, and @l%ﬁﬁi?ﬁ’zﬁﬁi&:ﬁﬁjﬂﬁﬂ
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Xu TEERERILE ~ AISTERTE
Jiangfeng, Mr. Ho Man and Mr. Wang Zhengjun, with Mr. E?ﬁi GREEEETTFINSED
Xu Jianfeng acting as the chairman of the Remuneration B
Committee.
During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration REE > #FHINSEFETZ TIERIH
Committee is summarized as follows: mr
— reviewed the remuneration package and the — WHEFEWNTERHITESEZH
supplemental service agreements of the executive RERFHELRESFIEHE
Directors and recommended to the Board for BEERLHHE ; &

approval; and

—  reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group and - RKEEFZAICLEREK
the management’s remuneration proposals with CERNAER ZHINBEER
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and BIRE 2 FbNiE o
objectives.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the FNEZESENRFERNRT—REE -

year. The attendance record of the members at the ¥hh Még%ﬁkgzﬁf}ﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬁ rsE

Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table Eo) —HETNREA -
under “The Board” section.
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(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

(C) Accountability and Audit

48

(i) Remuneration of Senior Management (iii)

(i)

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 March 2022 is
set out below:

B) EEKkEEEERAEZHM
(&)

=REEEASHM

RIREEE AT ZFRIECEHEAN S
B BE_E__F#=H=+—HIE
FESEBEEABZFEMSMHEREH
I -

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band (HK$) 485 GBIT) A&
Nil to 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000 1
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001 & 2,500,000 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial reporting (i)

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare the consolidated financial statements and to
present a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the performance, position and prospects of the Group in
the interim and annual reports of the Group.

The responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on
pages 170 to 177 of this annual report.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(ii)

Audit Committee

An audit committee was established by the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) with clear terms of reference. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the
financial information and reports of the Group and
considering any significant or unusual items raised by the
financial officers of the Group or independent auditor before
submission to the Board; reviewing and supervising the
Group’s financial reporting process and its financial control,
risk management and internal control systems, and
reviewing the relationship with and the terms of
appointment of the independent auditor and making
relevant recommendation to the Board.

The current members of the Audit Committee are three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Ho Man, Mr. Xu
Jianfeng and Mr. Wang Zhengjun, with Mr. Ho Man acting
as the chairman of Audit Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit
Committee is summarized as follows:

— reviewed with the Directors and the auditor the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;

—  reviewed the financial control, risk management and
internal control systems and financial reporting
process;

— reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, annual results announcement and annual
report;

— reviewed the Group’s interim financial statements,
interim results announcement and interim report; and

—  considered and recommended the re-appointment of
the independent auditor.

(C) MEKEZ ()

(i)

B%EEY

ERBEMIEZEZEE (BZEE
) REIEHRE B E - B
ZEENFERS HBERAERIR
BAENRBSIEZAERVHEE
B AR LR EREAN =
EHEERRETEFS ; BT AER
FEBYBREIEF REMBEE
R EE RN BEERR ; RiRsTH
CERVRER S GG YR ER S Gl g
R AEE S FLARRE o

REBRZEGNE R =IHILIFN
TEEMHRE  HRRBEERTIH
BRE MR ERTEREZEEE
o

RAEFE » BZEEGETZ TR
N

— HESERZUMBRAEERR
M2 BRI E st RAIRIES ;

- RBREYHEZE - BREE-RN
BEEIERM MM B IRE ML ;

- FBHRIEERSVBRE &
EES - UNIES

— FBRTEETHVBRE T
HIRBEAMRTIRERE &

- EEREZRENEREBEILH
B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - =& — — 4 4F 3R 49



Corporate Governance Report
EERELRBSE
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50

(i) Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year.
The attendance record of the members at the Audit
Committee meetings is set out in the table under “The
Board” section.

(iii)
(Y]

Risk Management and Internal Control

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks that the
Group is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives; ensuing that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems; and overseeing
management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of these systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and reviewing the systems’ effectiveness to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. These risk management and internal control
systems can provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss; and
they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business
objectives.

Management of the Group is responsible for
designing, implementing and monitoring the risk
management and internal control systems, and
confirming to the Audit Committee on the risk
management and internal control systems’
effectiveness.
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EXERRSS

(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MIERBZ (&)

(i) Risk Management and Internal Control (i) EREERAEPELE (B)
(Continued)
EERNEBEEELGIE

(b) Risk Management and Internal Control (b) Rz

Governance Framework Z8

Audit Committee Board of Directors
BEREEE sy

e Support the Board in e Review the effectiveness of the
monitoring the design and risk management and internal
operating effectiveness of control systems and have overall

e Oversee management in the design,
implementation, and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control

the risk management and responsibilities for these systems systems
EHRAREERAPEZERTNER EBREEAREERAEERERN

internal control systems

M EZERGAEE Rt BEHERER

THRHESSEERARER

RN EERFHRT R e Share experience and provide direction

BB on determining the key risks (at
corporate level) and their mitigation
measures
EAEEIE‘EHE“ (E’\’&ﬂﬁﬁ) )SZ,HIzi
RE R pE R - HE LR RIRMEES

Internal Audit
A BEZ

e Have an internal audit
function of the Group

Management
EEfE

BERBENAEZRE

= e Design, implement and monitor risk e Monitor risk management practices b
Perform reviews to evaluate §1ﬁ management and internal control and internal control activities mZ
the effectiveness of the risk iR systems ES R R\ bR S IR B 5] ] N BB S E B 73
management and internal 55 ?2% Bk EREREERAIE oo f o o 1 ’ o E*r_g
R A e Provide a confirmation to the Boa
control systems H S o . rovi rmat . s
HHAERREERA 54 ¢ Develop risk management policy and on the effectiveness of the risk gg
eI R A A B §'ml procedu/ze; B} management and internal control §_
Provide regular reports AT LR BIRBR R AR P . . systems
(including monthly progress * Provide gwdellges on Iperfgrmmg risk MEZZRER ﬁ%@&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%@%
Undate reports) to the Audit assessment anL control activities B AN E
naate fepors) REEGERITEREREDOES
THEHERES RS * Identify key risks, assess their
(BES BEE® 5§ respective impact and likelihood
) of occurrence, and determine
- corresponding mitigation actions
HRIEZRR FFERENBEELE
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

52

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(c)

Three Lines of Defence Model

The Board and management of the Group rely on the
adequate line functions, including monitoring and
assurance functions within the Group to ensure the
effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems. The Group adopts a ‘Three Lines of
Defence’ model to shield against risks that threaten
the achievement of the Group’s goals, and as a way
of explaining the relationship between these
functions, as illustrated below:

The first line of defence is provided by the
business units/teams who own and practise the
internal controls on a day-to-day basis;

The second line of defence is provided by the
risk management and other oversight functions
that assist the Group to monitor the first line of
defence; and

The third line of defence is provided by the
internal audit function (namely internal audit
department of the Group), which is responsible
for providing independent assurance to the
Group.
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TtEELIRSSE
(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MERE% ()
(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control (iii) APEEERAZPEEE (8)
(Continued)
(c) Three Lines of Defence Model (Continued) (c) =EHAREDR (&)

Board of Directors
A

Audit itt
“‘%g;’%";ee I

e

Senior Management
SREEAE

4IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

1st Line of Defence 2" Line of Defence 3 Line of Defence
H—ER EERR F=ERR

Self Assurance Risk Management External
BHZE ARER i
Auditor
SRR BLRT

Internal Audit
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Other Oversight

Function
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Internal Controls
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

54

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(d)

Risk Management

The Board has established an enterprise risk
management (“ERM”) framework with reference to
the key principles of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (“COSQ”) of the Treadway Commission
ERM framework, “Enterprise Risk Management —
Integrating with Strategy and Performance” published
in 2017. The Group’s ERM framework includes the
following key features:

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure
comprises day-to-day operational management
and control, risk and compliance oversight. The
Group has developed a risk management
policy, which outlines the principles and
procedures for the Group to manage its risks
and clearly defines roles and responsibilities of
each of the multiple layers of the structure,
including the Board, the Audit Committee,
department heads, employees at operational
levels and the internal audit department, in
order to achieve the Group’s strategic and
operational goals and objectives.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(d) Risk Management (Continued)
Risk Management Process
A robust risk management process is
developed to identify, evaluate and manage

significant risks, as shown in the diagram
below:

1

5

Monitor & Report
EERER

e Perform ongoing monitoring of
risks
HEITH BRI R

e Consolidate the results of the
risk assessment; and establish
a detailed action plan
RAERBREER  RBIATF
RITHEE

* Report to management & the
Audit Committee
MEBEREREESER

Process

4

Respond FE ¥
* Select an appropriate risk treatment for
identified key risks
BEE BEREEIE A AR E ERB
® Design, evaluate and implement controls
on the identified risks
HE BRI OB GIRT 2k REHEEE

Identify % 3

o |dentify the risks faced by the Group
R AN S [ T e ) [

Risk Management

R EERRE

(C) MEREBZ (48)
(iii) BEPREIR R AEPEIE (48)

(d) REEREEGE)

[R B B IR A

FEEDRUREOAR
B2 LR ~ FTE R
BEEXRRE > T ET
.

2

Assess Pl
e Analyse the identified risks based
on two dimensions: potential impact
and likelihood of occurrence
BEMEASESTE AN ER : &
MEBRBEEMAAE

W

3

Prioritise 8 X # 7
* Prioritise key risks and validate
top risks
X ERMGETEREE T R

REmRR

Risk Management Process
g BB R 2
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

56

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(d) Risk Management (Continued)

Risk Management Process (Continued)
Risk Management Process

During the year, the Group conducted risk
assessments at both corporate and business
process levels which include its principal
activities (property development, manufacturing
and trading of printed products, property
investment and treasury business). It also
maintains a risk register that contains
information of key risks, the potential
consequences, the likelihood of occurrence,
impact and overall risk rating. Risk owners will
execute risk mitigation actions and respond to
their assigned risks in the risk register based on
the Board'’s risk tolerance.

The Group has developed a process to identify
and report any new or emerging risks in the
monthly management reports. In addition, any
update on the risk management would be
reported and discussed in the Audit Committee
meetings, in order to effectively monitor and
keep track of the key risks identified at
corporate level.

On an annual basis, the risks in the risk register
are re-evaluated, with consideration of potential
new or emerging risks. Depending on the
changes in circumstances and the external
environment, the Group’s risk tolerance levels
and risk responses would be adjusted
accordingly.
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AN NAY e ¥ -
TEERREE
(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MEREZ (&)
(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control (iii) EEERERANIEEE (B)
(Continued)
(e) Internal Control (e) MEpEEIE
The Group has implemented an internal control KEETL2ECOSOEIMMN
system with reference to the key principles of the ERELIE — R ESEZRNETEEL
Internal Control — Integrated Framework established BITAHNEITRG - ZEER
by the COSO. The main features and components of EET RGP FE BT AA R
the Group’s internal control system are represented AN TERY! °

in the following diagram.

1

Control Environment

ERES

5 2

Objectives:

Monitoring Activities BE : Risk Assessment
EBEH e Operations [ B 5
=i
e Reporting
2%

e Compliance
AR

4

Information and o
c icati Control Activities
ommunication
ELEES

B RER

Internal Control Framework
A EBES IR AELE
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

58

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(e)

Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control Framework

For the residential property development business in
Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the People’s Republic
of China, the Group engaged an external advisory
service provider with specific in-depth industry
knowledge and experience to conduct internal control
reviews of the core business processes. The external
advisory service provider supported management to
conduct the control self-assessment on certain key
property business processes and to perform follow-
up reviews on internal controls so as to assess if the
identified issues have been rectified.

The Group has established group internal audit
department. The head of the internal audit
department of the Group leads the internal audit
function and performs independent reviews of key
business processes of the Group. The internal audit
plan of the Group adopts a risk-based approach,
which is approved by the Audit Committee annually
with an objective to assess the adequacy,
effectiveness, efficiency and reliability of internal
control procedures over financial, operational and
compliance activities of the Group. The internal audit
department of the Group reports the results of the
independent reviews together with the recommended
remedial actions, in the form of internal audit reports,
directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
Follow-up reviews are performed by the internal audit
department of the Group, in order to verify that the
identified issues have been remediated in a timely
manner.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control Framework (Continued)

During the year, the internal audit department of the
Group conducted reviews and reported the status of
implementation of remedial actions on control
deficiencies, e.g. through monthly progress update
reports provided to the Audit Committee. Relevant
recommendations reported by the internal audit
department of the Group will be implemented by
management to enhance the Group’s internal
controls, and to resolve material internal control
deficiencies in a timely manner.

Inside Information

In compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Main Board Listing Rules, the Group
has developed an inside information disclosure policy
and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure consistent and timely
disclosure, and fulfilment of the Group’s disclosure
obligations. The Group has also established and
implemented procedures to guide its employees on
how to report and handle inside information, and
strictly prohibit them from any unauthorized use of
inside information.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

60

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to the highest possible
standards of openness, probity and accountability.
Anti-bribery and anti-corruption standards are
important parts of the Group’s policies and operating
practices. In line with this commitment, the Group
has its whistleblowing policy which the employees
and other stakeholders of the Company can raise
concerns, in confidence or anonymously, about any
suspected misconduct or malpractice within the
Company. A designated email account and a
dedicated hotline have been set up for this purpose.

Review of Systems Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal
control systems by reviewing the work performed by
the internal audit department and the external
advisory service provider for the year ended 31
March 2022. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions. The scope
and quality of ongoing monitoring of risks and the
internal control system have been assessed. The
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks
faced by the Group and response plans have been
evaluated.

Management has conducted control self-assessment
on the core business processes annually and the
Board has received a confirmation from management
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and considered that the
risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

(h)

Review of Systems Effectiveness (Continued)

During the review, the Board also assessed and was
satisfied with the adequacy of the resources,
employee qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
financial reporting and internal audit function.
Qualified individuals of the Group maintain and
monitor these internal control procedures on an
ongoing basis.

The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the code provisions under principle D.2
of the CG Code regarding risk management and
internal control for the year ended 31 March 2022.

(iv) Independent Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the
independent auditor, Moore Stephens CPA Limited, is set
out as follows:
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HK$’000

Services rendered FRiR HARFS FExT

Audit and audit related services B R B2 R 1,550

Non-audit services JETIZARTE

Review of interim condensed ERTHE RS EIREER

consolidated financial statements 400

Others HAth 27

1,977

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - — & =~ — 43R

61



Corporate Governance Report

EEXERBRSE

(D) Delegation by the Board

62

(i)

(i)

Board Committee

The Company has established three committees, namely
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and
Remuneration Committee. These committees were formed
with specific clear written terms of reference which deal
clearly with the committees’ authorities and duties.

Management Function

The Board has determined which matters are to be
retained by the full Board sanction and which matters are
to be delegated to the executive management. The
executive management are delegated the authority and
responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group, while the Board
reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The
executive management has been given clear terms of
reference, in particular, circumstances where the executive
management should report to and obtain prior approval
from the Board. All delegations to the executive
management are reviewed periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate.
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(E)

(F)

(G)

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties which include reviewing and developing the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices;
reviewing and monitoring (a) the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
(b) the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and (c) the compliance with the
Model Code; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and performed the
abovementioned corporate governance duties.

Company Secretary

During the year, Ms. Ng Yee Man Fiona and Mr. Ng Kwong Kui
were employees of the Company and have taken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year under
review in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which
took effect from January 2019. In general, the Company intends
to provide shareholders with semi-annual or annual dividends,
and to declare special dividends from time to time. In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board will take into account the Company’s earnings
performance, financial position, investment requirements and
future prospects.
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(F)
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(G)

(H)

64

Dividend Policy (Continued)

The Board will also take into account the prevailing market
conditions and global economic situation. The dividend payout
ratio, would be calculated based on certain per cent of the net
profit recorded during the financial year, after retaining a sufficient
fund as capital for future investment opportunities, future use;
and all possible investment have been financed. The dividend
policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there
can be assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restriction under
the laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Company has established a shareholders communication
policy with the objectives of enabling its shareholders and
investors to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow the shareholders, investors and the investment communities
to engage actively with the Company. The Board has the
responsibility to review the policy annually to ensure its
effectiveness.

(i) General Meetings
The Board regards general meetings as the principal
opportunity to communicate with shareholders of the
Company. During the year, the Company has held an

annual general meeting.

The attendance records of each Director at the general
meeting is set out in the table under “The Board” section.
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(H) Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Significant Issues

The Company has ensured that any significant issues
would be dealt with at general meetings and be proposed
as a separate resolution.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, votes of
shareholders at all general meetings of the Company have
been taken by poll and results of the poll have been
announced in accordance with the procedures prescribed
under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Documents Available on the
Websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange

The Company has placed the announcements, circulars,
annual/interim reports, notices of general meetings and
other information of the Company as required by the Listing
Rules on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders’ Enquires

Shareholders of the Company may direct their questions
about their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and all other questions to the
Board. Details have been published on the website of the
Company.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
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() Shareholders’ Rights

66

(i)

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting may be
convened on the written requisition of any two or more
shareholders of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at Units D&E, 20
Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas
Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held
as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the
date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.
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() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders of the Company will have the opportunity to
pose questions to the Board at general meetings.
Shareholders of the Company may also make enquiries to
the Board in writing. Such enquiries shall be directed to

() BRER#EF (&)
(i) MEFEZEH

EYNSIl ESUSEEYE F)iN b E N )
EFEFHIRER - RITAIAESE
ELEmEH - BRAEHIRB T
Heh—EREEERE /MAEERD

“The Board of Directors, Magnus Concordia Group Limited” ERABIZEED .

by one of the following means:

e By mailto : Units D & E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
IHE BEEFHEFE139RAEBINRE201ED REE

e Byemailto : mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com
BHE

e Byfacsimileto : (852) 2160 3080
BEE

The Board will respond promptly to proper enquiries raised
by shareholders.

Putting forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

(@  Shareholders may put forward proposals relating to
the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows:

— Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, a shareholder or
shareholders (not being the person to be
proposed) who holds or collectively hold not
less than 5% in nominal value of the issued
shares of any class of the Company may
propose a person for election as a Director at
any general meeting of the Company by giving
a notice in writing to the secretary of the
Company:

° of his/her/their intention to propose such
person for election; and

° signed by the person to be proposed of
his/her willingness to be elected.

ESERAIFLERRZIEXNES

(iii) NIRRAKE LIREH:=E

(@ REFETIEFRRRAE
tREAREFEEZHE

-  REARSABEZMEAY
$B120fF > —RBRBZEHH
BRaHBEARTHEE
RO B% 2 E LR B
BTN 2 IRR (X IR
BEZAL) BBEE
ANEMEBHEHEEBENR
BEAALRAREERA
RERAEG LEEEE :

e KREAREBEMA
TEE; &

e KHEWEVBALE
2> RBPHEEE

B!

He

o
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() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

68

(iii) Putting forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings (Continued)

Shareholders may put forward proposals relating to
the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows: (Continued)

The period for lodgement of such a written
notice will commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting. If the
notice is received less than fifteen (15) business
days prior to that general meeting, the
Company will need to consider adjournment of
the general meeting in order to (i) assess the
suitability of the proposed candidate; and (i)
publish an announcement or circulate a
supplementary circular in relation to the
proposal to the shareholders at least fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10)
business days prior to the general meeting.

Any notice given for such proposal must include
such person’s information as may from time to
time be required to be disclosed under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules in the event that
such person is elected as a Director or any
other applicable laws, rules and regulations
which the Company may be subject to.
Currently, the following information are
required:

° Full name and age;

° Positions held with the Company and
other members of the Group (if any);

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B KB DB R A A
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EEXERBRSE

() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(iii) Putting forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings (Continued)

(@  Shareholders may put forward proposals relating to
the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows: (Continued)

Experience including (i) other directorships
held in the last three years in public
companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas, and (i) other major
appointments and professional
qualifications;

Length or proposed length of service with
the Company;

Relationships with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company;

His/her interests in shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO;

Amount of the Director’s emoluments and
the basis of determining the Director’s
emoluments and how much of these
emoluments are covered by a service
contract; and

() BeER#EH (&)

(iii) MIRRAXG LIRS

i (48)

(@ REFJETIEFIRKRRAG
ITREFMEFEE2FHE !

()

KE BIENAE
—FERRAT(H
BEESFBLEH
EAEHFmE LT
EEZHMESH
i RMEMEE
EREEER

WBAEABRZFH
SRR EH

HARBREMFE
= -PREEBEEAE
HEEHITERR
2R

HRARERMZ
B (EEREFK
HABIRBISEXVER) ;

ZNEFEZMEH
BREEERME
ZERERRBEN
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Z LB 5
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N AN &=
TEEIHRES
() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued) () BEERIEF (&)
(iii) Putting forward Proposals at (i) MIREAT LIZREEE (BB)
Shareholders’ Meetings (Continued)
(@)  Shareholders may put forward proposals relating to @ REIETIERREREARD
the election of Directors at general meetings as LIREEHAERERFE .
follows: (Continued) (4&)

. A declaration by the nominated person . WIEAALTELE 2
stating that he/she is not and has not BB RBBHEHHEA
been subject to any of the events RiBEHBER £
provided for under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (w) M#RA]5E13.51(2)(h)
of the Listing Rules, or if any one or more = (W) IEETBR Z AE A
of these provisions are applicable to him/ IBRFTIRRE > ;A
her, full details thereof. ER—IEHZ K —

BZEECERR
ZALA LT B
BREAZESREN
— Any notice given for this purpose shall be —  {EfEmiitEd 2B eTiE
directed to “The Company Secretary, Magnus BN ER—IERKEE

Concordia Group Limited” by one of the ZETRXEERRBBRA

following means: Bl ABIME]

e By mail to : Units D & E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
HEFE EARAEFEHEFE 139 FEIBIRE201ED REE
e Byemailto . mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com
EFE

e Byfacsimileto : (852) 2160 3080

BEZE
— Any such shareholder(s) shall be one(s) that is/ — I AZEREEEARR
are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting Y EEEEA AR 2K
for which such notice is given. GUNE EREZARE o
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() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued) () BRER#EF (48)

(iii) Putting forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings (Continued)

(b) To propose to put forward any other proposals at
shareholders’ meeting, and for questions relating to
putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings,
shareholders could direct all such enquiries/proposals
in writing to “The Board of Directors, Magnus
Concordia Group Limited” by one of the following
means:

e By mail to
Hong Kong
BE=E

e By email to

BHE

. mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com

e By facsimileto :
BEE

(852) 2160 3080

(J) Amendments to Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-
to-date version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association for further details of the
rights of shareholders.

On 29 June 2022, the Board announced to make certain
amendments to the third amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Such amendments
will be recommended to the shareholders of the Company at the
AGM for approval. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 29 June 2022 for details.

W)

i (48)

(iii) RERRAGLIEE

b) BMERREARGLREZEFEM
BRNEEINRRAE LES
R BEEMS > RRAIBES
T HEA-EREUEERF
BRERME/BHREEE TR
REBRNDBERRARDZES

o .
=l -

: Units D & E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,

BREBFHEFE 139X TEBINKE 208D REE

HHE BRI Z185]
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR 1B RERHS

About this report

Magnus Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group” or “we”) are pleased to present our
sixth Environmental, Social and Governance report (collectively known
as “ESG report” or “this report”). By reporting the policies, measures
and performances of the Group in ESG aspects, we ensure all
stakeholders can fully understand our commitments and progress
towards sustainable development.

Reporting boundary

This ESG report covers the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022
(the “Year”).

This ESG report includes general disclosures for both property
businesses, including property development business and property
investment business and printing business. The key performance
indicators (“KPIs”), unless otherwise specified, cover the Group’s
headquarters in Hong Kong and two key operating subsidiaries —
Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism Investment Co., Ltd and Guangdong
Boluo Yuanzhou Midas Printing Limited.

Reporting standard

The content of this ESG report is prepared in strict compliance with the
requirement under Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). For details of our corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report included
in this annual report.

B 23RS

MAEERNABRAR ((XAF) REWBA
B (8 TAEE ) 5 T3) MARERFINSE
NPIRIE ~ B RERRE (T [ESGHRE. 5
MR|E)) - BBERFEENIRIE - HERE
AR EREBER ~ iR ERE  UEFNERE T
AR RELERNAERERER

HEEE

TS - HEREAREREREA T - —F
MA—BE_E-__#=B=+—BU0x#&
) o

RIRE - HEREARSVEMEES (BEY
REREGERMEREET) RERIEBZ —K
WEE - SEAREMIERME » RABEREEBIN
MEAREBEMNEBREES > KR T E2EEN
BAT — BEREX(LKFRERRADRE
REBEGEMNGZNHZERAF o

SR

RIRE - HEREARSABBREETE RS
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About this report (Continued)

Reporting principles

We applied the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency in preparing this ESG report, as detailed in the table below.

Principles’

JRA"

PR AR S (1)

BE R R

RN ERA GRS R REBRS) B
B2 Bl FHR—BERA HE0TE
AT o

The Group’s response

SEEAEFE

Materiality

BEM

Quantitative

The threshold at which ESG issues determined by the
board are sufficiently important to investors and other
stakeholders that they should be reported.

EEZCETEHRE HEAEAZTERHKES
KREMFHEELTEFER » 1T ATUEIEHER o

KPIs in respect of historical data need to be
measurable. The issuer should set targets (which may
be actual numerical figures or directional, forward-
looking statements) to reduce a particular impact. In
this way the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management systems can be evaluated and validated.
Quantitative information should be accompanied by a
narrative, explaining its purpose, impacts, and giving
comparative data where appropriate.

BRAE LSRRI REMISIRAT T8 - FITAMRE
STNRMERIEENE R (AIURERHMFH A B -
AIEMMERR) - B RIE - HEREABERE
BRI O R T A B sE o BIEEREWAR
B MEENRFE  THEEENER MEMHEER
BUR o

! The definitions of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency are quoted from
Appendix 27 — ESG Guide of the Listing Rules.
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We determine material ESG issues by stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment.

HPBERNESEAREET T EREEEERN

BRIE - HERERZEE -

We state environmental KPIs and certain social
KPIs on a quantitative basis and provide
comparative data where appropriate.

R B IR S A R R R B T4t
T ENRRENGEIE » LEMEIER TRMEL
B o
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About this report (Continued)

Reporting

Principles’
[FAI"

principles (Continued)

R AR S (18)
EEERIRA (#8)

The Group’s response

SEEEFE

Balance

T

Consistency

— it

The ESG report should provide an unbiased picture of
the issue’s performance. The report should avoid
selections, omissions, or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or judgement
by the report reader.

RIE - HEREARSEETRAFEMZREBTAN
RIF > BRI MMEEMT BREEE RRIHER
ROERE « BRI EWET o

The issuer should use consistent methodologies to
allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over
time.

BITABER—RORER 5L QRE - HER
ERBEARAIIFAEERMLLE -

Opinion and feedback

We greatly value the suggestions from our stakeholders and encourage
readers to contact us through the following contact information. Your
suggestions will help us further improve our reporting and enhance the
overall sustainable performance of the Group.

Address:

Phone:
Fax:

Units D & E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building,
139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(852) 2160 3088

(852) 2160 3080

! The definitions of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency are quoted from
Appendix 27 — ESG Guide of the Listing Rules.

This ESG report provides an unbiased picture of
our environmental and social performance.

FIRE ~ HEREARS MR EMER 7 M
RIBRAEHEMNERE

The methodology for preparing the ESG report is
well defined. The scope of the ESG report is the
same as that of the prior year’s ESG report, to
allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data
over time.

FHIRE HEREABRENFEZELEERER
E o AIRIE S G RERRSHEN - —FRTF
—5 0 LUEHESGEERIEEREMLLE o

ERAKRE

HATDERFNENEZ > WEIEE BB
THEHES VAR FIME - BETHERER R
FiE—F B RFINREREA T EBEER
FEEERE -

Ak ERETEEFHE1393E
hEEINKE20EDREE

BEESERE - (852) 2160 3088

(ES=1 (852) 2160 3080

! B2 B T - —RERINERBE LHRAY
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ESG Governance

The Group has always attached great importance to ESG performance,
is committed to creating positive impacts to the environment and the
community during our business development, and is committed to
creating value for stakeholders. To effectively achieve sustainable
development, the board of directors (the “Board”) integrates ESG-
related elements into strategic planning and operational management
to achieve a sustainable business model.

A strong governance framework is crucial to achieving our sustainability
strategy. The Board is responsible for the establishing sustainability
strategies and management policies, and regularly reviewing and
evaluating the Group’s work progress in corporate responsibility,
sustainable development and climate change. The Board continuously
monitors and obtains work reports from the senior management of the
Group to ensure the effective operation of the ESG risk management
and internal control systems. The Board is responsible for the final
approval of this ESG report and to review the information disclosed
before publication to ensure the accuracy and timeliness of the content
of the report.

To address the public concern about the climate change and to fulffill
our corporate social responsibilities, the Group has incorporated
climate-related issues into our risk management system to enhance
our resilience and adaptability to potential climate change impacts. All
potential risks that may have impact on the Group’s business will be
covered and evaluated in the annual enterprise risk assessment.

The Board has an overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
ESG-related risks and opportunities, establishing and adopting the
ESG-related strategies and targets of the Group, reviewing the Group’s
performance annually against the targets, and revising the strategies as
appropriate if significant variance from the target is identified.
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ESG Governance (Continued)

The board is responsible to communicate with stakeholders to
understand their views on ESG issues and implement the ESG
strategy, for which materiality assessments on ESG issues are
conducted and the ESG issues are prioritized. Sustainability strategies
applies to all levels of the Group. The following sustainability strategies
are adopted:

° Environmental Friendliness
o Refined Product Quality

° Business Integrity

° Caring for Employees

o Social Contribution

The board will continuously monitor the implementation of ESG-related
measures by active communication with business departments, and
review the ESG management system on an annual basis in order to
create long-term value. At the operational level, the senior management
regularly assess the ESG-related risks, develop and execute ESG-
related management measures to respond to risks.

IRIE « 1 ERER (B)

ESTEEAFNEBRUBREERNIRIE g
RERZRENE L RBRE - ERERE
B% - WIRIE - HERERAREETERENMG
WHIRIE ~ (LB RERETRAHT - IR
ERRBEANAEENSERE - L FARES
FRARBEHRERA -

o ERERYF

s MRERR
o  HEuIE
c HEEE
e HEHER

EFSRBBEEFIPIREESR  FERER
1B HEREARBRBENRITER  TEEH
RIS -HEREAEERRETERUERIER
HEE TEEEE  sREEEEHNLEE
PP RBIIRIE ~ T ERERRR > HIEMRITIR
15~ HERERBRERE R UEE AR

ESG Concept IRIR « HHERERES

ESG Management Strategy
IRIR « HHEREQEIRHR
Environmental Friendliness £RERYF
Refined Product Quality ERER
Business Integrity B ¥:5{=
Caring for Employees FiIZ8T

Social Contribution {1 & &t

ESG Management Structure

IRIE - 1 EREQEE
Board of Directors EX &
D 4

Senior Management & Head of Business

Departments

RREEERSEBTMEEA

v
All Employees FiE&T

ESG Report IR1E + H EREQERS

Stakeholder Engagement $3{5& 2 (1
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FRESH

Stakeholder engagement

The Group attaches great importance to stakeholder engagement, ZAEBESRIFHENZE > B SEEEREE
establishes various communication channels to gather our IWEREFHEHRMANEEERETESEE
stakeholders’ opinions and suggestions related to our development REE R RS > WIS B RITDYIME o F9
strategy and social responsibility, and maintains a close contact with B LENEQETR - EE - HER BB
our stakeholders. Our core stakeholders include customers, # - j55 « EEEHMELTE

employees, suppliers, investors, shareholders, regulators and

communities.

Stakeholder Groups Key Concerns Communication Channels
FinERRE REER BEERE
Customers Customer information and privacy Business visits
£y =] protection B
ERERKELRE Regular meetings
Customer health and safety EREE
BREENZS E-mail and telephone
Product and service quality BFEHRES
EmbfkBEE
Customer rights protection
KPR EmIRE
Handling of customer complaints
BRE R
Employees Employee remuneration and benefits Employee activities
== (b g EEEH
Occupational health and safety Employee performance appraisals
BERRETS BEBENEZ
Protection of employees’ legitimate Employee training
rights and interests EEIEI|
REEE S EESR Internal meetings and notices
Training and career development A EERBS
B E Social media communication platform
Corporate culture HREEEETS
gl
Suppliers Supplier management and Business visits
{HrER requirements 5 iEsh
MRHEER B ERE R Liaison through email and telephone
State of operations IBIBETFE M BN
REAR Meetings
Sustainable supply chain management BiE
AIFHEMHIEREIR
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FRESH (8)

Stakeholder engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder Groups Key Concerns Communication Channels

R EREE R ER BERE

Investors and
Shareholders

Financial performance disclosure

MBRIINE

Information disclosed on the website
of the Company and the Stock

Corporate governance
TEER

BEERRE Corporate transparency Exchange
REVFERE RARB REBRXZELREZE
Protection of rights and interests B
1 75 {RPE General meetings and other
shareholders meetings
RERAG REMRRE S
Regulators Compliance with laws and regulations Periodic report
EEHE ARG TEHAERER

Compliance inspection

HiRBE

Communities

e

Social welfare engagement
SEUBAG
Support community development

SFEHeERE

Community activities
HEES
Company website

E/NSIFEN S
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Materiality assessment of ESG issues RIS - e RESEEEES MG

The Group is aware of the importance of the ESG issues to ZAEBENEBEFHEIEE HEREAEENEE
stakeholders. This Year, we conducted a survey on the materiality of 14 o KEE » HFIBBAREHIRE HERES
ESG issues through questionnaires to understand the importance of :ZBEEEMIEITHRED » UTHRIIFSHEEHESER
each stakeholder groups on ESG issues. The Group identified the key B8 « H & REAEENEHRIZE o REEHR
ESG issues need to be disclosed in order to effectively respond to the TERBEHNFTEIBIE -t EELAZE ) UEW
concermns and expectations of stakeholders. BlfEFHENR T EE o

The process for the materiality assessment of ESG issues this Year is AEEIRIE « @ LEAZEEEWETERIZ
as follows: mr:

Identifying issues % Al5% R

Based on this year’s business development of the Group in this Year, and with reference to national policies, industry
trends and the disclosure requirements in the ESG Reporting Guide, we identified ESG issues in four aspects, namely,
environment, employment and labour practices, operation management and community investment.
RIEAERARFEEBERIEN » 2FBEXKBER  TEIHER(ESGIREIES ) R EEK » HMHIIRIE ~ EEHES
IER EEEERMERENESENIRE - tERERZEE °

G-

Conducting surveys {732

We invited internal and external stakeholders to participate in a survey on the importance of ESG issues through
anonymous questionnaires, We collected opinions and ratings on the ESG issues from all stakeholders, as well as their
suggestions and expectations on the Group’s environmental and social policies, practices and performance, etc.
BMBARNERIMNIRNEBETGCERMSE » BHEESGERBREENRD - AMWESFHERIRE - B KERER
NE BRI » U AEEIRE R SERAVEREER - BERRANRRSFRMERRIAE o

G-

Determining materiality BEE 4

We divided stakeholders into internal and external stakeholders, and establish an ESG issue materiality assessment matrix
based on the average score of the issue, and rank each issue. Senior Management of the Group reviewed the materiality
analysis results and the opinions of various stakeholders to determine the key issues to be disclosed for this Year and use
them as the basis for setting the ESG management objectives for the next year.

BMREFHED AR RINIFNE > BIEZE I REREEZ TG ER » WHEZEHT - AEBSHRE
EBEEEREZUIMEREERMNERR  UREAFERBSR » UIFARTE F—FERE - 1§ REARBRMNK
o
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RIS HERELES

Materiality assessment of ESG issues IRIE - HE R EAER
(Continued) (48)
The results of materiality assessment in this Year are as follows: REESEM T EAERWOT -

Materiality to stakeholders
HNREEINEZ N

Highly important

SEEH
o %o (0507
0. 0® ©
e @% e
O o o
(16)
©

(22
® 9

Less important

REEMH
Middle Materiality to business development High >
it HEBBRMERE =
Environment Employment Operation Community
’ B ‘ =t . i ’ fE
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B HERERRE

Materiality assessment of ESG issues IRIE - EAREREEETEMN T
(Continued) (48)
01  Emission and waste management HER) K EE =) & 18

02 Efficiency on usage of water resources 7K & JR {55 A XY &

Environment

- 03  Energy consumption efficiency SEJ&R 1 AR %zt
Ri5

04  Green operation and environmental conservation ## 8 i EIRIE R E
05 Climate change and greenhouse gas emission R iE&4(5 658 = GBS BE
06 Employee management €S &8

07 Employee remuneration and benefits & S %Al 21571
Employment

pyle 08  Occupational health and safety I ¥ {#REEH%Z 2

09 Employee training and development & £ 123/l £33 =
10 Protection of employees’ rights and interests & S 1R [E
11 Use of environment-friendly products and services ¥&1R 2 & B2 Bk 75 155 A

12  Supply chain environmental and social risk management
HEENIRIEEM EREMERER
13  Construction and printing quality management B SR EEE
14  Customer health and safety &% E{#EH %2
Operation
E 15  Protection of intellectual property rights 4% Jz {5 B & 35 ZE 1
16  Marketing and promotion compliance & 8= 84 £ 518
17  Customer service and satisfaction & B IRFSm=E
18 Customer security and privacy protection & 5 {5 B KR EFA{RE
Y-

19  Anti-corruption management and training [ &35 & IR 123

20 Participation in community investment 281t @& E

Community

gt

21  Charity and Public warfare 22 K /Ax

22  Community concern and communication 11 (& B8+ & 7818

Note: The bold issues above are classified as “highly important” issues. . UEIEEEAR DA IEREE ) BRIMEE -
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IRIR 1B RERHS

Materiality assessment of ESG issues
(Continued)

As indicated by the results of the materiality assessment, the most
concerning issues for various stakeholder groups this Year are:
employee remuneration and benefits, occupational health and safety,
customer security and privacy protection, protection of intellectual
property rights, anti-corruption management and training, protection of
employee rights and interests, customer service and satisfaction,
customer health and safety, employee management, supply chain
environmental and social risk management, and construction and
printing quality management.

The Group is committed to placing quality and customer needs as
priority, and is committed to enhance product quality control,
strengthening service management capabilities, innovation capabilities,
and safeguarding the interests of stakeholders such as customers and
business partners. In addition, the Group pays great attention to
employee management. Being a responsible employer, we are
committed to providing employees with a healthy and safe working
environment and protecting the rights and interests of the employees.

Based on the materiality assessment results, the Group highlights the
disclosure of such ESG issues in the ESG report and enhance the ESG
work plan.

IRIE - G REAREEEMNFE
(&)
MEB IR > AL SIHHEEHS

REGRNZBCE | EEFMNEEHN - BERR
Hee  FRERKRMBEMRE - &R RENH
EE - REsEERE - EEEDRE - TR
RHEREE FRREEZE  EEEE  #E
EpRIRET ERREE  UKBRRENRIEE

BEFE -

FEBAGEUNEERZTRERABSL  RORAE
mEEEH  MABRBEEES ~ IRFABIFEE
N REETEREEZSIEBHESHNOENT
me IbSh AEEREMEIREEE - (FRER
T AR HEERHEBRAZZHTIF
BB RIEREED °

REESUNEER  +EBERE  HEKE
ABRENEEZFRIE HGREBZENRK
B WELRE e RERITIFtE -

— = —
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IRIR HHERERHBS

Environmental

The Group is committed to playing an active role in the sustainable
development of the environment, and adopting environmentally-friendly
practices in daily operations. The Group strictly abides by the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China ({1
#E N\ RHMBEIRIERE L)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({F1%E A 3t
M E K| 55 %54 %)), the Sold Waste Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#ZE A R A1[E & f2
[BF 22 ¥ 55 2L 38 15 BH 74 % ) and other local laws and regulations to
ensure the standardized treatment of sewage, exhaust gas, solid waste
and other environmental pollutants, as well as the efficient use of
energy and resources, and prevent adverse impacts on the natural
environment.

The Group’s target is to achieve carbon emission reduction, waste
(including hazardous and non-hazardous) minimization and responsible
use of energy, water, raw materials and other natural resources.
Through continuous internal discussions, our Group is in the progress
of setting energy saving targets and implementing emission, waste and
resources consumption reduction plans according to our business
developments, and will continuously review the progress of the plans
towards the target.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations regarding air and greenhouse gas emissions,
water and land discharges and hazardous and non-hazardous waste
generation that had a significant impact on the Group this Year.

Property business

The Group’s property business is divided into property development
and property investment businesses. The Group holds property
development projects in Mainland China and conducts environmental
management during the construction process. The property investment
business is mainly for the management of office premises and
commercial premises, with relatively limited impacts on the environment
and resource consumption. The property development business of the
Group strictly abides by the Regulations on the Environmental
Management of Construction Projects ({25218 BIRIZ(RE S IRIEH))
and other local laws and regulations and has implemented the
“Standard Safety Management Guidelines”, the “Guidelines for
comprehensive Inspection and Evaluation of Projects” and other
civilised construction policies.
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IRIR 1B RERHS

Environmental (Continued)
Property business (Continued)

A project engineering department is established in each construction
project, with the project engineering manager as the team leader and
the first responsible person for environmental management, the
“Agreement on Safe and Civilised Construction Management at
Construction Site” is signed with the construction contractors, urging
them to abide by the green construction standards and to protect the
ecosystem.

The Group’s property development business attaches great importance
to the management of green construction. The engineering department
emphasises the environmental protection requirements before all
construction teams enter the site, and regularly inspects the
construction site. According to the inspection results, the engineering
department will follow up the construction units and carry out relevant
civilised construction education to ensure that they meet the following
management objectives:

IRIG (1)
MEER (8)

ERmIIBERIIAE TI28F > AIEE T2EE
BEEARFRAREEES —SEA > WHEETE
U (e TIRGZEXEAR LEEBE) » Ble
T LA ETEEMEMR GBI TR > fREE

REIRIE

FEBYEEREBERROHINEE  T12
ETEFT A L RES R R A TIRRER - I
ERER TIRGIRIGETIRE - TREBRERSE
“u%ﬁﬁmlﬁﬁi_ﬁﬁﬁi_&%ﬁ%ﬁ%éﬁiﬁﬂﬁml?i
 EREMEUTEEER

Meeting civilised

Compliance of
sewage emission

SRR AR

Compliance of
construction noise

BRERBESH

Proper disposal of
solid waste

ZERIEEREY

construction
standards

FFEXBRTRE

The environment impacts of the Group’s property investment business
mainly comes from the energy and resources consumption by the
office, as well as the generated waste and emissions.

Carbon emission and energy management

Our property development business has implemented construction
equipment management policies, giving priority to the use of energy-
saving and efficient construction equipment recommend by the State
and the industry. We reasonably plan the work process and length of
the equipment with proper maintenance to improve the operation
efficiency of the equipment. To strictly control the electricity
consumption in construction, we carry out measurement and analysis
of electricity consumption in construction, and set up electricity saving
labels around the electricity facilities to save electricity.

FERYEREXGHRIBTTETZREMAPRN

FERANIEREER » UkFIELERBERY KRB
) o
BRHER AN SE TR B 12

BMNMEERERCESHE LRESESE
B R T B EISE S S AV T 5%
%o RSB ERENERIREAER » WiE
BETREBHERS  LURPRBEENE -5
BRI IAES » BMETHIASEED
o WEABREEERBNAAEIZH - LUE
KRB o
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IRIR HHERERHBS

Environmental (Continued)
Property business (Continued)
Carbon emission and energy management (Continued)

The energy consumption of the Group’s property investment business
mainly comes from the electricity consumption generated by the office.
We promote green office concepts and encourage employees to make
use of the Internet, such as replacing avoidable travel with video
conferencing, to reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions from travel. Registration for the use of official vehicles is
required to reduce unnecessary travel. In addition, we strictly manage
the use of resources in the office area and require employees to turn
off lights and power supplies during non-office hours to save energy.

Waste management

The property development business of the Group develops
corresponding construction waste treatment plans at the early stage of
construction project planning, specifying the amount of construction
waste generated, the method of disposal and the disposal schedules,
which is specified in the construction contract signed with the
construction unit.

Construction waste at the construction sites will be classified, and
waste such as steel bars and wooden boards will be centrally collected
and retained, and then handed over to a professional recycling
company for recycling. In addition, the earthwork and the construction
debris produced by the excavation project will be preferentially used as
backfill to reduce the waste spoil. Other construction wastes will be
stored in designated locations in strict accordance with laws and
regulations and disposed of in a timely manner. General domestic
waste is regularly transported to the government-designated sanitation
station for disposal in accordance with relevant regulations on garbage
storage and classification, random dumping is strictly prohibited.

The waste of the Group’s property investment business mainly consists
of domestic waste, a small amount of waste ink cartridges and toner
cartridges. Domestic waste is collected and processed by the cleaning
team, and hazardous waste such as waste ink cartridges and toner
cartridges are handed over to suppliers for properly recycling.

We actively promote waste recycling to reduce the impact on the
environment and protect the earth’s ecology. Recycling activities
include: waste coffee capsules are collected at the supplier’s
designated collection point and recycled into new products.
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IRIR 1B RERHS

Environmental (Continued) IRIE (48)
Property business (Continued) MEETS (18)
Use of water resources and treatment of sewage water KERFEA K SKEIE

The property development business of the Group advocates the ZAEBEYHEZRERFIZEMNAKES » EX(E
concept of water conservation, requires employees to conserve water B4 AK » FHIE /KB IRR E » WIKELL T8

and prevent water wastage, and takes the following measures: i

° Reasonable planning for temporary water use in construction e
site, living area and office areg;

° Collecting rain for road spraying on construction site; °

° Using commercial concrete and ready-mixed mortar to avoid e
excessive water usage on construction site;

° Reuse of sewage from car flushing and washing; °

° Requiring employees to turn off the taps after using water to raise o
awareness of water conservation.

BERIETIRG  EER RN &R
FKME ;

WeEERRK AT CIRIG VB REIERE ;

RAEMERTHEBEFEUE Bl
HBERX ;

EREAPERAEEEIEK ;

EXREERKENE LKEUIESEHNA
KBV R o

The sewage generated by the Group’s property investment business is ZAEEYEIGEX£EELNEKTIEAALES
mainly domestic sewage. Sewage is appropriately discharged to 7K o EE/KiE ZEMBEMET B /K EBETRIE o

municipal sewage pipeline for treatment.

The Group did not encounter any issue with sourcing water that is fit ZANEBEFEXREGERKERE BB BEFRIEE -

for purpose.
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IRIR HHERERHBS

Environmental (Continued)
Property business (Continued)
Environment and natural resources

The property development business of the Group pays attention to the
environmental protection management of construction, and strictly
controls the noise, light pollution, dust and other factors that may
adversely affect the surrounding environment on the construction site,
such as: low-noise time control on the construction site, on-site noise
decibel control, and cover bare soil, clean the tires of vehicles entering
and leaving, and turn on the spray nozzle according to the
requirements of the “emergency plan for heavy pollution weather”.

We implement strict on-site management for ready-to-use construction
materials such as concrete to reduce material waste caused by
improper construction. In addition, we actively adopt new materials,
new processes and new technologies to enhance construction energy
efficiency.

To reduce the impacts of construction projects on the environment, the
property development business of the Group conducts studies on the
microclimate, the water cycle, the ancient and famous trees in the
construction area and surrounding areas during the project planning
and construction stage, and develops reasonable natural ventilation,
water cycle and the ancient trees protection plan in advance. In
addition, we carry out construction with caution to protect natural
resources, and strive to achieve harmonious development between the
project and the surrounding community environment.
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IRIR 1B RERHS

Environmental (Continued)
Printing business

To enhance the standard of the environmental management, the Group
has established standardised environmental management measures
for the printing business, and developed the “Quality and Environmental
Management Manual”, the “BRC Management Manual”, the “FSC COC
Management Manual” and other policies in accordance with various
standards of environmental management systems. In addition, regular
certifications on 1ISO14001:2015 Environmental Management System
Standard and Quality Management System Standard are performed by
third-party certification authority to ensure the continuous effectiveness
of our environmental and quality management systems. In order to
continuously enhance our environmental performance, the Group
strives to drive a “planning — performance — inspection —
improvement” dynamic cycle of the environmental management
systems, through identifying and managing the material environmental
risks, establishing systematic environmental management process and
continuously inspecting and reviewing the management strategies.

Air emission management

Volatile organic compounds? (“VOCs”) are generated during the printing
and bronzing procedures during the production process of the printing
business. We strictly implement the Stage Il Level 2 limit requirements
of the Guangdong Province’s “Emission Standard of Volatile Organic
Compounds for Printing Industry” ({ENRITTZIE M B #ESYIHEK
1Z#E DB44/815-2010)) and have established a professional treatment
facility using biological purification technology for VOCs emission
according to the standard. VOCs are collected, treated and
discharged, and an adsorption device is set up to absorb the spilled
VOCs.

2 Volatile organic compounds (VOCs), according to the definition by the World Health
Organization (WHO), are various organic compounds with a boiling point of 50°C to
260°C at room temperature, VOCs contributes to the formation of ozone and
secondary aerosols in the atmospheric environment which has an impact on
regional atmospheric ozone pollution and PM2.5 pollution.

IRI5 (48)
ENRIZE%S
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IRIR HHERERHBS

Environmental (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Air emission management (Continued)

An external professional testing organization is entrusted to perform
regular VOCs emission testing to ensure the VOCs emission (such as
benzene and toluene, etc.) is within the VOCs emission limits. The
damaged part of the VOCs treatment facility has been repaired,
updated and evaluated in the Year, a special VOCs treatment facility
maintenance fund has been arranged, and an external authority has
been designated for providing facility maintenance and update
services.

Our printing business continuously enhances the production process
and improves the raw material selection. For example, considering the
petroleum ink is prone to evaporate and disperse, they are replaced by
the higher content of soy ink to reduce the VOCs emission.

An oily fume and exhaust gas filtration system is installed in the staff
canteen of our printing business to reduce the oil droplets in the
exhaust gas and air pollution. We also perform regular inspection and
maintenance for the fixed equipment and official vehicles to ensure
they function properly so as to reduce air pollutants such as sulphur
oxide, nitrogen oxide and particles.

Carbon emissions and energy management

In an active response to the state’s policy of restraining corporate
carbon emissions, we apply the concept of “energy saving and
consumption reduction” in practice to increase the energy efficiency
and to reduce the carbon emissions from daily operations.

To cope with the pandemic and for maintaining business sustainability,
strategic energy saving measures have been implemented in the Year,
such as: reducing the size of the production floor, deactivating 4
central ventilation system, eliminating certain old machinery and
equipment, installing the flow controller for water taps in the washroom
of the production floor, renovating 2 variable frequency air compressors,
etc..
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IRIR 1B RERHS

Environmental (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Carbon emissions and energy management (Continued)

We have taken the following measures to reduce energy consumption
and carbon emission:

° Prioritising the procurement of energy-saving lamps, facilities and
equipment;

° Performing regular maintenance of the facilities and equipment,
enhancing process flow, and arranging processes reasonably to
reduce energy wastage;

° Installing separate electricity meters in the production floor, office
and staff dormitory to monitor the electricity consumption and
solve unreasonable power consumption in a timely manner;

° Promoting the concept of green office, carrying out energy-
saving trainings for employees, and educating employees to
develop habits such as turning off unnecessary appliances and
maintaining reasonable air-conditioning temperatures in summer.

Waste management

In accordance with the relevant requirements of the “General Industrial
Solid Waste Storage and Landfill Pollution Control Standards” ({ — fi&
T % [E 58 B &= ¥ By 7= A1 1E 18 75 JL 28 41 4% #E )/GB18599-2020) and
“Hazardous Waste Inoineration Pollution Control Standards” ({1 % &2
W) 5 & 55 R 12 4l A2 ZE )/GB18484-2020), our printing business has
implemented the policies such as “Solid Waste Management Policy”,
“Disposal Procedures on Scrapped Printed Paper” and “Returning and
Recycling Control Procedures of Office Supplies and Raw and Auxiliary
Materials”, to classify and dispose solid waste, to increase recycling
rate and prevent environmental pollution caused by hazardous waste.

Our printing business entrusts a professional recycling company to
handle production waste, waste packaging materials, discarded
computers, waste furniture and other equipment to increase the
recycling rate, follows the relevant regulations on waste storage and
classification for waste disposal, and regularly transport the waste to
the government designated disposal location. Various types of solid
waste were transferred in July 2021, including: waste mineral oil 0.081
ton, washing sewage 1.62 tonnes, waste ink 0.252 ton, waste cloth
1.72 tonnes and waste ink can 1.3 tonnes.
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IRIR HERERES

Environmental (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Waste management (Continued)

For the hazardous waste generated in the production process, we
designate dedicated storage locations which fulfill the requirements,
and classify, isolate, retain and record the packaging materials. We
entrust a company with professional qualifications to perform harmless
process for the waste. In addition, we review and update the
“Hazardous Waste Management Plan” annually to ensure that all
hazardous wastes are properly retained and processed, to prevent
environmental pollution.

IRIE (1)
ENRIZTS (15)
BRNER (@)
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Recyclable production materials
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IRIR 1B RERHS

Environmental (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Use of water resources and sewage treatment

Major usage of water resources in our printing business include water
consumption for office and printing production. Water is sourced from
the municipal water supply. We have implemented the “Water
Conservation Management Policy” and various water saving measures
to increase water efficiency in the production process. We perform
regular inspection and maintenance of the water facilities to prevent
water wastage. An external professional testing organization is
entrusted to perform regular sewage emission testing to ensure the
sewage emission is within the emission limits.

We strictly follow the relevant national laws and regulations on sewage
discharge and has implemented relevant policies such as the “Sewage
Discharge and Treatment Management Policy”. Our printing plant holds
a “Sewage Discharge Permit”, and the sewage discharge is mainly
domestic sewage. According to the local government requirements,
the “Rainwater and sewage diversion project” has been implemented
and the acceptance approval has been obtained. Domestic sewage is
conveyed to Yuanzhou Sewage Plant through the municipal pipe
network and is discharged after sewage treatment.

Production sewage mainly comes from the printing, punching and
stretching processes, includes ink sewage and other types of sewage.
Sewage is collected in a dedicated sewage station through the
pipeline. After reaching a certain amount, an external company with
professional qualifications would be contacted for sewage treatment,
there was no external emission of production sewage. 1.62 tonnes of
production sewage was transferred in the Year.
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& IDOREKER - HAIERETIMNEEEIRE
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RIBIFE (BESEFRI ) » ISKBEREE /LS
Ko 2021 FEREMBUFENR » BHt T [tR5H
MIRER ) WEUSRUHEX » £7E5KEE
T EAR X E BN S KB AR P

FEEPREERSKEZRBENRPERERIS
BEHETEKREMBRSK > EEEER—
WEEIEPIRYE K » EE —EERMBRINEAR
BEEXEENAFEE  WAEINFE - 202184
BEREERKERERS1.620

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - =& — — 4 4F 3R 93



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR HERERES

Environmental (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Environment and natural resources

Being part of the timber industrial chain, we deeply acknowledge the
significance of the forest resource management. To support
sustainable forest operation, our printing business has obtained the
Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)® Chain-of-Custody (COC) Standard
Certification* and established standardised management procedures
starting from raw material procurement to product delivery processes,
to ensure the FSC certified products follows the FSC requirements.
While consuming the natural resources, we are committed to
preserving biodiversity, encouraging forest resources sustainability, and
promoting environmental-friendly, social-beneficial and economical-
viable forest management. In implementing green procurement, we
choose FSC raw materials.

Certificate of Registration

Ths i 1o centity that

Midas ing

standasda® and that Mid:

Lirnited ot

UNIT D 28/F BLOCK 2 VIGOR INDUSTRIAL BUILDING
HO.49-53 TA CHUEN PING 5T, KWAI CHUNG,

CHINA
¥ FSOL and sell

Recycled

Cestiticats Registration  SA-COC-012518

Gods: Issuse Number 1.0

Issued By S0l Association Certification Limited
Spear House. 51 Victaria Street
Hristol, B51 6AD
United Kingdom

isua Data: Angust 2021
Sigreed an behald of Sail }fd-(.-(—(;—..‘ﬂ'b-u-cq
Assoeiation Cestification

Kavin Jones, Head of Farestry

“avcaies by o himcin Corcfcatn.
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ENRIZTS (15)
RIERRARER

ERAMEZREN—IR » RFIRBARMEREE
EEM - HEFFENHRMESE » FEER
IR B EERAMEERZE F(FSC) EifEE
#(COC)RERFZ > WERTBRMEHREE
EmXIRIZNREEIEERT > FIRFSCEIERN
] & FSCHIEX » EEARAERFER
HPRAOREEY S5 > SBARMERAUFEE
Mo (REHIRERT - HEAEm RSB RITRIRR
MERERE - BT ERELE > HIAEMBFSC

FSC-COC Standard Certification

FSC-COC 183 255

8 Found in 1993, the FSC is an international, non-profit, non-government organization
advocating environmentally responsible, socially acceptable, and economically
viable ways of managing the world’s forests.

4 The FSC COC certification identifies the entire chain of production, processing and
circulation of a wood processing enterprise to ensure that the products which are
sold with an FSC claim originate from well-managed forests. After obtaining the
certification, the enterprise has the right to display the FSC name and logo on its
products, namely the FSC COC certification label.
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Environmental (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Production noise management

Our printing business follows the “Industrial Enterprises Environmental
Noise Emission Standard” ({ TE XM RIRIZ IR B HFAZ %)/
GB12348-2008) to manage noise emission. In order to lower the noise
emission impact to the surrounding environment, sound insulation,
sound abatement, sound absorption and vibration reduction devices
are installed in the printing plant where the compressors and the
printing machines are located. An external professional testing
organization is entrusted to perform regular noise emission testing to
ensure the noise emission is within the emission limits.

Climate change

The Group understands that climate change is changing the business
environment, affecting our operations, supply chains, urban
infrastructure and market demand, etc. Being a responsible corporate,
the Group pays close attention to business related climate change
risks in production and operations, evaluates its impact on business
continuity, fully identifies potential challenges and opportunities and
prepares for the climate crisis and the low-carbon era.

We took various proactive measures to cope with climate change:

° Implementing standardized management procedures according
to the requirements of ISO14001:2015 environmental
management systems to reduce the impact of environmental
changes on operations;

o Complying with relevant environmental regulations strictly during
the construction and production process, and improve energy
efficiency and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through
technological upgrades, facility maintenance and transformation
of the facilities and equipment;

° Giving priority to green and environmentally-friendly products,
focus on localized procurement to reduce carbon emissions
during transportation;

° Establishing Business Contingency Plans (BCP) to ensure
business continuity and employee safety.

IRiE (18)
ENRIZE75 (18)
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Environmental (Continued)
Climate change (Continued)

Looking forward, we will continue to improve the identification,
assessment and management of the climate change-related risks to
enhance the company’s strategic, business and financial resilience.

Climate change management of printing business

Climate change may have impact on our printing business, as our
products are sensitive to temperature and humidity. High temperature
may lead to bonding gap or deformation of the books and color box
products and may cause the printing machines generating high heat
and increase energy consumption. High humidity may lead to peeling
of the printed ink which may lead to machine malfunction. To cope with
climate change, we have implemented “Environmental Risk
Contingency Plan” and measures such as increasing ventilation
systems and maintaining a constant temperature in the production
floor.
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Employment and labour practices

We always regard employees as our most valuable assets, and strive
to create a fair, inspiring and harmonious working environment where
employees can gain work accomplishments and realise their personal
values.

The Group strictly abide by the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ({ 2= A K £ 7 & &5 8) 7% ), the “Law of the Peoples
Republic of China on Employment Contracts” ({ZE A RHEFE %
& [@ 3% ), the “Employment Ordinance” ({ & 1 1% 1 )/Cap 57), the
“Minimum Wage Ordinance” ({&1& T & {%&5)/Cap 608), (2% A
& 5t 81&M)/Cap 485) and other relevant laws and regulations.

We always protect the legitimate rights and interests of our employees,
continuously enhance human resources management and is
committed to provide employees with a better working environment
and benefits.

The Group was not aware of material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare in the Year.

(BlE 555 TER
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Employment and labour practices (Continued) {E{E&% T (4&)

Recruitment and promotion

EERREAEH

The Group has established the “Human Resources Management ZAEEBIMEEERE F 2 FREBEERIER
Policy”, the “Employee Handbook” and other policies in compliance &IE T(ANEREEHIE) - (BEFM) £5
with the employment-related laws and regulations and according to the & o TfEIRE B E A ~ AA TS ~ ANEE
actual situation. We actively carry out recruitment activities through  EREFIEIEES > AEBRMNFENE > IBFRA
internet, talent market, intermediaries and other channels to attract A5 o

new forces for the Group and expand our talent pool.

The employment data of the Group in the Year are as follows:

BY GENDER
BRI D

= Male
B (110)
B Female
27 (127)

BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
BRIFFTEESD

og |

\

B (28)

B Qverseas
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% Mainland China
AR A (208)
B Hong Kong

BIMBE (1)

FEEFFENRRBIHENOT

BY AGE GROUP
BRERARE D

18 1 30

B 20 and below
2055 AT (1)
= 21-30
21-305% (30)
H 31-40
31-407% (86)
= 41-50
41-505% (102)
86 51-60
102 51-60%% (18)
B 61 and up
61554 L (0)

BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE
RERBESSD

= Full Time
28 (237)

B Contractor
&% (0)
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Employment and labour practices (Continued)
Recruitment and promotion (Continued)

The Group rationally planned promotion channels, established vertical
and horizontal promotion opportunities, and provided employees with
diversified development opportunities. We conduct multi-dimensional
assessments on employees to ensure that outstanding talents have
sufficient opportunities to be identified and promoted. For the talents
who have not been promoted, we provide training to employees for
their personal development, laying a good foundation for the stable
development of the Group’s business.

Remuneration and benefits

The Group has established the “Employee Benefits and Allowance
Management Policy”, the “Employee Performance Appraisal Policy”
and other policies in compliance with the employment-related laws and
regulations and according to the actual situation. We implement “To
each according to his contribution” and “equal pay for equal work”. We
provide allowances to eligible employees, pay various social insurances
for employees on time, and ensure that employees are entitled to paid
annual leaves. We also provide various types of benefits to our
employees, such as: improving accommodation environment and
meals, providing recreational activities, etc., to promote mutual respect
and a harmonious working environment.

The Group evaluates employees in terms of work attitude, work quality,
technical level, management skills, collaborative spirit, civilized
discipline, etc., to ensure the fairness of employee remuneration and to
attract outstanding talents. The department head interviews the
employees on the performance appraisal results, evaluates the
employee’s work performance, and listens to the opinions of the
employees, so as to promote the common enhancement of the
employees and the Group.

BERE TER (4&)
EERBEEHA (B)

AEBSERE SN RE » REMPARRCBAR
BEARE > BT EEZSHRENERKS - Y
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SRR RIEIN o WARES IS - TR M
BEEAZRIE  SAEBEBRELZREER
YFEEE
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Employment and labour practices (Continued)
Social Responsibility Management

Our printing business has implemented the “Social Responsibility
Management Manual” and has obtained SA 8000:2014 Social
Accountability (SA)® certification. We regard employees as the
cornerstone of corporate development, and provide employees with a
fair and equitable working environment and a development platform for
realizing value.

[T T
Tt g s o

Guang Dong Province Boluo County
Yuan Zhou Midas Printing Limited

[CE-E L wmmmmmm
Gy, Goangriong Froyica, PR, Cina

b s v e 1t e

SA 8000:2014

i g e
Pristing i binding of becks iad Pugesr prodets.
_{wth Privary Procasses o coting. pinng.

T corsicitn i weld b 13 February X1 w13 Fabroary 254
8 e v et B B es A3

own 7 Cartl Wi 13 Febriany 12

Tre. nam 10 s cardlcate commencad o 09 111279620
vt corticate vably dale wan . TUE27

e lg oy
08 i mrs My Ve
T T R o

& mm&k{(

'-'E'.'-"'""- e e

SA8000:2014 Social Accountability Certification

5 SA 8000, abbreviation for Social Accountability 8000 International Standard, is
social accountability international standard, its purpose is to ensure the products
supplied by the corporate fulfill the social accountability standards.
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Employment and labour practices (Continued)
Employee daily benefits

The Group prepares festival gifts for employees during festivals to
increase their sense of belonging. We have also prepared a snack bar
for employees in the Hong Kong office, providing a variety of snacks,
coffee, etc. so that employees can relax during their busy work.

BERS% TER (&)
EE B E&F

AEBENRAK  HESEFEHEES - 1B
BENRBR - RFILEEEMAETRETH
#ET ITRIUEM) - REZES R  HINEE
BEESEICHRIIETRRZRS O ©

Office snacks
MAEZTE

Employee festive celebration

In order to allow employees to relax from their work and enhance the
intercourse among employees, the Group‘s property development
business organised celebration activities on different festivals to enjoy
the festive atmosphere together. In addition, festival gifts were
distributed to employees during festivals, such as Dragon Boat rice
dumplings, Mid-Autumn mooncakes, beverages and fruits. The
canteen provides herbal tea to employees twice a week in summer.

BHESURE

Festival celebration activities

EEEBFRE

A TEREEETIFZEBRIRE 0 MIRERER
BRI » AEERYEEREBR AR B
LMENLY RESRE  —FARXHAR
S o IESh » REBENRIEB IR E HRREEIKES
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Employment and labour practices (Continued) {E{E&% T E# (&)
Employee activities EEEE
In order to enhance team spirit and allow employees to relax in group A T::ES TEERZHHHEZES L » ERE S

activities, various events were held by our printing business in the Year — ## > FFIRVEIRIZEFS N AREE R 7T K I8 5H) »
such as basketball games, tug-of-war games and hiking activities. BIE [ EIREE N O ERB R EEFE o

A

.

Employee 'grou_activities

~d REERED
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Employee development and training

Our Group aims to provide training for employees and encourage their
continuous development. We have established a comprehensive
training management system. Through classroom teaching, on-site
training, webinars, and the provision of training materials, we carry out
diversified trainings at various business levels for employees to enhance
their knowledge and their skills.

The property development business of the Group provides employees
at all levels with training that meets their development needs, such as
professional training, corporate management training and marketing
skills. In addition, some functions adopt a mentoring training system,
and select potential talents to be trained by experienced masters.

$R12R
B iR 4E
«S0 B a9l
%54 A Rh 13
AhtE ] »
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&«
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RIHEE R ABARAE

FERVEEREGASMESRENSHERE
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HIXTIGE o b 0 B850 Bk SEER B M4 1) 15 511 61
B EEABEEN AT BB ERIEMEH T

IHE o

5 5% %184 | R 43
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Property development business training site

ESEIEES B

The printing business of the Group establishes annual training plans,
which are divided into six categories according to the training targets
and purposes, including new employee orientation training, corporate
culture training, safety and system training, professional skills training,
management skills training and career development training, so as to
comprehensively enhance employees’ job knowledge and skills. To
enhance the quality of training, the Human Resources department
distributes questionnaires to the participants after training to collect
feedback to optimize the training content.

AEBENRIZEHH EFEEIIFE » ZIFIIHR
ELERRIEEI D A7 KM - BIE L T REARIE
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Employee development and training 2 & 3 B Ragall (48)
(Continued)

PR, Tt

Printing business new employee orientation training

ENfRZE 53 B B A RS
Printing knowledge training ENRIEN & 353

The printing business of the Group provides printing knowledge and  AEBERIEFE G REERRITHNEAZEEIZ
quality control training for the frontline employees of the production and  {HEDRIK 3 fe R =28 > FER BB F AMBRERE
quality control department, so that employees can have a deeper R i mie R E T EARRENH o mIEIEs)IBEmE
understanding of the production and quality control process and ZERBEEXK o

update their relevant knowledge. The quality training clarifies the

product quality requirements.

Printing knowledge and quality control training
ENRIR 8 Fe & 8115
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Employee development and training BEEEBREIEI ()
(Continued)
Discipline training seEsgsll

The printing business provides personnel discipline training sessions,  ENRIZEFIREH T REACEREI > B BRI EHBER
to clarify policies and procedures of the printing business, and to IEMZHIE > WHEREEZEHTALC o

educate and guide the employees to comply with the rules and

regulations.

G

Discipline training
sl
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Employee development and training
(Continued)

During this Year, the total number of training hours attended by
employees from the headquarters, property business and printing
business of the Group reached 3,961 hours. The percentage of trained

B & % R R igs (&)

AEE > EEEBE MEEXFRIOREHEES
DL 4B IRy B0 3,961 /NBF > #21E R ~ B ARSI 73
BZIEE B D LRSI EERNZ TR F

employees and the average training hours of employees by gender and ~ "FFi/~ ©
ranking are as follows:
Average training hours by gender: 4 RIE S ES F19Z 35S :
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EIEICEF BEISI—F BETHF BEIE”—H
=BA=+—H =A=+—H =A=+—H =A=+—H
LEEE IEFE LEEFEE b E

Percentage of
trained employees

Average training
hours (hr/person)

Gender 451 ZilEEB Lt SRS (VN A)
Male B 60.61% 71.15% 62.15 19.40
Female M 56.09% 71.57% 51.23 14.36
Average training hours by ranking: BRI AREI S ES F19%E)IRFEL -
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
HE—_ZT—_— BHE_T——F HET-F BEZ—_—HF
=B=+—H =B=+—H =B=+—H =B=+—H
IEFE IEEFE IEFE IEFE

Percentage of
trained employees

Average training
hours (hr/person)

Ranking B4R ZIEEE 2L SRS (N A)

Senior Management SiREIEE 71.21% 21.74% 22.85 1.39

Middle Management HaREIRE 85.06% 35.43% 17.60 1.80

General and technical — AT AE 83.51% 96.03% 110.82 26.87
employees
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Occupational safety and health

Placing employees’ safety and health as the top priority, the Group
strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ({H%E A EH71E 5
¥R BHA7E)), the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({2 A EHME %L = 4% E %)), the Fire Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({ 7 ZE A B &£ # B 8 B5 7% ), the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong ((B%¥ % %
R 2 ER1EI) / Cap 509), and other relevant laws and regulations. The
Group also actively enhances safety management measures to provide
a healthy and safe working environment for employees. At the same
time, the Group follows national epidemic prevention regulations,
implements daily epidemic prevention measures and provides face
masks and other anti-epidemic items to employees, in order to prevent
the spread of COVID-19 in the workplace.

The Group strictly complies with the government’s requirements for the
resumption of work and production by implementing contingency plan
and setting up a leading team to fight against the virus. We are
equipped with the anti-epidemic items and require employees to follow
relevant anti-epidemic measures such as wearing masks, taking body
temperature and maintaining social distancing with records taken.

During this Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to the workplace safety
and the protection of employees from occupational hazards.

BERE LR
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)

BEREERE ()

Epidemic prevention and control BRI

The Group has strictly implemented the relevant state regulations on
preventing and controlling COVID-19, and carried out various
prevention measures. To safeguard the health and safety of our
employees and customers, we established the “Business Continuity
Plan” at the beginning of the epidemic and purchased anti-epidemic
items, including face masks, hand sanitisers and thermometers via

multiple channels, and made great efforts in epidemic prevention and — E&#; o
control. We organised comprehensive epidemic prevention and
hygiene checks to raise the awareness of employees.

108

MAMMERIARIRZE

MAGNUS CONCORDIA GROUP LTD

Epidemic prevention and control

BB

Temperature testing and registration of the property development business
MEZEREBR R KREST
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Epidemic prevention and control (Continued)

To prevent the spread of COVID-19, the Group disinfects key areas
such as the reception area, office area and staff canteen on a regular
basis. All employees and visitors were required to have temperature
testing and registration, and all employees were required to wear
masks before entering the office zone; special trash bins were used to
hold used anti-epidemic supplies; and employees who planned to
travel out of town were required to report to the corresponding
departments. The Group also attaches importance to anti-epidemic
training. To be specific, in order to educate employees with epidemic
prevention knowledge and enhance their awareness of COVID-19
prevention and control, we have distributed epidemic prevention
information to all departments.

BEZZRAER(E)
B IERAE (%)

AEUNE2019BRFSFRIBEE > ~EBE
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe construction

Adhering to the principle of “maximum safety by prevention and
comprehensive management”, the Group implements the “Operation
Guidelines for Standardized Safety and Civilization Management” and
other systems to ensure safety in the property development. In
accordance with the Unified Code for Technique for Constructional
Safety GB 50870-2013 (( B £ it LT & & % 7 #2 — #% 6 )) and
construction plans, the engineering department and the construction
team exchange views on the safety techniques, and discuss the key
points of construction and safety management. During the construction
process, the engineering department has carried out safety checks of
construction, so as to stop and rectify unsafe behaviours in time to
prevent safety incidents.

. -
|

LE Raie)
SMOT M M 10 30

eﬂ

BEZ2BERE (8)
ZEHET

FEEYERREBRF 228 — FEHA
T RERE A BRERT(ZEXEE
ELEBERIESDSEHE > UREHETIZE -
ZIEE 280K i T PR TE G TiE B aTie iR (2
2t T L2 iT4—R#)GB50870-2013 K Ffi
THE - DEZEFNETRE ) BEZENT
BN EREBEEIE o TH LIBREH > 1B
BIRXHEMILZE2RE » US| IEFAAIE
TL2I1TH  HEBLTRER o

Safety inspection of the Property development business

MEZREBZLERE

Safety production training of the Printing business
ENRIEFH L 24 EE
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Occupational safety and health (Continued) BEZPHEER (B)
Safe construction (Continued) T2l L (&)

The key safety management measures of the Group’s property ANEEYEZEEZFNELZE2EEBERWT ©
development business are presented as follows:

Safety use of Equipment Safety use of Electricity Safety of Construction Site
REZE BERZ HithE e
° Implementing the principle of ° Planning for the overall o Installing safety facilities in the
“designated machines, construction electricity surrounding areas and hanging
responsible persons and duties” consumption and specifying the up warmning signage.
stringently to prevent the misuse responsible person for electricity ERAEBERBELEHERKE > &
of the construction equipment. usage. L 2ETRIRE o
MLREBRISHITER ~ EA SHEIE LIRS > AAEET
ERrERA o B ERR o Ao e Piling up materials at designated
locations, clearing and
° Organising safety inspections ° Inspecting temporary electricity transporting them in time to
regularly; rectification measures use in accordance with the maintain tidiness of the
are applied as long as general drawings. construction site.
safety hazards are discovered; R E AR SRR A B ETTRUL MR 16 TE 3 B M R K B BR
project must be shut down for FiHE o B REHEIRSER o
rectification when serious and
major safety hazards are ° Purchasing standardised
detected; construction can be electricity boxes to prevent
continued only after passing the potential safety hazards caused
inspection and testing. by inferior electricity boxes.
HECHREAmZ S > &3] BERECHIEMR BHIES
— R R BRI E e 0 B3R BEREWRLERER -

BAREB -EARBARELE
0N ERRER R A SRR BE
farEnm T o

To enhance employee’s safety awareness, the property development — AEEY)3%EEFRITR TS ER T2
business of the Group provides safety training to the engineering T EBKERZE2#%EIE > UIBES2ED2E
department and the construction team before starting the project.  # o i B » HFIBRIBERLZ 2 EE A ENITES
Besides, project managers who are responsible for the safety of the  #{E2 A SN BIFB A LG o RPEEEERH
construction sites and the operators of the special equipment must  Z24|& » R BB R RATEFEENZE[EE

obtain corresponding certifications. We hold safety meetings when R f§%8 o
needed to communicate and solve possible safety hazards and
problems in a timely manner.
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe production

The Group’s printing business pays high attention to the management
of safe production. Based on Social Accountability 8000 Management
Manual ({SA8000 1 B EEEIEFM)), the “Environmental, Health and
Safety Policy” (EHS Policy) and other regulations have been established
and the health and safety standards have been enhanced continuously.
At the same time, the printing business has set up a Health and Safety
Committee consisting of the management representatives and worker
representatives. It appointed coordinators to deal with environmental
health and safety affairs. Those coordinators evaluate the health and
safety risks in the workplace on a regular basis and rectify potential
safety hazards, to ensure a safe production environment. We also set
up a safety inspection team to perform inspections regularly on the
safety production, such as fire-fighting equipment and passage,
operation safety, use of the personal protective equipment (PPE),
occupational disease risks, and the operating procedures of the
equipments, in order to rectify and stop improper operation behaviour
in time.

The Group has adopted safety management mechanism, increased
on-site safety inspections, and organised training regarding
environmental protection and epidemic prevention and control to
respond to government’s requirements. We have completed
emergency drills on electric shock, injuries due to fall, and fire
precaution, and conducted checks for occupational health and safety
when needed.

In order to implement the occupational health and safety strategy, the
printing business of the Group provides regular training sessions on
safe operation knowledge to the employees. These training sessions
explain the operating procedures to enhance employees’ safe
production awareness and reduce safety incidents. We also offer
occupational health checkups when needed for employees involved in
occupational hazards to detect occupational diseases and improve
their health conditions in a timely manner.
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IRIR HERERERS

Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe production (Continued)

Building fire and disaster prevention awareness is crucial to
occupational health and safety. To strengthen employees’ awareness
on safe production, we invited the trainers of the Fire Bureau to provide
occupational fire safety training, conducted fire drills and other disaster
prevention training and drills, aiming at enhancing employees’ ability to
evacuate during the dangerous circumstances.

BEZZRAER(E)
REEE (B

BUMAIKEREBERELZEEHRE S
TiREEEXE2EERH » AEEERIEHRAE
FEER TEBLPOHEREARRMEBSNZE
15Ell ~ REVH Z2RRE N EREUER 3271
BEEREIRT TRIRERET -

Fire safety training and fire drills of the Printing business

ENRIZEESHI 2 2183l 5 0H B

LR RIR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - — & =~ — 43R 113



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR HERERES

Occupational safety and health (Continued) BEL2EHERE (8)
Safe production (Continued) REXEBE)

In the past three years, the Group was not aware of any work-related ~ FRiBE =4 » AEE T BB I AREAFETHE
fatalities, and the number of working days lost due to work-related 1> R T8N TEA S A64H o AEFHEH
injuries was 64 days. Other occupational health and safety data of the ¥ RERERZE2EIENT:

Group are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

Item Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

BE—_ZT-_—F BE_F_—F

=A=+—H =A=+—H

EHH B i LLFEE IEEFE

Number of staff participating in general health check Number of 0 10
FELBREREBIEAK N VN

Number of staff participating in occupational health check Number of 58 77
MRS A 8K N N

Number of fire drill preparation/execution Number of 2 3
HBREB TR, TR E N VN

Attendance at fire drill preparation/execution Number of 36 371
SELHPEBTEE, MITAR N VN

Number of safety training preparation/execution Number of 26 38
Z 2% BT RE N N
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Labour standards

The Group regards every employee as an important member of the
Group. All staff will not be discriminated against their nationality,
gender, age, ethnicity, race, physical condition, religious belief, gender
orientation or any other factors. While respecting employees’ freedom
of association and their rights of collective bargaining, we have
established internal and external information communication and
complaint channels, to follow up on complaints and protect the
legitimate rights and interests of the employees.

We are strictly in compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors ({1 E A\ R HF IR B E AREE))
and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ({2 1185 /3
BT RE)), and verify the actual ages of the job applicants during the
recruitment process. Meanwhile, the Group strictly abides by its
internal labour management policies and forbids forcing employees to
work or work overtime in any manner. In the event of discovering any
false information of the applicants, or any false reporting of age or
forced labour, the Group will conduct corresponding investigations and
implement internal rectifications.

The property development business of the Group has established and
implemented the “Measures to Protect the Rights and Interests of
Qutsourced Workers”. We have set up a special account for paying the
outsourced workers’ wages to make deposits in advance and
guarantee the payment. We regularly check the list of workers and their
amount of wages, to urge the construction units to pay wages on time
and in full.

The printing business of the Group prohibits the recruitment of child
labour under the age of 16 and all recruits are required to hold their
identity cards, which should be verified. Employees in all positions are
well-equipped with the required labour protection supplies.

During this Year, the Group was not aware of any cases of child labour
or forced labour which had caused any significant violation of labour
standards.

& T#8|
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Supply chain management

While strictly complying with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Bid Invitation and Bidding ({ 2 A R £/ BB ZE R Z %)) and
relevant laws and regulations, the Group conducts regular reviews on
its major suppliers to ensure their capabilities in quality management,
delivery time, after-sales service, as well as the social and
environmental risk management.

Tendering and supplier evaluation

The property development business of the Group has established and
implemented the “Tender Management Policy” and other relevant
policies to standardise the bidding mechanism and three methods are
used to seek for qualified suppliers, namely invitation to tender, simple
tender and direct entrustment. Bidding shall go through strict bidding
approval process, including demand approval, shortlisted units
approval, bidding documents approval and bid selection approval, etc.,
to ensure the openness and transparency of the procurement process.

The printing business of the Group has established and implemented
the “Procurement Control Procedures” and the “Supplier Management
Procedures” and other relevant policies. We conduct strict evaluations
on suppliers and select qualified ones by adopting various assessment
approaches, such as reviewing suppliers’ certifications, material quality
related certificates (e.g., ISO9001 Certification) and material safety data
sheets, and sample testing. We review the suppliers in the “List of
Qualified Suppliers” to update the qualified suppliers.
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Supply chain management (Continued)

Environmental and social responsibilities of
suppliers

The Group evaluates and investigates major suppliers prior to
cooperation, understands and updates information during cooperation
to ensure their environmental and social performance is in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. Priority will be given to suppliers
with outstanding environmental and social performance.

The printing business of the Group requires major suppliers to sign the
“Social Responsibility Commitment Letter” and promise to abide by the
local labour laws and regulations. Suppliers included in the “List of
Qualified Suppliers” should sign the “Declaration of Conformity with the
Restricted Substance Control Standards” and provide the levels of
restricted substances contained as well as a test report from an
approved third-party notary organisation to ensure that their raw
materials are up to the criteria stated in international material safety
standards, such as Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals (REACH)®, EN71-3 Safety of toys Part 3:
Migration of Certain Elements” and American toy safety standards
ASTM F963-17 Standard Consumer Safety Specification for Toy
Safety®. At the same time, the printing business continues to monitor
the use of child labour by suppliers and the payment of labour salaries
among suppliers. If a supplier is noted to intentionally hire child labour,
forced labour, or have any other serious violations of labour laws or
regulations, our cooperation with that supplier will be terminated
immediately.

Mg EIE (&)
HEENIRIERTERE

K%@EF‘%@E\T’FHUﬂ%kT PR ETT TR
 BEEBIER TR EMER - BEHEER

iﬁ&%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéfﬁ*A ERER  BRERR

BRAERFERIMERS -

AEBMBIEBNIEZHERRRE(1LE
EEEE) E&E%LTEEJHJA@J/HEOHPSl7\<<A¢5ZT
%%%ﬁ»E’JLJ%%%;@%((FABEEE%TPE%J
SEZBFE) > WIRHIEBYESEREKSIH
BHERARITIRAIRS - URFRRHT S8

BEE2 R ~ 5HE uﬁF‘JfFDIZEﬁEJ(REACH)»G\
(EN7T1-3IiEZ2F33H | BETENBE)’
KEBITEZ 2 EE <<ASTM 963-17IEZEIZ

EHEEZERB) FERMHNZ2RE - F
E% EREHFEMIHERESFEELER
BERUKRERE THEERIEN  ERHAMHE
HHEEAEL REFPHEMBREERFH
ERREN o R BIME LSRR ©

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BHEZZEZ BE"ZT"—&
=BA=+—H =A=+—H
IEEFE IHEFE
No. of suppliers
Location of suppliers {HRERPRTE M HEEHE
Mainland China FRE Pt 2,767 2,747
Hong Kong a8 22 23
6 REACH is the abbreviation of “registration, evaluation, authorisation and restriction 6 REACHIE® = M2 Mmar ~ 5718 ~ SFeIFIRE) AR

of chemicals”. REACH is the regulation of the European Union on the preventive
management of all chemicals entering its market.

7 EN71-3 Standard: The European Union made an official decision in 1999 to strictly
limit the content of phthalates in mouth-contact toys (such as baby pacifiers) and
other children’s products used by children under the age of three in EU member
states.

8 ASTM F963-17 refers to the ASTM (American Society for Testing and Materials
International) standard consumer safety specification for toy safety.

Yﬁ%ﬁ?éOREACH?E%\%ﬁ’“ HEAHDBHFAALS

TR EERER

7 EN71-3IR{RIZZE | BREEFS 1999 EFLIE R EHIAE » 1

AR BER » #3mU T REFEANEOZENITA

(KZD B UK EMREERARTMR _RRENS
TGRS ©

8 ASTM FOB3-17 2 ASTM ( = B #4 ¥ M & 5 % &
American Society for Testing and Materials International)
HmAZ2WHEEZSRERE
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Product responsibility

The Group believes that excellent quality, creative design and
professional after-sales service are the core of sustainable
development. We strictly control the quality of printed materials and
residential buildings, and provide professional and convenient after-
sales service for customers, striving to protect the consumer rights and
interests. During this Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with any laws and regulations regarding health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided by the Group.

Property and printing quality control
Property development business

Taking “quality first” as a core development principle, the property
development business of the Group strictly complies with the
Construction Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FFZE A\ REAE
2 F 7% ) and other laws and regulations. We have established and
implemented policies such as the “Construction Progress Management
Guidelines”, the “Project Inspection and Evaluation Guidelines”, the
“Management Requirements of General Contractors and
Subcontractors”, the “Process and Node Method” and the
“Management Policy of Supervision Unit”, so as to implement
standardized and comprehensive project quality management
measures.

The property development business of the Group follows the quality
policy of “prevention first” and implements quality control measures
that cover prevention, inspection, summary and rectification, thus
forming a closed-loop of the project quality management where
responsibility is clearly defined, as to make timely corrections to
unqualified projects in inspections. Through these efforts, the quality of
the delivered properties can be guaranteed.
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Product responsibility (Continued) EmaE (@)
Property and printing quality control (Continued) YIEBEENRI REEE (48)
Property development business (Continued) MEBRBRER (@)

Acceptance of materials ##}E&U&

° Verifying that the used materials or work in process materials have the qualification certificate or quality assurance
certificate, and whether they are consistent with the designated brands

ZERPRHERM K FRREE AR HRAREN  BRESURED BRIEERmE—

° Engineering materials and products must be supervised and submitted for sampling inspection at the construction site
before use
TEME -~ HREFRNBELEETE « i LIRS xR

° Correcting the measurement and metering devices used by the general contractor to ensure their accuracy
HABEMNETRERVAE StEREFETRE » BREBHEE

Preparation for construction it T £

° Having full preparation for construction, including developing construction plans, organizing the design and reviewing
the construction drawings by the engineering departments to identify potential design issues. Technical clarification
between the engineering design company, the supervision company, the general contractors and the subcontractors
and the quality standards and requirement clarifications are needed to ensure the construction process is well-
organised and strictly complies with the design and technical requirements
HEZRONHELIEETLIE > SEFIERIEE > A8t - TIESEMIPIYERETEEUERBERIEZE
WETIZRETAE ~ BIEAR ~ @O BREETRMRK - BRESREEER ) UREHMLEEEEAF > L&
IR R ST AR 2 KIENT

° Implementing the model project system. A small-scale model project should be carried out first before starting a large-
scale one, which is allowed to be conducted only after the model project is accepted
BITHRRERGIE » K LFTAEBEM LA > SET/NSBEFRIE  KRUBa®R s I ABEMT

° Consulting with the local supervisory departments, and inviting experts to provide guidance for key and difficult stages
of the projects, so as to enhance the construction technical level
M EMELEEBPNIEITHEN > BAEAMEREE « BB TRZETEE » MUIRAEIEMKE
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Product responsibility (Continued) EmEE (&)

Property and printing quality control (Continued) YIEBEENRI REEE (48)

Property development business (Continued) MIEBRER (B)

Special acceptance and completion acceptance EIEE W K& i2 T E& LUK

The engineering department holds regular meetings and organises construction contractors to jointly convene on-site
quality coordination meetings, special sessions on common quality defect prevention and control, and other
communication meetings, so as to increase the quality awareness during construction

TEEEHRERAE > LASK L ARERFRRSEERRS «  BERFRMAEEGH EBYH  UREAMIIAE

NEEEH

Implementing the principle of inspecting each process. One process can be carried out only after the previous one
passed the inspection by the construction contractor, on-site supervision engineer and the engineering department. If
there are problems related to quality supervision, preventive measures, and engineering and quality issues caused by
entering the next stage without inspection, or such problems are not rectified in time, the supervision engineer or the
engineering department of the property development business will direct the construction unit to stop work immediately
for rectification

BETZRELIRERNERE TSEIRTMRE > AETIS - RIBERIETZN - TR DEESKEA FETNE
TR o IHRAKHREREAT —ETIR AEHENTRENESMNE A2 EHhEEETEERES SR - BIE
TiREMsi R RER T RN GIES M I EMIIRNM= TR

After a project is completed, it will be checked by the construction unit, the supervision unit and the Group’s
acceptance team. If issues are found at the time of acceptance, the Group and the supervision unit will urge the
construction contractors to rectify within a time limit

THEET#% > MBS~ BEIREM - AEERWINMA=FETERRW c ERNPEIRMBEHAEE REIRE
HEEERAEN

Delivery acceptance 3Z Y& UK

After the completion acceptance is qualified for record, the project will enter into the warranty period. The issues raised
by the owner during the handover and warranty period shall be sorted out by the property management and submitted
to the general contractor and sub-contractors. The general contractor is responsible for supervising and urging the
subcontractors to rectify

ETRNSKEREHERRIEEAEERER  XERRFREANETRENEERYFZEEEERRFBORERS
il BEBUEBEEREDEEMEN
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Property and printing quality control (Continued)
Printing business

The printing business of the Group has developed a strict control
system for the design of the printing materials and the production
quality, and strived to safeguard customers’ rights and interests with
an efficient management level. In terms of the product quality and
safety, the Group has set the following targets, which have been fully
achieved this Year.

%

Products withdrawn/recalled due
to safety causes:

ERTEZEHERHQ, AR EN

0

The Group strictly follows the Product Quality Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({1 A\ EHXMEZE M MmE %)), the Regulations on
the Administration of Printing Industry ({ EN Rl 2 & 12 {% ) )), the
Provisions on the Administration of Undertaking of Presswork Printing
(CENRI SR AENEELRE)) and other relevant laws and regulations and
international product standards and has established policies and
procedures such as the “Quality and Environmental Management
Manual” and “Defective Product Output Management Procedures”.
Besides, the Group has also established a management process for
controlling product quality at every stage from incoming materials,
semi-finished products to final products. The quality control procedures
of the printing business mainly include four stages, which are the
quality control of the incoming materials, work in process products, the
final products, and the transportation and storage management.
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Customer Satisfaction:
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Product responsibility (Continued) EmEE (&)

Property and printing quality control (Continued) YIEBRIR RE ST (8)

Printing business (Continued) ENRIZEFS (48)

Quality control of incoming materials 2&#} 5 & &%

When selecting suppliers, we evaluate their market reputation, business scale and samples’ quality, and regularly
evaluate material quality and delivery time during the cooperation, so as to select the ones with good performance to
further cooperate

TEAHRENHEATIZEE KSR  RREEETIML ) UESFAREPEHHES - JPFETMEL ) 2
BaE

Suppliers of raw materials, machinery and equipment are required to provide product test report from third-party
testing organisations, sign the instruction of compliance with restricted substances to ensure that raw materials comply
with the Restriction of the use of Hazardous so that our children’s book, food packaging products and other packaging
products meet the safety requirements

EREME - R - KBESHEHHEEREES=FRAKBNERRARS > BERSRAMERBS  LRRFRR
MEREEEMERNES MERMNZELEESE enBOEERKAMEEERREZERTE

Checking whether incoming material is up to standard, eliminate incoming material quality problem

BB R RS ER BN EERE

Quality control of work in process 512 & & &1

Setting up standardised quality inspection procedures and carrying out strict inspection and dispatch standards on all
products from raw materials to finished goods. Products at all phases must be tested qualified before entering the next
stage

RERE TtE’JEE@%ﬁE% > HPTA E mIERELE R m A B ITERNIRERIITRE » £ EBEEMEELITIRR
BIERARAIEANT PSR
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Property and printing quality control (Continued)

Printing business (Continued)

EmBE (&)
MERIFmEEE (B

ENRIZTS (%)

Quality control of final products ¥ & @& E &%

° Each batch of final products must pass the sampling inspection by the quality control department, and only the
products with pass labels are allowed to be delivered, and implement the finished product inspection system

— I F BB MERPIMRE SR WEB SR TRRET

BE EENLRERR

° The quality control department coordinates the technical department and production department to analyse the causes
of quality issues and develops improvement measures relating to system, process and technology to improve the

quality of finished goods

mEFIBERMN - EEFHFT > HERESHEETRAS N > LHIERS © FI2  SMESEBVSUEREH > L

R mEE

Transportation and storage management E#i A E7EE

° Monitoring the temperature and humidity of the storage environment to avoid damage

EEEMRERIFEERRE  BREMSER

° Employing professional transportation team to ensure cleanness and careful handling, and avoid getting wet from rain

and snow during transportation

EREXEHER > BERBIEFREEP BRRITMHE  BEEH

In order to enhance the quality inspectors’ professional competence,
the Group has arranged professional training sessions on quality
inspection of the printed materials. These training contents include
professional inspection knowledge, such as different product features,
inspection standards and judgement approaches, to enhance the
professionalism and the efficiency of the inspection process. In order to
enhance the quality of inspection, the “Quality System Assessment”
policy has been implemented and the quality inspectors are evaluated
to increase their levels of inspection.

AEAEBRABFER KT > AEERRIRRE
EmREXREIRE AETERIRERS
M REBRRERFIES EFE RN > LUE
HEREERRIBENFEMLEYEK - XEEY
BERABBM(RERMEREERTE) HER
ABETERZ » LIRSEEKT o
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Property and printing quality control (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)

The Group’s products are sold to local and overseas customers. We
have implemented quality management which is certified with the third
party certification of ISO9001:2015 Quality Management Standard. To
satisfy the needs of international customers such as customers in
North America and Europe, the Group has also obtained a number of
international certificates, such as BRC Global Standard for Packaging
& Packaging Materials (Issue 5) and the G7 Master Facility Colorspace
Certification issued by the International Digital Enterprise Alliance
(IDEAlliance). Having these certifications shows the Group’s
professional management ability regarding the printing colour controls
and the packaging safety and health controls, in order to meet the
international mandatory compliance requirements.

EmEE (&)
MEEENR mE B (48)
ENRIZERS (4)

AEBEMERAEEREARAHEE  2EEE
RIRISO9001: 2015 B = EIRBAEHNE=EIE
WEBBE = HEARE - AnelbE  BUNE
B E P &R REETNVESBRCEE KRB
MRI2KIEE (B RAR) - EREF 20 B iaMm
B G7 Master Facility Colorspace 585 5 % TE I
1E5058 » UBRAERHOR G ~ Y
EHERREZ 2R ENEESIERET » mEE
ReaflEEIRER o

Professional training for quality control inspectors
m B ek e FHEIE

In this Year, none of products in the printing business was recalled due
to safety and health concerns.
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IRIR HERERERS

Product responsibility (Continued)
Innovative product design

When designing books, paper toys, toy book sets, calendars,
packaging boxes and other products, the Group lays emphasis on the
innovativeness of design concepts. Through designing Pop-up books
and combining elements such as blue and white porcelain, classic
landscape and traditional festival stories, we endow the printed works
with cultural connotations, spatial changes and other characteristics, to
enhance the quality and creativity of printed materials. Many printed
works of the Group have won the Print Awards from Hong Kong
Printers Association.

EmEE (&)
BT E M

EHER  RFRA  ASER -#E - 8%
SFERETRAR  AERIERHEENE
WL - BBURRERS  BEBEE » KHEM
RE - BREOHHAKETER  UEMEFEES
ENRIPEMmAR T XX EMIR ~ ZREMCEFRE - LUR
FENRI AV E RUERI R - AEE L IHENRI(Fm
BRERBHRIZEBGENRALE -

\\\

Products and design of Printing Business
ENRIZETSE mEd s 5
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Customer service and satisfaction

The property development business of the Group has established
policies such as the “Customer Reception Standards and Assessment
and Supervision Mechanism”, “Customer Complaint Management
System and Work Guidelines” and “Customer Satisfaction Survey
Management Mechanism”, to standardise customer complaint follow
up process. After receiving customer complaints, the property
consultant or customer service specialist will coordinate relevant
departments to discuss and draft plans to solve the complaints in a
timely manner; as for property quality issues reported by the property
owners during the inspection, we will liaise with the construction unit to
follow up. The case can be closed only after being inspected by the
owners. For material cases or claims, we will seek for legal department
and the responsible unit’s advice to properly resolve the problems.

To fulfil the commitment to customers, the Group’s property
development business strictly tracks the construction plan, and
supervises the effective implementation of the plan through regular
meetings, performance appraisal and other means, so as to ensure
that the houses are delivered in accordance with the agreed time.
Before property delivery, design, engineering, marketing, customer
service and other related departments will carry out comprehensive
inspection, including property pre-acceptance, field check in
accordance with construction drawings and the contract, to ensure
that the quality and function of property and ancillary facilities are
consistent with planning.

In this Year, we have not received any major complaint about the
products or after-sales service of the property development business.
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ERRBREE
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KREFIRERTE - BEXBERRNERESRIIZTLE
e BEWRESBPIMF RBES S » UK
ORZ PR c H > SHHETREHIRY
MEEEMA > KPR HENE T BUETR
o EETRRSRE DGR - HEAKRRE
RIBEMF RAGRSEBHPINEEELR
R LIZERRRE -
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Customer service and satisfaction (Continued)

The printing business of the Group strictly follows the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests ({ P ZE AN RHMEH E & m Re&%)) and other relevant
laws and regulations. The Group has established the “Control
Procedures of Internal and External Communication Policy”, to collect
customers’ complaints and opinions on product quality, delivery and
service through various channels. The quality control department
performs the inspection and resolves the abnormalities discovered by
customers in time. For the complex product anomalies, the quality
control department coordinates the sales department, the technology
department, the production department, etc. to review customers’
feedback and follow up timely. The Group has not received any returns
or recalls of merchandise during the financial year.

To standardise client satisfaction management, the printing business
has established the “Management Procedures of Customer Satisfaction
Survey and Analysis” and conducts customer satisfaction survey to
understand their opinions and suggestions on the Group’s service
level, technical capability, product quality and delivery capacity. Apart
from identifying the changing trend of customer satisfaction, we also
require relevant departments to follow up and communicate with
customers to continuously increase customer satisfaction.

EmBE (&)
ERERBREE (B)

FAEBEREBRBET(PEARKNMEEE
ERmRER) TR AR BIE(RIEER
ERER) SHE  BRESBERERESTRHRE
mEE X RBELENRFEER - E2
EEBETERRE  MERRAZFRERER
B HERAERNERERER  A2EER
TR EED ~ AT ER ~ EEMSBEIMPIRTE
FEIRERIRE » MEFRE ° R}EBPRAMBFER
BRERENALHMIIETR

AREZELRRESE > MRIEBHE(EL W
EERTHEDNEERER)  HERPABRWEE
B UTRERHAEERBKE - KM
D EREE - REENHENERERSE > #
HERHEESCES - EXAEMIPIRE »
RERERER URFERER WEENRER
Fo
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Product responsibility (Continued) EmEE (&)
Customer service and satisfaction (Continued) ZEERERBHREE (8)
In this Year, the statistics regarding after-sales service of the printing ZAEE » NEBENRIEFFERRFSEBEET
business of the Group are shown as below: T
Year ended Year ended
Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BHEZES"HF BE_T_—F
=B=+—8 —B=+—H
B (i LLEFE IEFE
Complaints received on products and services Number of Complaints 8 39
B B f R AR TS IV 1 R AR B =R
All complaints are dealt promptly. 2T E A MBI NTESRIE
Customer information and privacy protection BEBREERTAERE

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of the security AEBESEERREZTAPNEREE  BAEER
of clients’ product information and privacy. We have implemented the &2 > Bifi{/ABRZ LIEFHESI) ~ (RXEE ﬁ
“Confidential Work Guidelines” and “Written Information Management ER2FE)EHIE » LURBEE P (5 B REFARRE
Procedures” to standardise the protective measures and processes of  EfiERIZ » U EREZELA#Z T ET(EAE
clients’ information and privacy, so as to effectively protect the rights ¥} (FARR) 1561) (BEHE A BIFE 486 %) L 3RE2EIR -
and interests of customers and follows the “Personal Data (Privacy) ZAEESERLNEMEEZE  BEHELE
Ordinance” ({{B A B #} (FARZ) 15 5)/Cap 486) and other relevant laws  BRBIZHEER « HZEETHEEAEREIE
and regulations. The Group respects the privacy and security of EE%LN  BIRETEERRTELEER o HiM
customers. By setting access right for customer information and ¥ RELERNXIEIITHEARE » BRE
carrying out awareness training to employees who have access to IEE T T{EERMNERERE - 1R - EE KA
customer information, we ensure employees are able to protect B > [HLEEBREBEE L o

customers’ information. We designate special personnel to retain the

documents relating to customer information, and strictly manage

computers, account numbers, computer rooms and network used by

employees to prevent information leakage.
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Marketing and promotion compliance

The Group strictly complies with the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({FZE A REMEIE S %)), the Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({F# A RHEFMEIEIZEE)) and other
relevant laws and regulations, strictly reviews the terms and pictures of
information released in the official account and publicity materials, so
as to prevent inaccurate or misleading descriptions of the business,
housing and printing products, and protect customers’ consumer
rights and interests. At the same time, all planning materials for external
image display and marketing activities of the Group are subject to strict
internal review to ensure the compliance of marketing activities and
publicity materials.

Protection of intellectual property rights

The Group strictly complies with the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({# #E A R HEF B @ 1Z7%)), the Copyright Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({2 2 A B H 1 B & /ER# X)), the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FRZE A REME=ZF
7% ) and other related laws and regulations. The group standardises
the application, registration, ownership change and related information
management of intellectual property rights, through signing agreements
for trademark and copyright use, applying patent for our own product
and technology, and consulting internal and external legal experts, etc.
We also avoid infringing others’ trademark right, copyright and patent
right. Meanwhile, the Group provides training for relevant personnel on
an ongoing basis, and monitors the implementation of intellectual
property related systems, so as to ensure the Group’s compliance with
intellectual property management.

EmBE (&)
BHEHEEF

FERERET(PEARANMBEESE) ~ (F
EARHNBEERE) FHE  BARBMHOIA
REER ~ EEMHEAE - BR FETHRESE
% PEHIRBEE  BREKERRNEBRS
KRERGFERE ML > UREZF I HERE
m o Ff > AEBPIEHINERET « EiHAE
ERIFNBIILIBAIHEREL - HEREHES
BIERNE -

A 58 R (R BE R ok B FE (R

FEBBRET(FEARKEMNEHRZE) ~ (F
EARHEMBEEFEZL)  (FEARKENEEF
E)EFERER - AEFHBBEERR - E1FHE
AR  RFFRRA DR E R R EN
ARSEERERE LI REN B EER R
s~ i EE ~ EBEEURERNERSEE -
A BERRILMABIRE SFRRENRE -
EF » AEBHBRASREFENENIESE
EERBNAERBRESE  URRAEETE
EIBEPENBERS EAISARME -
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Anti-corruption

The Group strictly implements anti-corruption policies, complies with
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FRZE A RHEAE
il 3% )), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({FZE A RHEME R FIEERFHRZFE)), the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong ({BF LEEER& 1 51)/Cap 201), the Competition
Ordinance of Hong Kong ({ %t 3 & i »/Cap 619) and other relevant
laws and regulations. By adhering to the integrity principle, we maintain

a just, fair and open business environment.

During this Year, we are not aware of any major violations of laws and
regulations pertaining to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
There were no identified cases of corruption litigation relating to the
Group and our employees.

Anti-corruption management and training

The Group takes integrity and honesty as the foundation of our
business development and established the “Magnus Concordia Group
Code of Conduct” and the “Magnus Concordia Group Whistleblowing
Mechanism” to strictly prohibit any corruptive behaviour. The Group
develops guidelines on anti-corruption in the “Employee Handbook”,
encourages employees to develop professional ethics and to follow the
laws and regulations, and prohibits corrupt practices such as accepting
kickbacks. The suppliers of the printing business of the Group are
required to sign the anti-bribery and anti-corruption statement.
Unethical behavior is controlled through systems and processes, with
the monitor of internal audit department of the Group.

The Group attaches great importance to the education on integrity for
the directors and the employees. We provide “Anti-corruption
Programme — A Guide for Listed Companies” ({ L FFABIHEZHAE
#5457 )) to the directors and the employees, conduct anti-corruption
training, guidance to the new hires on the materials relating to self-
discipline in the “Employee Handbook”, and post the integrity and self-
discipline notice on bulletin boards of the main business segments,
etc., so as to actively promote the corporate culture of integrity and
honesty.
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IRIR HERERERS

Anti-corruption (Continued)
Training on internal integrity

In order to strengthen the awareness of integrity, the printing business
conducts integrity and self-discipline training. The training not only
pointed out the job-related crimes that the employees are likely to
involve and how to prevent such crimes, but also put emphasis on the
integrity requirements for the employees.

R&S (8)
PaER BRI 15
BRICEREN - AEEORIEBRET RS
I o SBITRISH T BTE S RBEE

LR MR » WR%REE THRR
ER -

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery training
REE KR HEEEN
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Anti-corruption (Continued)
Anti-corruption reporting channels

The Group has set up a variety of reporting channels. Whistle-blowers
can report any improper matters within the Group by sending the
“Report Form” to the internal audit department of the Group, emailing
or calling the director of the internal audit department. We will make
reasonable efforts to prevent the leak of reporters’ information. After
receiving the report, the internal audit department of the Group will
conduct further investigation and report to the Audit Committee. For
serious or critical cases, the internal audit department of the Group and
the Audit Committee will report to the Board of Directors at earliest
convenience, and the Board of Directors will discuss and determine the
recommendations for further handling. Serious cases will be passed to
relevant authorities for investigation.

Details of the anti-corruption training provided by the Group during the
year are as follows:

R&5 (48)
REFRHRE

AEBRE T ZRBWRRE - BWATLLUESE
BHE(BREB) EEERNIETE - BEE
MR ERBE BN R RERRE
EAFEEE > BB SEMELES I LR
ABMARR EENE B HERERSER > §
E—DTRREER TE2REZEET - HIX
EXRNERNEZER  EERIHEEREZ
ZEZBRAEFTRS > AEFIIREER
ERZ  FHBRENERSREIAERBIE
M o

FEERAFEREHIREBEENIEEDT

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ranking 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
B T % B —T-—%
=R=+—H =B=+—H =BA=+—H =BA=+—H
B4R ILEFE ILEFE ILEFE IHEFE
Number of trainees Total hours trained (hours)
ZilEE A ZollAREFEL (/)
Director 5 5 10 15
)
Senior Management 5 14 10 15
BAREIEE
Middle Management & General and
technical employees 40 30 80 64

PREEEE—RAKMET
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IRIR HERERERS

Community investment

The Group is actively involved in the community investment activities,
and maintains close relationship with the surrounding communities,
works with those communities to promote mutual development, and
makes contributions to build a harmonious society. Considering the
significant impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the tenants’ operating
conditions this Year, the Group has decided to provide concession to
tenants in Hong Kong, to reduce their financial burden and tie over the
difficulties together.

In this Year, the Group participated in the Dress Casual Day organised
by The Community Chest (a non-government and non-profitable
charitable organization). It was an annual fundraising campaign where
donors can wear casual or featured clothing to work. The money raised
will be used to help those in need.

tERE

FERRIGSETERRETE > BABHERRE
DEME > BT HERRE > sERMEL MY
BR - ZREAFEELHEER N ARIBEZE
2019 BB HRFENEELE  AEEBMUN
BENRXBEREMERRE TES » LURE
HREEaE > HEEBRERH] -

AEE > AERSETHEB DS (—FIFK
FRIFENONESHR 2RO TAmSBER
B kA —B-—F-—ENEEENES > B
EPUZF LERIFEHRE LI > REENE
TRAREBEREAL -

2022 Dress Casual Day label
2022 A EAR B ALAR
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator

Environmental Key Performance Indicator

MfEx | ESG RS EXUE1R
IRIG R AE UG IR

Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
8= #BHE
s TET—F
=B=+—H —HA=1+—H
1518 Bl LEEE LFFE
Greenhouse gas (GHG)
BERE
Total emissions Tonnes of COe 3,163.65 5,068.01
BrsEE M ECiEE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of COe 99.99 113.86
HiEHW (BE—) ME_EtiREE
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes of COe 3,063.65 495415
B (FEE D) Wb EE
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1 and 2) (Revenue) Tonnes of CO,e/ 0.0005 0.001
HK$’000 revenue
BERBIINEE EHE—RHBEZ) (k) M- {tREE
T BT
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1 and 2) (Production) Tonnes of CO,e/Tonnes 0.38 0.60
RERBINEE (BE—RHBETD) (E8) ME—EtiEE WES
Air emissions
EE R E
Nitrogen oxides (“NOXx”) kg 281.12 340.40
EE=k(nt7) T
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) kg 0.56 0.45
iiE=klst) T
Particular matter (“PM”) kg 20.22 24.49
R i T
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator

(Continued)
Environmental Key Performance Indicator IRIBRASRAEISIE (1B)
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
HE HE
—EZC T
=B=+—8 =B=+—H
iR i LLFEE IEFE
Hazardous waste
BEEEEY
Total hazardous waste disposal Tonnes 5.70 3.91
BEREYEERE MR
Intensity of hazardous waste disposal (Revenue) kg/HK$’000 revenue <0.0001 <0.0001
BEBEEYEERE W) Fre/ FHETME
Intensity of hazardous waste disposal (Production) kg/Tonnes 0.85 0.62
BEEEEVRERE (ES) T,/ WES
Non-hazardous waste
REBEEN
Total non-hazardous waste produced Tonnes 743.29 1,818.23
FRELREESEEYR 55
Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (Revenue) Tonnes/HK$'000 revenue 0.0003 0.00083
BEEEVELTE (KH) Mg, F AT e
Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (Production) Tonnes/Tonnes 0.06 0.20
mEBREYELRE (ES) MR, WA B
Non-hazardous waste disposed
EEENESEEY
Domestic waste Tonnes 15.38 21.36
HIEREY) 95
Construction waste Tonnes 305.00 428.00
EEREER NA
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator

(Continued)
Environmental Key Performance Indicator IRIBRASRAEISIE (1B)
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BE BHE
=== T —fF
=A=+—H —A=+—H
151% B LLEFEE EFE
Non-hazardous waste recycled
EEWNESEEY
Paper Tonnes 309.72 1,099.58
#aR i
Metal Tonnes 55.93 175.73
T8 it
Food waste Tonnes 22.96 21.82
B Mg
Wood Tonnes 40.90 71.74
KA L
Earthwork (mud) Tonnes - -
+7 CE+) 145
Discarded electrical appliance Tonnes - -
HREEE 2R M5
Discarded furniture Tonnes - -
HEFRE i
Energy
AEIR
Total consumption MWh 4,106.38 6,473.50
RS S EBS
Electricity MWh 3,765.56 6,064.47
B JER B
Diesel MWh 254.35 277.89
e JKELBF
Unleaded petrol MWh 117.63 131.13
AR JKELBF
Energy consumption intensity (Revenue) MWh/HK$’000 revenue 0.0006 0.0008
AERHFEZRE (Ww) KR/ TRl
Energy consumption intensity (Production) MWh/Tonnes 0.51 0.79
RERHERE (E2) JKEFMEES
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator

FftE% | ESG RS AEIE1R (18)

(Continued)
Environmental Key Performance Indicator IRIB AR A SEIEIE (48)
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
HE HE
—EZC T
=B=+—8 =B=+—H
iR i LLFEE IEFE
Water
KER
Water consumption m?3 74,714.36 141,146.26
HRKE IFHK
Water consumption intensity (Revenue) m3/HK$’000 revenue 0.01 0.02
KB E (Wam) IHK TR
Water consumption intensity (Production) m?3/Tonnes 10.01 14.74
EXBE (ES) MR WEES
Packaging materials
I
Packaging material consumption Tonnes 56.33 264.85
BEMEUHFERS MR
Plastic bag and tape Tonnes 5.88 32.44
BREKER MR
Paper box Tonnes 50.45 232.41
Fiiic] g
Packaging material consumption density (Production) Tonnes/Tonnes of 0.11 0.04
production
BEMERTE (E8) Mg, MEE S
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator
(Continued)

Scope of environmental data collection

Environmental data was collected from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022,
covering the Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong, Zigong Zhongzhi
Cultural Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. and Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou
Midas Printing Limited.

Notes to environmental data and coefficients

1)  GHG emissions (Scope 1) mainly come from the primary energy
consumption of the fixed equipment and vehicles, while GHG
emissions (Scope 2) mainly originate from consumption of
electricity. The above data is sourced from relevant fee bills and
administrative ledgers. GHG factors for domestic power grid are
subject to the 2019 Baseline Emission Factors of Emission
Reduction Project for Regional Power Grids in China issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic
of China. GHG factors for other energy categories are subject to
the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the
Stock Exchange.

2) In this Year, energy consumed by the Group include fuel
consumed by fixed equipment, official vehicles and purchased
electricity. The above data is from relevant fee bills and
administrative ledgers; the energy consumption coefficients are
subject to conversion factors provided by the Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange
and the GB/T 2589-2020 General Rules for Calculation of the
Comprehensive Energy Consumption issued by the
Standardization Administration of the State Administration of
Market Regulation of the People’s Republic of China.
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator
(Continued)

Notes to environmental data and coefficients
(Continued)

3)

The Group mainly uses municipal tap water and the above data
is collected from water bills, financial reimbursement records and
administrative ledgers.

Production intensity data covers Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou
Midas Printing Limited. Revenue intensity data covers the
Group’s Hong Kong headquarter and Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural
Tourism Investment Co. Ltd. The revenue density data adopts
the total revenue minus the printing business revenue as the
denominator.

In this Year, the decrease in the number and usage of official
vehicles of the Group, and the increase in the proportion of
outsourcing production of printing business, led to a significant
decrease in direct energy usage, GHG emissions (Scope 1 & 2)
and water consumption. For the property development business,
some projects have been delivered, while the remaining projects
are in a later stage of construction, resulting in a significant
reduction in the weight of construction waste.

FftE% | ESG RS AEIE1R (18)

IRIGERELAREERA (B)

£ K EEATHEAMA  BIRIE
AKX E  BSRNERRTRA
RESTSE o

EETENRBEEREAEREEREDE
NFHBRAE - WAZREHEESLEE
AEEEABEKREETEXCRERE
BRAT - WAREHFEFBBUWALR
ERIZEBBAESDEEE o

TEE  AEBAFERHERERAER
D REDRIZEF N L B ERE
SERFEAE  RERBEIHINE (BE—X
D) RAKETRBERK - MEERER
BAOEEERNVET  FIHBEBENER
BREAMSE  BRERERMEERBER

AP
Do
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(Continued)

Social Key Performance Indicator L ERARERUEE
Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
BE_ZE-_— BT —F
A B A e AR =B=+—HLtFE =B=+—HLFE

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, age group, geographical region and employment type

B1.1#21%5! « FE4HR  WERERERE RSB

Number of Number of
employees Proportion employees Proportion
BT A &L BT A# f&5EE
By gender Male 110 46.41% 253 56.22%
tqullE-lay B
Female 127 53.59% 197 43.78%
g
By age group 20 and below 1 0.42% 4 0.89%
HERAERBI D 20BRAH
21-30 30 12.66% 55 12.22%
21-307%%
31-40 86 36.29% 154 34.22%
31-40%%
41-50 102 43.04% 189 42.00%
41-5075%
51-60 18 7.59% 44 9.78%
51-605%
Above 60 0 0% 4 0.89%
60 &
By geographical region Mainland China 208 87.77% 420 93.33%
B TIEFRTTHEI 7 R [ P 3
Hong Kong 28 11.81% 29 6.44%
O
Overseas 1 0.42% 1 0.23%
BIME
By employment type Full-time 237 100% 448 99.56%
EREHLEI D B
Contractor 0 0% 2 0.44%
=5
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator Fit$% 1 ESG RASRERUISIZE (48)
(Continued)

Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued) HERABETIEIE (88)
Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
S — E_E T —F
RASRAEIEIZ =BA=1+—HLEE —A=1+—HIFE

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

B1.2#21% 5!  F#c4HR - ER DHEERKLLER

Number of Number of
employees employees
leaving Turnover leaving Turnover
employment rate employment rate
MRANEL P = MRANEL MRE
By gender Male 208 65.41% 289 53.32%
tcquRallE-lbay C
Female 132 50.77% 238 54.71%
g
By age group 20 and below 11 91.67% 57 93.44%
HERAERIEI D 20 H
21-30 55 62.50% 228 80.57%
21-307%
31-40 119 58.62% 132 46.15%
31-407%%
41-50 117 53.42% 94 33.22%
41-505%
51-60 33 64.71% 16 26.67%
51-6075%
Above 60 5 100% 0 0.00%
603 £
By geographical region Mainland China 333 61.55% 526 55.60%
B TIEFRTT B R B A 3
Hong Kong 7 19.44% 1 3.33%
BB
Overseas 0 0% 0 0.00%
I E
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(Continued)

Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued)

Key performance indicator

Fft % | ESG RS AEXIEIR (8

T ERREER (8)

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021

(S, HEZZ " —4F

RS A NIRRT =B=+—HLFE =B=+—HLFE
B2 Health and Safety
B2fZEHE%Z2E
Work-related fatalities 0 0
A TIETHAZL
Lost days due to work injuries 64 4
RITEEEINIIEEH
No. of people participating in general health check 0 10
SHETBREREEBRAY
No. of persons participating in occupational health check 58 77
S BAR R ERAS IR A L
Number of fire drill preparation/execution 2 3
2EUEE B TEE,ITRE
Attendance at fire drill preparation/execution 36 371
ZEUHEBTEE,ITAR
Number of safety training preparation/execution 26 38

Z2EIFEE BITRE
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(Continued)

Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued)

Key performance indicator

FRERAEIEIR

FftEk | ESG RASREXUIEIE (48)

L ERAREERE (8)

3 —

=ZA=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021

(BT —F

—B=+—HILEE

B3.1&B3.2 The percentage of employees trained ad average training hours per employee by gender and ranking

category

B3.1&B3.2 &R RS ZIES B 97 LE R =i TF396F K

Average Average
Percentage training Percentage training
of trained hours per of trained hours per
Category employees employee employees employee
ZilEE A5 ZilEE A9ZFE
#8551 BoLE BFES BOLE BFEX
By gender Male 60.61% 62.15 71.15% 19.40
b7g eI o) B
Female 56.09% 51.23 71.57% 14.36
7
By ranking Senior Management 71.21% 22.85 21.74% 1.39
AR E BAREERE
Middle Management 85.06% 17.60 35.43% 1.80
iR EEE
General and Technical Staff 83.51% 110.82 96.03% 26.87
—feREMmE T
B5 Number of suppliers by geographical region
B5 %t E & S HHERHE
By geographical region Mainland China 2,767 2,747
HEREEEPEEEID (X) FEAH
Hong Kong 22 23
HEME
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator Fi% 1 ESG BASBERISIZE (48)
(Continued)

Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued) T ERABEVIEIE (B8)

Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021

(S, HEZZZT—F
RASRAERIEIR =A=+—HLEE —A=+—HLHFE

B6 Product Responsibility
B6 EmEE
Product recalls due to health and safety issues 0 0
RZe 2 B (2 B2 I8 T 7B BN 2 Sh AR N
Complaints related to product and service (Printing business) 8 39

BRIE R R ARSI 488 (ENRIZERS)
Complaints related to product and service
(Property development business) 0 0

BREMMIRBIIRFEE WFEERETR)

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TRES
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Company and its employees 0 0
FIEHH AR REEBE T EBTALEBENE SRR

Total Total

Trained training Trained training

Anti-corruption training employees hours employees hours

R&sE RilEEAE EZNEFEH ZIEEAE BEZEFE

Anti-corruption training provided to directors 5 10 5 15
mESREENRESEI

Anti-corruption training provided = Senior Management 5 10 14 15

to employees SR EIEE
mETRENRESEN Middle Management & General 40 80 30 64

and Technical Staff
FAREIEE R —RERIET
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator
(Continued)

Scope of social data collection

Social data collected from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 was included
in this ESG report, covering the Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong,
Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism Investment Co. Ltd. and Guangdong
Boluo Yuanzhou Midas Printing Limited.

Notes to social data and coefficients

1) The formula for calculating the B1.2 employee turnover rate is:
employee turnover ratio = the number of leaving employees
during the year / (the number of employees at the beginning of
the year + the number of entering employees during the year).

2)  The formula for calculating the percentage of B3.1 trained
employees in the Group is: percentage of trained employees =
number of trained employees during the year/number of
employees at the end of the year. The formula for B3.2 trained
hours per person is: number of trained hours per person = total
trained hours/number of employees at the end of the year.

G HBREEE

HEHERE T —FNF—HE_Z " " &
—B=+—H; WEHESEAERSTEEI
BEPEXERFRESRATMER S B ER
ENENEENFEBRAT] o

& R B AR A

1) K%ﬁ%m 2BITRARERNARNS !
IR E=-KFHBREAE (F)
EEA%+$¢A%EEA@%

2) AEEFEBIAXZIESAEDLENANS !
ZillEEBDLE=-BEZFRZIEEA
B/ EREEAH > B32 AHZHFHA
XA AR =BZI)EEF
REEANE -
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content

Index

ESG indicator

51) %5l

MEN(IRE - g RERBSEEE

Chapter/Disclosure

IRIR - HEREBIER EHIHBEAD

A1 General disclosure Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant laws and Environmental
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

A1 —fRiRE BRBERKBERBIIN - MKKRIMNEES - BERBZEE IRIR
MNESXSENBRRETETABEALENERE R KRR
&}

Al1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Appendix | ESG Key

Performance Indicator

BE LR R AR R HE I B o FiE% | ESG RARABERIERR

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greebhouse gas Appendix | ESG Key
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit Performance Indicator
of production volume, per facility).
B (BE1) RERERE EE2) AERABHINE (UWEETE) & (W Mtk ESGRAREMIER
BA)ZE (MUSESEN - §IERME)

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and where appropriate, Appendix | ESG Key
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Performance Indicator
FREAXEEREEYRE UWsHE) k(MEBER) BE MUSEEE ikl ESGRARGEVIER
fil ~ BIERIEE) ©

Al14 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Appendix | ESG Key
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Performance Indicator
FRELXEEREEYQE (UWEE) k(NMEBER) BE MUBSESE ikl ESGRAREVIER
il ~ BIERMETE) o

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Environmental
them.
HPrET LAV 2 B IR Fe % B iE L B IRPRERERAY 2P BR o ficpes

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Environmental
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
HEIREASREEEEYNG % BRI INBEEERS IRIE
ERE L B IRFRERENAY L BR o
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Index (Continued)

ESG indicator

51) &5l (&)

Chapter/Disclosure

IRIR ~ HHERERIEE B IRBEANE

A2 General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water Environmental
and other raw materials.

A2—fRiREE BRERER (S1F5ER  KEEMBEMR) BIBES o IRIR

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, Appendix | ESG Key
gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of Performance Indicator
production volume, per facility).
RERISNERE KR FEEER (NE - foUh) L2 UUTE Kk ESGRARENIEE
TEEE) RBE (U SESEN - 8IBRFE) o

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production Appendix | ESG Key
volume, per facility). Performance Indicator
MIEKERBE WUSESEN - BIEXRMESE) ° FfEx | ESG RASRAERGERR

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to Environmental
achieve them.
e RN & B IR KA ER S B AZPRIRERRY A B8R o IRIR

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit Environmental
for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
HESREGE AR L BT AR UK INAKGEER  IRIE
FEDELE B RPTERERI B ER o

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, Appendix | ESG Key

A3 General disclosure

A3—RIKER
A3.1

A4 General disclosure

Ad—RIE

A4.1

if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

BUpL P A B EEMEIARE (WUMESHE) & (WNER) 84 EB 5= o
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
BREIT ANHIRIE R R AE RIS BEART ERIBER o

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

i E R EHIRE R ARE RN EAZERERNEIEEHTE
BI1TE o

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

WAl R EH AR EEHETAEEXENEAQBEEREEN
R o

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

HRE A RAEEHBETAEELENEAREERET 0 KEH
178 o
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Environmental

218
Environmental

RIE

Environmental

RS

Environmental

RIS
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content
Index (Continued)

ESG indicator
IRIE - B RERIEE

51) &5l (&)

MEN(IRE - g RERBSEEE

Chapter/Disclosure

B REAR

B1 General disclosure

B1—ARiREE

B2 General disclosure

B2—fiKE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

148

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

BRIETIN K R e ~ BRI A B ~ TIERF &0~ RAR ~
b~ RIE\RUREMEFBERENNBREETHETARE
AR E R R GINERS o

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or
part-time), age group and geographical region.

MR~ BEELE (N BERE) - FRAN e DNEELR
B o

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

MR ERERIR M ERDIEERAILE o

TEHE S5
==Y

O |

C

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.
BREZE2TERIERGRERERRHELBENBERRETH
BT ANBEATENERDERERRBIRNER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
past three years including the reporting year.

BE=F (BEERFE) SFRATUTHRIIABKRIEE -

Lost days due to work injury.

AITEELATIIFRE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted
and how they are implemented and monitored.

HE PR ER AN AV IR 25 (R FR B 2 48 IARABRARIT R BEZR 5% o

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B KB DB R A A

Employment and labour
practices

BRERFLER

Employment and labour
practices
EERELTER

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
Pk | ESGRARE N E R
=

Occupational safety and
health

BWEL D BRER

Occupational safety and
health

T2 o B{RER
Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
Bk | ESG BARABRISIR
Occupational safety and
health

T2 o B{RER
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content
Index (Continued)

ESG indicator

51) &5l (&)

MEI(IRE - g RERBEEE

Chapter/Disclosure

IRIR ~ HHERERIEE B IRBEANE

B3 General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Employee development
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. and training

B3—fRiKE BRAEESRIT TEMENMM R ASRIEER o MutiBiIES) BREZEIE

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Employee development
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). and training
BERREELER (NEREEE - PREER) A9NZiIEER EEZEERE
paN=r

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Employee development

B4 General disclosure

B4—fiKE

B4.1

B4.2

B5 General disclosure

B5—f%ikE

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

employee category.

MR EELERE D » SR EETMRHINTFIIRFEL o
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRI L E T HIE TMB R RETHET ABERATENIER
ERRROIBER

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.

AR s RER B HIAVTE M LUBE R 2 T Keog g5 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

TR IRER B RRERAERIE RPN S5

Policies on managing the environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

BIRMHFEENIRIE T B RERECE o

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

@ B DI HEREEE o

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

it AR AHEENEL  MERITEREMNNHEEEE » U
RAERARMITREE SR 5% ©

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A AR HEESERENIRE T EREERIIER > MUkiER
HITKREEZR A ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - — & =~ — 43R

and training
BEZEREKE
Labour standards

Labour standards

5 T4
LLabour standards

% T8
Supply chain
management
HAEEEE
Supply chain
management
HIEHEIR
Supply chain
management

HIEiEEE

Supply chain
management
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content MIsEN(ISIE H e REARES
Index (Continued) 5|YZ&5| (48)
ESG indicator Chapter/Disclosure
IRIE « HHERERIEE S IRBEAND
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Supply chain

products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are management

implemented and monitored.
MR REREHRECZ AREERKRBEHNES > LURERIH  (HEEREIE
TRERFE -

B6 General disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and Product responsibility
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.

B6 — AR E BRAPTRRERNBRBNREREZS - BES  REAMEIEEUAR ERER
WA ENBRKRETHETABEARZENEREERRFINE
#} o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Appendix | ESG Key
safety and health reasons. Performance Indicator
BENCEXEREHPRLLEFEIEEMERKNE DL FifE% | ESG RARERGERR
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and Appendix | ESG Key
how they are dealt with. Performance Indicator
BN ERRRBNRFEEUREEHFE - FfEx | ESG RABAERUIERR
B6.3 Description of the practices relating to observing and protecting Product Responsibility
intellectual property rights.
ot B S R AR PR HN B E B RERVIB B o EmBE
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product responsibility
#il B 28T iBIE & EmLBUizst EmEE
B6.5 Description of the consumer data protection and privacy policies, Product responsibility
and how they are implemented and monitored.
HIMEBEEBRMRE RAAREER » URBRHITRER X EmEf
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Index (Continued) 51 &3] (48)

ESG indicator
IRIE - B RERIEE

Chapter/Disclosure

B REAR

B7 General disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

B7 —fRiRE BRAMLEERRE ~ $1R ~ BEFRERBIBERETHETABEKX
FERNERERERROINER
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERMAHETANEEBERH T ESENETHARZHNEE
SRS R ©

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored.
B S E M R R RIZ S > U RAABRARATREEER 5% o

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
employees.
MEEKESRMENRE5IEIRHEL

B8 General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.

B8 —f%iNE E%%LMiE’,Q,LUET%@M EFTEtEEENRRAER ZBEET
& M) B BER
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,

labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEEE(WMEE  RREEE S LIER@2F Xt 85) -
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

A IHEFMBABER (MNEILFR) -

Anti-corruption

R85

Anti-corruption

k&S
Anti-corruption

R&E5
Anti-corruption

R&5

Community investment
HERSE

Community investment
HERE

Community investment

Hekrs
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Report of the Directors

EFSOHREE

The Board presents the report of the directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2022.

Business Review

The information on business review is set out in the Management and
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 24 of this annual report. Such
discussion forms part of this “Report of the Directors”.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and the British Virgin Islands. The Group is primarily
engaged in property development, manufacturing and trading of
printed products, property investment and treasury business. The
principal activities and other details of the principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by business lines
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 178 to 284 of this
annual report.

Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Particulars of Principal Properties

Particulars of principal investment properties and properties under
development held by the Group as at 31 March 2022 are set out on
pages 285 to 287 of this annual report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the past five financial years is set out on page 288 of this annual
report.

EXgEREEFEREZERARTRAN
BRrEI(MB T AEE)BE_ST__F=1
=T HUEFEZRERGEEUBRE -

5[0l B8

$BEBNBERNAERE UEUEL EE
BHBEDH - R RHEAS (EEUREE
Z—85 -

EEXEB RS

AAvA—ERESEEEMRL 2 RERERA
BINMEFERBABNEE « PEIAMEREERE
ZEEMI c REBRFENREMELR  HIRIE
MmAEEMEE VMEREREHER - BRIE
WB AR Z FBE£=HRAMBFBHN G ST HR
=HIEE4T ©

REBMPAREEZ RIBINERLG S 532 5
WER RS TEIREMIEE4 o

EE Rk
BE_ZE_"F-HA-—t+—HIFEAEEE
EHNAERE1TSE 284 BV IR AT mE ©
g B

EFECRRATERRNBE_ST__F=
=t+—HUEFEZRPRE -

FEMEEH
AEEN - F-_G=A=+—BFFEZIE

REVERERTYEZENFHNEFRS
285F 287 H ©

FATEEEE

AEBRAAEVREE 2 2 EHREERSEN
BHPAFEIRFE288E ©
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E5THRES

Major Suppliers and Customers

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 72%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 46%.

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the total sales for the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

Relationship with Suppliers and Customers

The Group establishes long-term cooperation relationships with
reputable suppliers within the industries. The Group implements a
series of procurement management systems and control procedures
S0 as to select suppliers in a prudent manner.

The Group keeps good relationship and maintains effective
communication mechanisms with its customers. This is to ensure that
the Group is well aware of all customers’ requirements or feedbacks
on a timely basis and provide high quality services to its customers.

Share Capital

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Company’s Article of Association, share premium,
other reserve and contributed surplus of the Company are available for
distribution to ordinary shareholders (after deduction of the
accumulated losses) provided that the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be
paid.

Accordingly, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$32,494,000.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities listed and traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Zeng Zhu

(appointed with effect from 26 August 2021)
Mr. Liang Fan

(appointed with effect from 13 April 2022)
Mr. Li Qing

(resigned with effect from 2 April 2022)
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ho Man
Mr. Xu Jianfeng

(appointed with effect from 26 January 2022)
Mr. Wang Zhengjun

(appointed with effect from 26 January 2022)
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

(resigned with effect from 26 January 2022)
Mr. Hung Kin Man

(resigned with effect from 26 January 2022)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at annual general
meeting and be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Ms. Au and Mr. Ho
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 31 August 2022.

Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at the relevant meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Liang, Mr. Xu and Mr.
Wang will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at annual general
meeting.

The initial term of office of each independent non-executive Director will
be two years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least
once every three years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at the
date of this annual report are set out on pages 26 to 31 of this annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts that are
Significant in relation to the Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a Director or the Director’s connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent in accordance with each
and every guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had or was deemed to have any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year under review, none of the Directors and chief
executives nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the
Company, its specified undertaking or any of its associated
corporations.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of persons in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of the MRAEREEiBRZIF
Company
Aggregate Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Ordinary Interest in the
Shares of the Ordinary
Company Share of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Held Company
P /NS
Fis AT BiBRED
RERME BB B3 #mtE EiEaags BAE DL
Qingda Developments Limited Beneficial owner 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
BEZEBRAE BmEAA
New Element Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“New Element”) ("New Element] ) Szl Nl
Integrity Fund Limited Partnership Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(“Integrity Fund”) (Mntegrity Fund 1) REREE
Kapok Wish Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Kapok Wish”) (TKapok Wish 1) 2l Nl
Xinsheng International Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473! 35.04%
(“Xinsheng International”) RIEGEE 2 i
MBRERZERERAE (HREE)
Zeng Dazhang Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
BAE RS AE 2
Wang Xigiang Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
Fi558 RIEGEE 2
Ally Cosmo Group Limited (“Ally Cosmo”)  Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473! 35.04%
HEHEBBRAR (THEH]) TR AE 2
Li Li Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
=3 R EE 2
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Aggregate Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Ordinary Interest in the
Shares of the Ordinary
Company Share of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Held Company
IAF]
FR¥E A AFE] BBz
ReREE,EiE B #mttE EiBAEE BABESL
Juye Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Juye Investments”) SEREE R
ExKRERRRE ((EXLE))
Chen Liying Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
W fF58 RIEGEE 2
Shining Orient Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473! 35.04%
(“Shining Orient”) (Shining Orient J) TP AE 2
Pioneer Fund Limited Partnership Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(“Pioneer Fund”) (Pioneer Fund J) SEGEEZ Ea
Hong Kong Huixin Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473! 35.04%
(“Hong Kong Huixin”) TP AE 2 R
HELEERERRLE (HLEE))
Higher Cycle Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(“Higher Cycle”) (MHigher Cycle]) 2l N
SFund International Investment Fund Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
Management Limited REGEEZ Bm
(“SFund International”)
ENEZBERREREESEERRAT
(TEMNEZBER)
Luso International Banking Limited Security interest in the shares 2,025,303,473? 35.04%
(“Luso International”) NP i
RPIEIRRERTT (DRPIRIRE )
Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Beneficial owner 1,618,143,724° 28.00%
Company Limited BmEBEA
SR REEER B R AT
Xu Ruigiao Interest of a controlled corporation 1,618,143,724° 28.00%
RIns REGIEE AR
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Notes:

1. Such interests represented 35.04% of the issued share capital of the Company
owned by Qingda Developments Limited, a company wholly-owned by New
Element, which is in turn wholly-owned by Integrity Fund. The limited partner of
Integrity Fund is Xinsheng International, which is owned 50% by Mr. Zeng Dazhang
and 50% by Mr. Wang Xigiang. The general partner of Integrity Fund is Kapok Wish.
Kapok Wish is owned as to 30% by Ally Cosmo, 30% by Juye Investments and
40% by Shining Orient. Ally Cosmo is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Li, and Juye
Investments is wholly-owned by Ms. Chen Liying. Shining Orient is wholly-owned by
Pioneer Fund. The limited partner of Pioneer Fund is Hong Kong Huixin, which is
wholly-owned by SFund International. The general partner of Pioneer Fund is Higher
Cycle, which is wholly-owned by SFund International. SFund International is wholly-
owned by Guangzhou Huiyin Tianyue Equity Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd
(“Huiyin”). Huiyin is wholly-owned by Guangzhou Technology Financial Innovation
Investment Holdings Co. Ltd. (“Guangzhou Technology”). Guangzhou Technology is
wholly-owned by Guangzhou Industrial Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Industrial”). Guangzhou Industrial is wholly-owned by Guangzhou City
Construction Investment Group Co. Ltd, which is a state-owned enterprise of the
People Republic of China. Accordingly, all of the abovementioned parties were
deemed to be interested in the interests owned by Qingda Developments Limited
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. Luso International is interested in 2,025,303,473 shares in its capacity as a person
having a security interest in the shares.

3. Such interests represented 28.00% of the issued share capital of the Company
owned by Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Company Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Ms. Xu Ruigiao. Accordingly, Ms. Xu Ruigiao is deemed to be
interested in the interests owned by Huijin Dingsheng International Holding
Company Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 March 2022, there was no other person who was recorded in
the register of the Company as having interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

160 Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B4 A S ER&H B R A 7

ZERGEERBABERRARATBEZARATE
BITHR A 235.04% BEEEEABMR QS HNew
Element 2 & #745 > M New Element 8l 5 Integrity Fund
2E¥EA o Integrity Fund 2B R & B A B ERERE (B
BAREIE R T IRRAE D RIS 50% K 50% 1) ©
Integrity Fund 2 & 18 & $ A % Kapok Wish ° Kapok
Wish 5 B 85 ~ B 2 #& & K Shining Orient 7> B! # &
30% ~ 30% K 40% 1% - MiEMHEBL T2 EHER >
MEXRERRFBLLTE2EBHEE o Shining Orient
Pioneer Fund & & # 7% ° Pioneer FundZBR&EZ A5
BHLTEZ (HENESEKEEERR) © Pioneer Fund 2

BE A AHigher Cycle (HEMNE SRR 2 &%
A) o EMNEZEFEH Guangzhou Huiyin Tianyue Equity
Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd (THuiyin)) & &
# B ° Huiyin BB Guangzhou Technology Financial
Innovation Investment Holdings Co. Ltd. (FGuangzhou
Technologyl) & & ¥ A& ° Guangzhou Technology H
Guangzhou Industrial Investment Fund Management
Co., Ltd. (TGuangzhou Industrial)) %2 & # Ao
Guangzhou Industrial FH Guangzhou City Construction
Investment Group Co. Ltd (& # A REMEEE %)
2EES c Jlt > RIBFFSRAERHIBEXVE > Lt
BERUEEARNEESERERARRAZRETES

4l 2t

i o

JERPIEIFR AL 2,025,303,473 B B 19 2 4B 1 48 2 T
BZERMEL

ZERDEENHESRRERERERADESZ
KRB B ETRAZ28.00% » EdREERERER
ABREFHBRLE2EREA - Bt - RIEEF KA
HBIEXVE > FInB R LW A AN ESRERRER
BRABHERE Z Em T A °

PR EXPRiEEE SN AMEEAAN T
FZRA=1T—0 ' BXRTHERAELMArCH
BEAMALFAE TR ZRNNERRND &
A BMIRER S RIERBIEXVEE2 %30
BZIRRARATIREE > WIRFESF KGR
BISEXVERE336IFRERE LI Bt~ E5C o



Report of the Directors

EFSOHREE

Controlling Shareholder’s Interest in ERRIRRR SNz R

Contracts

There was no contract of significance between the Company or any of ~ AFERKLEEARFRHERLLE > AT S EEEMH
its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder of the Company or any  B/A B EERNATIEIG GRS EE AN B AT
of its subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual  FJIfFAIERKEL] ©

report.

Share Option Scheme

RERRtEstE

A summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the ZAAT ZEERR#ETE) (T%t2)) MEHIIWT -

“Scheme”) is set out as follows:

1. Purpose:

28y :

2. Participants:

BHE

W

3. Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme and percentage of the
issued share capital that it represents as at
the date of this annual report:

RIEZET 8 A 1T 2 RN AR B H I AR F 3R
BHEAPRMG 2 BE8ITRAB DL -

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant:

SHR2REVERBRIELR

To give incentive to Directors, employees or business consultants of
the Group and any other party as approved under the Scheme.
MTYAEECES - BEENEBBERMNZt 2 EZFAEMAL
5 o

Including, inter alia, Directors, employees or business consultants of
the Group.
BIE (EhEiE) AERZES « BENERKERM -

220,720,827 ordinary shares are available for issue under the
Scheme, representing approximately 3.82% of the issued share
capital as at the date of this annual report.

RIEZ T8I B] F8517220,720,827 L iEA% » HHERARERBED
BITIRANEY 3.82% ©

The maximum number of shares issuable under options granted to
each eligible participant in accordance with the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company (or such other percentage as may from time to time be
permitted under the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations) at any time. Any further grant is subject to the
shareholders’ approval in general meeting with the participant and the
close associates of such participant abstaining from voting.

RIFEZ AR TEAERSBENERENER 12188 BB
BT REROEBBRPARBEN MBS ETRAN 1% (3 L
HARFBEMBERERERAREST 2 BREMB D) o £
AE—FPRLEFRENREAG CHEEZSEERZ2HEN
EERMBANNRREZERHOIMEE ©
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B Period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option:

RIERE R AR IR < FAR

6. Amount payable on acceptance of an option
and the period within which payments shall be
made:

RN IR R Z FUR R AT RUAAMR

7. The basis of determining the exercise price:

TEEEEEE

8.  The remaining life of the Scheme:

Zet BB ERFH -

An option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the
period, commencing on the date of offer for option (the “Offer Date”)
(which must be a business day) and in any event such period must
not be more than 10 years from the Offer Date, subject to any
restrictions or the minimum holding periods or conditions (including
but not limited to any performance targets or the time required for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised) on the
exercise of the options as the committee, which is delegated with the
powers of the Directors to administer the Scheme, in its absolute
discretion may determine. No performance target is expressly
specified in the Scheme.

ARARIRHREREE IR (HIR B (WEREER) RIRR
BERFITEERE AR - I MmN fo] - B REEARI NS BB HLIE B ARE st 1
FoWEREEREERZF CZEEMITHEBREDERNIFR
E 2 ERIPR IS R IE A RS R G (BIEERRNERRIBIER
HIITEAIRE A B 2 F5IR) FriRIR o &5t 81 REAFERPA
EAIRITFELR o

No share option has been granted since the date of adoption of the
Scheme on 29 August 2012.

BZER _E—FN\BZ+NBERME > BEEDEmER
T o

HK$1.00 payable to the Company upon acceptance of option which
should be taken up within 28 days from the Offer Date.

FEIR AR ELHLIX B AR 28 RNEAR » MIRME RS FA25)1.00
BT e

No less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the Offer Date (which must be a trading day); (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the Offer Date (which must be a trading day);
and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

TMER T =Bz R85 | (MRS ARERCHRBE (WA
AP H) RAABRKRM 2 WHE ; ()M rEHRERNEE
IR HE (WEARZ S H) AR ER 7 BT RAA B R 2 U
B K(i) = B RN EE o

Valid until 28 August 2022 unless otherwise terminated under the
terms of the Scheme.

BERFHEE-_T_"F)/\B+/\BI  EEREZEERT
LU LERIBRSM o
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On 29 June 2022, the Board announced, upon soon expiration of the
Scheme on 28 August 2022, the proposed adoption of a new share
option scheme. Such scheme will be recommended to the
shareholders of the Company at the 2022 AGM for approval. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 June 2022 for
details.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the section “Share Option Scheme” disclosed above, at no
time during the year under review there subsisted any arrangement to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or its other associated corporations was a party and
the objectives of or one of the objectives of such arrangement are/is to
enable the Directors, their respective spouse or children under the age
of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, its specified undertaking or any of its
associated corporations.

Equity-linked Arrangements

Save as the Scheme disclosed in the above section “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year and subsisted at the end
of the year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Connected Transaction

The Group did not enter into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions during the year which are required to be
disclosed in this annual report pursuant to Rule 14A.49 of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Group’s related party transactions are set out in
note 36 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. None of
such related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction of
the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 33 to 71 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies

With regard to the environmental policies, the Group aims to minimise
the Group’s environmental impact. The Group is committed to
promoting awareness and decisions that contribute to achieving
environmentally sustainable development. The Group will comply fully
with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. We will use fuel,
water and other natural resources efficiently and conservatively. We
recognise this to be a continuous process of improvement and we
seek to actively look for environmentally-friendly options and carry out
environmentally-friendly practices whenever appropriate and possible.

Further details will be disclosed in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company on pages 73 to 151 of this annual
report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Under Article 179 of the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his/her favour, or in which he/
she is acquitted. During the year under review, the Company had taken
out and maintained an insurance in respect of the Directors’ liabilities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.
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Number of Employees and Remuneration
Policy

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed 237 (2021: 450) staff and
workers. The Group provides its employees with benefits including
performance-based bonus, retirement benefits contribution, medical
insurance and staff training. Also, the Company adopted the Scheme
to provide alternative means to align the employees’ career goal with
the Group’s business strategy. Details of the Scheme are set out in the
section “Share Option Scheme” of this annual report.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
employees of the subsidiaries established in Mainland China are
members of the Central Pension Scheme operated by the Mainland
China government. There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the retirement benefits scheme prior
to vesting fully in such contributions) be used to reduce the existing
level of contributions during the year ended 31 March 2022. As at 31
March 2022, no forfeited contribution under the retirement benefits
schemes of the Group is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

The Group’s remuneration policy for its employees is set up and
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board, as authorized by the shareholders in annual
general meeting, having regarded to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Loan Agreement(s) with Covenants Relating
to Specific Performance Obligations of the
Controlling Shareholders

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in respects of the
Company’s bank loan facilities entered into during the year and/or
subsisting at the end of the year, which contain covenants requiring
specific performance obligations of the Company’s controlling
shareholders (such specific performance obligations do not constitute
or form part of any financial guarantees for repayment):

1. On 30 September 2019, the Company, as a guarantor, and
certain of its subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, as borrowers,
entered into a revolving loan facility agreement with a bank, as
the lender, for certain banking facilities with an agreement
amount of up to HK$150 million which is subject to annual review
without a definitive maturity date. Pursuant to the terms of the
revolving loan facility agreement, Qingda and any persons acting
in concert with it shall remain the largest group of shareholders of
the Company at all times during the subsistence of the banking
facility. Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement
dated 30 September 2019.

2. On 7 January 2021, the Company, as the borrower, entered into
a term loan facility agreement with a bank, as the lender, for a
term loan banking facility of HK$160 million, with final maturity
date falling five years from the first utilisation date. Pursuant to
the terms of the loan facility agreement, the Company undertook
to the lender that (i) it shall procure that SFund International shall
directly or indirectly remain as the largest shareholder of Kapok
Wish, and Kapok Wish shall remain as the general partner of
Integrity Fund, and (i) Integrity Fund (which is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Qingda, a
controlling shareholder and the single largest shareholder of the
Company) shall directly or indirectly remain as the largest
shareholder of the Company. Details of the transaction are set
out in the announcement dated 7 January 2021.

166 Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B4 A S ER&H B R A 7

AR R TR E T
252 Bl

R EHARRIF 1321 R ZIREIRE » LAFTo5L
EABERR, IR ERDFENIRITERRE
EERIINEE - ETFHABERELNTHIERRRE
THERNEENZE B ERNEELTE
pREL RN A BB BB R BRI —ED) ¢

1. RIZ-AFNA=+H » &xAF (1FHE
RN REREBEEZETHNERR (fF
AERAN) B—RR1T (FRERAN) LA
TIRITHMET UMBERRZH1.50EBT
ZRIREMMERSR LR ESE D
HR > HASFETUER - REEEREM
MERZZ IR BEREEA-—8TH
AIRIRITREFENBAE-—EHEF AT
NEZBRARRAR - BRARRZFIFEHN
BfA—Z—NFAA=THZAMA -

2. RIZEZ—F—AtB > xRQF (EaENR
AN) BI—RIR1T EAERAN) SL—IBEH
BRURTRIEI I 1.60EBITZ EHER
MBS RRIBHAERBAEZ B
MAF - RIBEERMERZ ZER > 22
BRERAERENEBREENESEHE
8B #5121 2 Kapok Wish 2 £ K i&
5 > T Kapok Wish 78173 % Integrity Fund 2
EIBEE A Kintegrity Fund (18 AR
BE (KABZERBRERE—RAKE)
IS B Z RN ABIRMD P ES #m) BEZEDN
BEDNARABZRAKE - BRARXZH
EHNARAS_—F—BtRZAH
A o



Report of the Directors

EFSOHREE

Failure to comply with the above requirement will constitute an event of
default under the respective facility agreements. In such case, the
relevant lender stated above may declare the covenants breached and/
or declare all outstanding amounts together with interest accrued and
all other amounts payable by the Company to be immediately due and
payable. As at 31 March 2022, Qingda held 35.04% of the issued
share capital of the Company and is the largest shareholder of the
Company. As such, the above specific performance obligations have
been complied with.

Annual General Meeting

The 2022 annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 31 August 2022 (the “2022 AGM”) at 10:30 a.m. at Room
103, 1/F, Duke of Windsor Social Service Building, 15 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the 2022 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 26 August 2022 to Wednesday, 31 August 2022
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (if the
transfer will be lodged before 15 August 2022) or 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (if the transfer will be
lodged on or after 15 August 2022) not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 25 August 2022.
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Impact of the Novel Coronavirus

The outbreak of a respiratory illness caused by novel coronavirus, or
known as the COVID-19, around the globe has affected many
businesses to different extent. In response to this, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across the regions in which the Group has business
operations. The Group will pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak, manages the business risks and evaluates its
impacts on the financial position and operating results of the Group.

Review of Accounts

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young (“EY”) resigned as the independent auditor of the
Company with effect from 18 October 2021, as the Company could
not reach a consensus with EY on the level of audit and review fees for
the year ending 31 March 2022.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited has been appointed as the new
independent auditor of the Company with effect from 18 October 2021
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of EY and to hold
office until the conclusion of the 2022 AGM.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2022 have been audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
as independent auditor of the Company at the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board of
Magnus Concordia Group Limited

Zeng Zhu
Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B RHEERS

K| MOORE

Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 23753828

www.moore.hk

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders of Magnus Concordia Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Magnus
Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 178 to 284, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FARE T SBIE KM B A RRE T E1E
Valuation of investment properties
KREMENMGE

The Group’s investment properties comprise commercial
and office properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China for
rental earning purposes. Such investment properties were
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period and
the aggregate carrying amount of these investment e
properties as at 31 March 2022 was HK$407 million, which
represented approximately 26.6% of the total assets of the
Group. =
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Qur procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

REYELENREFEE

Obtaining and reviewing the valuation reports prepared
by the external valuers engaged by the Group;
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Assessing and evaluating the external valuers’
qualification, experience, expertise, objectivity and
independence; and
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREEER

FRETEH (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A NES

st E RS EE

Significant estimation is required to determine the fair values
of investment properties, which reflect market conditions at
the end of the reporting period. The Group engaged external
valuers to perform the valuation of these investment
properties as at 31 March 2022.
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Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
challenging the valuation methodologies applied, the key
assumptions and estimates adopted in the valuations,
and obtaining the market evidence used to support the
key inputs.
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Assessing net realisable value of completed properties for sale and properties under development

EXEIHENERMAZFYFEL T LT FE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties for sale amounted
to HK$749 million in aggregate, which represented
approximately 49% of the total assets of the Group. These
properties were stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
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The net realisable value was estimated based on the
expected selling prices, the cost of completion of properties
under development, when applicable, and the costs to be
incurred in selling these properties based on then prevailing
market conditions. The estimation of net realisable value
involved significant judgement. The net realisable value was
assessed by management with reference to expected future
selling prices estimated by an external valuer engaged by

the Group.
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Our procedures in relation to assessing net realisable value of
completed properties for sale and properties under
development included:
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Obtaining and inspecting management’s valuation
assessments and on which (including the expected
future selling prices estimated by the external valuer
engaged by the Group) the management’s assessment
of the net realisable value of the properties under
development for sale and properties held for sale was
based;
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Assessing and evaluating the external valuer’s
qualification, experience, expertise, objectivity and
independence;
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREEER

FRETEIH (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Related disclosures are disclosed in notes 3, 18 and 19 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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Other matter

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 June 2021.

discussing with management and the external valuers
their valuation methodologies; and assessing and
challenging, with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the valuation, including costs to completion and
expected future selling prices, by comparing expected
future selling prices to, where available, recently
transacted prices for similar properties or the prices of
comparable properties located in the vicinity of the
Group’s properties; and
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conducting site visits to properties under development
for sale, to observe the development progress and
evaluating the management’s development budgets
reflected in the latest forecasts with reference to signed
construction contracts and/or unit construction costs of
recently completed projects.
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

B 5t S M IR R AAEN

BfE

HPNER > BRHGSMBREERRSFAFE
R EEF SRR M E RN E R ERR MBS 51
fReE » WWHESERFAREHZIENRS R
REPRBNERRER > HfER BT FS
BE) REXMNER > RIEZINRREREH
thER - AT ERARSHABTEERMEMA
TH FEEBREASE -

BEFREZESKTHFRE  BRERERR(E
BEER)ETHES  ER—EAERREA
TFERTABAE IR o $ASR BRI B A FR AREF SRR S|
2 MRGERACMEBNEMERERE
REMBRRERERBE M BREAEL
ROBRTE » R B RARVIESRIRIL AT AR IFE K o

ERB(E BB ERD ETHEFNBERES > &K
FIER T EZEHE  RIF 7 EXIBEELEE o M
7

o HAMHERNMFFNERMER SR
BREGFAEEAERRANER » Rt
HITEAEFURHESERRE » URER
ZRMBENEHER  FAHMAREY
B - ARIMEFRISES REBR - BE B
BER - EBRERL > SUEBRASESZ
£ AIERBEZRBAMGFEMERNVEANIE
SRR E R B R e R R IERME R
BB RS SRR R RS ©

o  THRAERSEBANAZINES > UKRFTEE
MWET2F > BENLIFY SEEANI
ERRANERERER -

o FEEFEMRATHHERNBEERFR
FEHASIERREN SRR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - — & = — 43R 175



Independent Auditor’s Report
B EEmR S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV e (I

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P05544

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

= A ===
FalmER
For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mok FHET TET
REVENUE A 5 1,587,349 2,140,562
Cost of sales THE A A (1,529,850) (2,023,055)
Gross profit EF 57,499 117,507
Other income, expense and net losses  E MU A ~ = H & E1EFEE 5 (10,404) (12,396)
Selling and marketing expenses THE MEES 1 (57,918) (43,315)
Administrative and other THE R REM&ES T H
operating expenses (52,845) (63,163)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of #2775 GRE) /FiE#[E
stock of properties 6 (417,632) 135
Change in fair value of LB 7 N GEE)
investment properties (40,721) (8,145)
Fair value change of financial assets at AT Est AIBHZ SRIBE
fair value through profit or loss ZATEES) 21 (12,028) 7,491
Operating (loss)/profit & (F518) /mAl 7 (534,049) 13,114
Finance costs HEEH 8 (2,031) (2,618)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRIRAT (B518) & (536,080) 10,496
Income tax credit/(expense) FrERRiKeE,(ZH) 9 266,087 (7,513)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEE (B548) H5H (269,993) 2,983
HK cents HK cent
AL Bl
BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS S5 E A &858 (B18) & F|
PER SHARE 12 (4.67) 0.05
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEXENER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHE7T
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ANEE (B518) H5F (269,993) 2,983
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: Hih2miias
Other comprehensive income that may be BEEHE S S E#H 7 EEEmA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hm2mEmWs
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MBEBINEFR 2 B R EE
foreign operations 23,967 53,729
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Z=AS#E AEEAEERT
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO (E548) Wazs4azE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (246,026) 56,712
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaRBIRRER
31 March 2022
T F=HR=+—H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mok FHET TET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEREEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BmEREE 13 23,332 32,000
Investment properties = L7ES 14 406,717 442,045
Other non-current assets HIEnehsE 16 24,327 29,442
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 454,376 503,487
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories z5 17 18,961 23,735
Properties under development RHES 3 18 455,243 1,742,708
Completed properties for sale B liFEYE 19 294,011 264,099
Accounts receivable FEUR AR =k 20 53,087 51,994
Prepayments, other receivables and FERIE « HAEUERR
other assets REMEE 20 182,090 288,782
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEET ARG
profit or loss SRS E 21 1,628 42,522
Restricted bank balances S R&IRIT4E1F 22 14,934 29,128
Cash and bank balances PERIRT4E7F 22 54,082 149,220
Total current assets EEEMEE 1,074,036 2,592,188
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaR
Accounts payable FETERR 23 161,548 184,830
Accrued charges and other payables et & R EH M EBR 24 52,562 107,074
Contract liabilities a8l 25 99,811 1,023,828
Bank borrowings RITER 26 175,319 219,075
Tax payable IR 337,683 323,544
Lease liabilities HEad 27 1,434 2,195
Total current liabilities BB EAAE 828,357 1,860,546
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEMEERE 245,679 731,642
TOTAL ASSETS LESS MEERREEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 700,055 1,235,129

180 Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B AS B D B R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FERBIRRER
31 March 2022
T F=HB=+—H

2022 2021

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MisE FET FET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE

Deferred tax liabilities A=y == 28 46,413 333,887

Lease liabilities HEaBd 27 1,100 2,674

Total non-current liabilities IERENEELEEE 47,513 336,561

NET ASSETS BETRE 652,542 898,568

EQUITY i

Equity attributable to owners KRB HEE ANELERS

of the Company

Share capital [N 29 577,920 577,920

Reserves (X 30 74,622 320,648

TOTAL EQUITY WETRLEEE 652,542 898,568

Zeng Zhu
B
Director

EF

Liang Fan
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n-F

SENEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE_Z__F-HA=1+—HLEE

Share Share Other Merger Exchange  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
e R ikt Lt Bt ES s
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TR Thn Thn Thn TER Thn
(note i) (note i) (note i
(i) i) (Wi
At 1 Aprl 2020 RZZZEEMA-A 577,920 331,610 4,000 24,000 (31,591) (64,083) 841,856
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - 2,983 2,983
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEEM2 AN |
Bxchange differences on tranlation of S BN ERZEIEE
foreign operations - - - - 53,729 - 53,729
Total comprehensive income for the year  EE2EW RS - - - = 53,729 2,983 56,712
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZE-—&=A=1+-H
k=5_—%MBA-A 571,920 331,610 4,000 24,000 22,138 (61,100) 898,568
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (269,993) (269,993)
Other comprehensive income for the year: EEE M2 ENE :
Bxchange differences on tranlation of ~ E BN ERZEREE
foreign operations - - - - 23,967 - 23,967
Total comprehensive incomey loss) EERERG/ (BB 4E
for the year - - - - 23,967 (269,993) (246,026)
At 31 March 2022 RZB-“E=A=1-H 577,920 331,610* 4,000* 24,000* 46,105* (331,093)* 652,542
Notes: Fft 5

(i)

(i)

182

Pursuant to the special resolution approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company, share premium, other reserve
and contributed surplus of the Company are available for distribution to ordinary
shareholders of the Company (after deduction of the accumulated losses) provided
that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business immediately following the date on which any such distribution is
proposed to be paid.

Other reserve represents the excess of the face value of redeemable preference
shares over the consideration paid upon redemption in 2004.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares of the
acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares

issued for the acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation in 1996.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$74,622,000
(2021: HK$320,648,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / A SEEDER A A

(i)

(i)

RBEARABDRENRARAE B RERRBFAEE

HIEZFHRER  ARBZRMIEE « Hfti#EER

BABR (RIRRFBERR) IHDRFEATDER

Hxﬁx% ERERREZEEREADIKZ BHREART
BEERBEB PR ZEER -

Hitf#EEH 5] BRIESREEBRE ST HEEL
By P9 AU (B 2 088 ©

BHFERDIER —NANNFEEEARAREREA
RN ZEEREAADRAKBEEMETEERZE
BZEE -

ZERHERBEOERAMBERNERNREHE
74,622,000 385% (2= —4F : 320,648,0003&7T) ©



Consolidated Statement
FaRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022

BE_ - _F=A=+—HIEE

of Cash Flows

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5k FHET TET
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBFIRIRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax IR AT (B538) HF (536,080) 10,496
Adjustments for: FHEE
Finance costs MEEA 8 2,031 2,618
Depreciation of property, plant W BEREEITE
and equipment 7 8,205 10,111
Impairment of inventories FERE 7 - 1,158
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of ~ #)2FSRIE, CREREE)
stock of properties 6 417,632 (135)
Reversal of impairment of FEURBR TR Z R (B £5[0]
accounts receivable 7 - (84)
Impairment of prepayment A PIERE 7 - 1,185
Write-down of other non-current assets  EMIERENE & 2 MR 7 6,876 660
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE BERZEER
plant and equipment 2 Wam 5 (2,311) (1,914)
Fair value change of financial assets at @A {EFt AEBTRZ
fair value through profit or loss FTHEEZ AT EED 12,028 (7,491)
Change in fair value of LB N E
investment properties 40,721 3,145
Bank interest income RITHI B WA 5 (457) (1,279)
(51,355) 18,470
Decrease in inventories Z5RD 4,774 18,297
Decrease in properties FaEadasky e
under development 1,086,469 1,359,804
Increase in completed properties for sale B 5t T & & )21 i1 (162,304) (192,849)
Increase in accounts receivable FEUS BR NI A0 (1,093) (2,044)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, A REIE « HEIRERT K&
other receivables and other assets HhEERLD, (En) 116,398 (113,500)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value #&AFET AR Z
through profit or loss SREEE R 28,866 61,006
Decrease in accounts payable FE(TRRFUR (28,935) (7,103)
Decrease in accrued charges and FEst & A & EAESERIUR D
other payables (8,497) (43,270)
Decrease in contract liabilities aHasEL (971,182) (1,039,885)
Cash generated from operations RS EEPTELEIRE 13,141 58,926
Mainland China income tax paid BT Rt IER (29,078) (29,130)
Net cash flows (used in)/from TS (FrA) e
operating activities IREREREE (15,937) 29,796
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A =
EFARERER
For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Mk FHET FET

CASH FLOWS FROM KRETZBFIFRERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for prior year acquisition of a  ghiBFFEEUEE—TE 3

property development business FHES TSR 24 (47,157) -
Net cash outflow from acquisition of IWEE—RM B ATNIRS RN

a subsidiary HEE 31 (1,705) -
Purchases of items of property, BEEYX - MERBEHEUR

plant and equipment and other HtIEme&EEEE

non-current assets (924) (2,454)
Decrease in restricted bank balances SRR TS Z R 15,054 4,020
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME « EKREER

property, plant and equipment ZPrigs1a 3,702 6,027
Interest received BUF 2 457 1,205
Net cash flows (used in)/from BbESEE) (FRE) FRBIRE

investing activities Rt (30,573) 8,798
CASH FLOWS FROM RMEEBFRIRERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIFITER (99,459) (474,721)
Interest paid ELFE (4,866) (11,527)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZ A0 (1,948) (2,166)
New bank borrowings HERITEN 55,240 319,764
Net cash flows used in mEEEFARE R E R

financing activities (51,033) (168,650)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERFSZEMHL FE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (97,543) (130,056)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#IREE®KIEESEEY)

of the year 149,220 265,502
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, FEZREE) > &/ 2558

net 2,405 13,774
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT &FXIREKRIRSZXEY

END OF THE YEAR 54,082 149,220
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERIREZEMEEDS

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated in the 4F &I RRIEH RS

consolidated statement of K R1T4ETF

financial position 22 54,082 149,220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHEZZ__HF=-F=1+—HIFE

2.1

Corporate and group information

Magnus Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Units D & E, 20th Floor, China Overseas Building,
139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) are property development,
manufacturing and trading of printed products, property
investment and treasury business.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$’000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

LNEIKREREN

MAEBERABRLA (TRAE) AR
EREAMBAUKRETEBHEXZMER
A~ (TR ERETZBEREER
8] o A B z 5E it ¥ = BE 4k % Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands > EEBZ FBEEME ATEE
FEFE 578 1395k R EIE M R E 2048 D &
EEfI -

FAB R —FKREEZERAT » ARFKRHE
AT (s TREE)) 2 T 2R EE
APRER - REREERBE - Y%
REAKMBIHER

EPBHRROREEBEEMAE ((EFE
GEAAEG ) BAENEBYHREER
(TEBMHREER)) (BIFMEEBRME
REER - BEBEAER(EBGE
A1) k52 RE) - BB ARG RARER
(REFBBIRBRERR - IRREVF
RIBATES ARG Z EMBENRATE
STEIN » NMB|RRTVIRIRE LA AR
RBRHAEAEIN > AMBFREUET
27 MAABEEEN¥NENEBEREINT
i (F#7T) °
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mEEE

;3
REMBERREEARDNRERNBATE
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]EEK o MBABIEI A AR EZL B ZE
FNERE (BIEEREER) c MAERE
S EAG R E 5 FE T 5 0 2 (0] 2R A LB
REZHEF > BBEENTEEEHRKRER
IR R B A RAEIER (NIRRT AL 1S
IR E S AERSEEIVIR A BE I AURER) -
BIJER{S eI #E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

2.1

186

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHEZZ__HF=-F=1+—HIFE

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?
Amendment to Accounting Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Guideline 5 Accounting for Common Control

Combinations (Revised)’

2 BEERKRIREZEH

FEBEMAFEMBRETE RFAUT
B2 BRMBRSER

EBMBREEN BN « FEEENE
EBGHERE0E . —FER
EBMERSER
BT BBAUHRS
ZRF AR RBEBIE
REERF 16ET A

HEMBRSEN ZE—HF/A
ERl SRR ZtHZ%E
2019 Bk =
BRZEE

RAEFEFRMBEBUMBREEIET Y
FEBXFERBEFENM BRI KRE
B/ SGaV B REFMEREFTETE
EpN-7Z &

2.3 ENEMERKERNERME

2R

FEBURNZFEREMHFRREAUT
BEMERRERBNTRIES] 2B EM
FIRE 2R o

SEMBIRSER RBEAI KGR
1758 &I
BHIE5IEHEIIAR  BAE5/E5 R E
BEHIE S
BEHEE (K1E5T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint enture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use'

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract!

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020"

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact

on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 ERGHEERBEM

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies
Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 EXGETEEREEE (48)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the assets. Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Construction in progress represents costs incurred on buildings
where construction work has not been completed and which,
upon completion, the Group intends to hold for use as property,
plant and equipment. These properties are carried at cost which
include development and construction expenditure incurred and
other direct costs attributable to the development less any
accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction in progress since it is not in use. Upon completion
of the construction, the construction costs are transferred to the
appropriate property, plant and equipment category and
depreciated accordingly.
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2.4 EXGETEEREEE (48)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives at the following annual
rates:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the relevant lease of the
leasehold land on which the
buildings are situated, or 20
to 30 years

QOver the shorter of the term of
the relevant lease, or 20%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 6.7% to 33.3%

Furniture and fixtures and 20.0% to 33.3%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20.0% to 33.3%

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Where the
estimated recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts, the carrying amounts are written down to their
estimated recoverable amounts.

Gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
assets, and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(@ Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Buildings 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

ease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g. a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be of low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the income statement due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 EXGHEERMLT (48)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use rights,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying
assets, professional fees and other attributable costs incurred
during the development period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the normal
operating cycle.

Costs to fulfil a contract comprise the development cost and cost
of land use rights directly related to an existing contract that will
be used to satisfy performance obligations in the future. The
costs to fulfil a contract are recorded in properties under
development if they are expected to be recovered. The amount is
amortised on a systematic basis, consistent with the pattern of
revenue recognition of the contract to which the asset relates.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of completed properties for sale is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale proceeds
received after the end of the reporting period, or, if not yet sold
after the end of the reporting period, by management estimates
based on the prevailing market conditions or reference to a
valuation report from an independent valuer. The relevant costs
include acquisition costs, development expenditure, borrowing
costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to such
properties.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue and income
recognition” below.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B AS B D B R A 7

2.4 EXGETECERETE (48)

BRIFENE

ERIHFEVMERAAKRAIZIFEME
ZBREEIR  ERITHEMEMNTLE
IR A B - AIBHFEZRE 2
RI|BEFRBREG ZHEPAENRIA > B
RBERRRDAREL » ERBFITHENR
MBBEJ/IUGEEMZEERSZEERE
fhETMEE - EER A EW BN - 3
B4 BREREERTREMZEY
RIEEERME ©

RERHMEMEE
NE B R

SREEEDERDE S EH S
MR RATESARMRERENR
AT E AR E -

TREETVIRREEKNDEERNES
WRETREBREURAEEEEZESR
BENEBRI - ETESEEMEND
B9 7 WS R R B A £ R L P LU BR AR R B 5
BEARMEMDZENATRES AR
b > BEBIGRE AT EINR S A (U0
BIA IR AT ESTABENERMEE) 5t8
THEE FTEIEEMEMDAEER
EREREATHEE S ERBUARR 1R
BEBYBRSENF15RIZ T Nk
R AFESD ) P85 BUERE E BY R 57 B 18

B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHEZZ__HF=-F=1+—HIFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.

Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the income statement when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 EXGETEEREEE (48)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

202

policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts
receivable which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities includes accounts payable,
accrued charges and other payables, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than properties
under development, completed properties for sale, inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash— generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting 2.4 ERGHBERBER (48)
policies (Continued)
Related parties R AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: RRFIERT  BRAALTHEAERER R
BT
(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ AREALA—ZATTHZALZEHE
family and that person BURERE > AT

() has control or joint control over the Group; () EHIHERTRAER ;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEEEAFES ; K

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) ATEENEZESEAS;
Group;

or 59
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b)) BEAALABTEUTEAEHENS
applies: B -

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBEAEEBR—S£EN
group; BRERT ;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —EBEAS—EBEGEZE—EBE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of HNEAE -~ B AT TG R M
the other entity); BAR) NEERBREE DR

==

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iy ZEBERAEEAR—FH=H
same third party; HEERZE;

(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —EBEREASFS=-HEENG=E

other entity is an associate of the third entity; y(=E ) ﬁ'ﬁj':'j ﬁ%ﬂjéj A— %:

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZEBAXAEENEAAERR
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity FENERENEERN Z ML
related to the Group; Z BB EFEE ;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person vi) ZERAEMATEALIEG
identified in (a); HEES
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Where a provision is expected to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside income statement, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 EXGETEEREEE (48)

policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at prevailing progressive rates on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less
deductible costs.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 EXGETEEREEE (48)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is recognised when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised goods or service to a customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may transfer over
time or at a point in time.

Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.

Revenue from the sale of goods and scraped materials is
recognised at a point in time when the goods and scraped
materials are transferred and the control has been passed, since
only by the time the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for the goods and scraped materials delivered.

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised when the
properties have been completed and delivered to the buyers and
the Group has a present right to payment and the collection of
the consideration is probable.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant. As a practical expedient, an entity
does not need to adjust the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of a significant financing component if the entity
expects, at contract inception, that the period between when the
entity transfers a promised good or service to a customer and
when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year
or less.

Rental income, net of incentives given to lessees, is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the respective leases.

Gain or loss from treasury business is recognised on the
transaction date when the relevant sale and purchase contracts
are entered into.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries established in Mainland China
are members of the Central Pension Scheme operated by the
Mainland China government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the
Central Pension Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
for the subsidiaries with respect to the Central Pension Scheme
is to meet the required contributions under the Central Pension
Scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the financial
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors as applicable.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes and deferred taxes mainly
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for tax for each entity of the
Group. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these estimates is different
from the amounts that are initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred tax in the financial period in
which such determination is made.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Income taxes and deferred taxes (Continued)

The Group has rebutted the presumption that the carrying
amount of certain investment properties measured at fair value
will be recovered entirely through sale. These investment
properties are held within a business model whose objective is to
consume their economic benefit over time. The related
disclosures are included in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of the Group’s printing business

Management has conducted an impairment review of the CGU of
the Group’s printing business and determined the recoverable
amount of the printing business based on the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

The value-in-use calculation uses cash flow projections based on
the detailed financial budgets approved by management covering
a 5-year period (2021: 7-year period) with an estimated annual
growth rate of 2% (2021: 1%) and the weighted average cost of
capital of 12% (2021: 12%).
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Significant accounting judgements and 3. EAGHHEN KRGS (B8)
estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) et FEERE (B)

Impairment of the Group’s printing business (Continued)

Management estimates the cash flow projections based on
certain assumptions, such as estimated revenue and estimated
margin on earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
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amortisation, expected revenue and the discount rate. This BRI IS ERARBEENMESSRE
evaluation is also subject to changes in factors such as industry BB E o FllBRRUKRYIZE - BE

performance and changes in technology. Estimates and
judgements are applied in determining these assumptions, the
disposal values of the property, plant and equipment and the
pre-tax discount rate.

The carrying amount of printing business’s property, plant and
equipment at 31 March 2022 was approximately HK$20,584,000
(2021: HK$26,597,000) without any impairment recognised
(2021: nil).

Impairment of receivables

The loss allowance for receivables is based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on information including
ageing of the accounts receivable, past repayment history
subsequent settlement status, credit profile of the customers and
on-going business relationship with the relevant customers at the
end of each reporting period. Management also considered
forward-looking information that may impact the customers’
abilities to repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.

Rz HEBEMRATERNEEL
W B Al st AN FUEf o

AT _E=HA=+—H HRIEHKZ
ME -~ B &R EREEL A 20,584,000
BT (ZZF - —4 26,597,000/ 75) » I
ERIEARE(CE_—F 1 8 o

PR IRRYIRIE

FEWRIRR IR B D ERN EN R TE
HBEXNERR AEERSRESHRRE
BEWERTOIRE, « BEEMTER - BERS
BER s EREARIKERBEE R
BEBBEZEN  BBYEFLARR
REEZFRESENEARE - EEER
SHRPIRERER P EERGEERIA
BURTBEIEE KL - DUESHRUEFT(EBITRERE
B -

— = —

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - =& — —FF3 217



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

218

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimates of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, the Group considers information from a variety
of sources, including (i) by reference to independent valuations; (ii)
current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition and location (or subject to different leases or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (i) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the dates of transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iv)
discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable future cash
flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease and other
contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rates for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing
of cash flows. Further details, including the key assumptions
used for fair value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the
carrying amount of investment properties, are given in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group’s historical experience and
the nature of the subject properties, the Group makes estimates
of the selling prices, the costs of completion of properties under
development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the
properties based on the prevailing market conditions to
determine an estimation of the net realisable value.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties for sale
(Continued)

The estimation of net realisable value involved significant
judgement. The net realisable value was assessed by
management with reference to expected future selling prices
estimated by an independent external valuer engaged by the
Group. In respect of expected future selling prices, the valuer
adopted market approach (also known as direct comparison
approach) in the valuation to arrive at the market values (on unit
value basis) of different portions of the subject properties on
completion basis, which is regarded by the valuer to be the most
common method amongst other valuation methods, such as
income approach and cost approach, for property valuation if
adequate market information is available, especially for properties
held for sale. The valuer has made reference to the comparable
sales evidences as well as the actual pre-sale records of the
subject properties as available and made relevant adjustments if
necessary, and assumed different portions of the subject
properties, if not been completed as at the date of valuation,
have been developed and completed.

The same methodology for the assessment of net realisable value
of properties under development and completed properties was
adopted by the Group’s management and the external valuer
engaged by the Group as at 31 March 2021 and 2022. There is
no change in valuation method, basis of valuation or assumptions
behind the valuation, any change in the market prices between
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 is to reflect
the change as observed from the pre-sale records of the subject
properties and/or market data of comparable properties.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties for sale
(Continued)

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may
result in a provision for properties under development and
completed properties for sale. Such provision requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value and provision for
properties in the period in which the estimate is changed will be
adjusted accordingly. The related disclosures are included in
notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of inventories of the printing business

The Group assesses the carrying values of inventories of the
printing business by reviewing the inventory listing and ageing
analysis on a product-by-product basis at each reporting date,
and makes impairment for those obsolete, slow-moving
inventories and items that are no longer suitable for use in
production. Provision for impairment is made by reference to the
latest market value and current market conditions for those
inventories identified. The related disclosures are included in
notes 7 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant accounting judgements and 3. EAGHHIEN KRGS (48)
estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) et FEERE (B)

Mainland China land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs
and other property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property
development business in Mainland China are subject to LAT.
However, the implementation of these taxes varies amongst
various cities in Mainland China and the Group has not finalised
its LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises these liabilities based on management’s
best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact income statement and the provision for
LAT in the period in which such determination is made. The
related disclosures are included in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Segment information
Segment information by business lines

The operating segments of the Group are determined based on
internal reporting to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”) (the executive directors of the Company) for the
purposes of assessing performance and allocating resources.
The internal reporting focuses on the strategic operation and
development of each business unit, of which business units with
similar economic characteristics are organised into an operating
segment for the Group’s CODM to evaluate its performance.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as follows:

Property development

Development, sale and trading of real
estate properties

Printing — Manufacture and sale of printed
products
Property investment - Investment and leasing of real estate
properties
Treasury — Investment and trading of debts,

equity and other instruments
and asset management

Other non-reportable business
activities and operating segments
and corporate not constituting a
reportable segment individually,
together with corporate income
and expense items

Others and corporate

The Group’s CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of earnings or loss before interest
expense and tax (“EBIT” or “LBIT”), representing segment results,
and earnings or loss before interest expense, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA” or “LBITDA”).

Others and corporate segment assets mainly include certain
cash and bank balances, short-term deposits, property, plant
and equipment that are managed on a group basis and the
assets related to other and other unallocated assets.

Others and corporate segment liabilities mainly include certain

bank borrowings that are managed on a group basis and other
unallocated liabilities.
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DERE R (&)

4. Segment information (Continued) 4.

Segment information by business lines

(Continued)

The segment information by business lines is as follows:

REZZINZ2DEER (48)

BREBEINZDEERUMT :

Property Property Others and
development Printing  investment Treasury corporate Total
NEEE ENRl NERE E¥  HtRIH wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEw TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z-E-"#=F=+-H
LLEFE
Segment revenue (note 5) DEUA (fr5E5)
Sales to external customers MINGERHE 1,327,215 248,475 9,067 - 670 1,585,427
Other revenue =RulloN - - - 1,922 - 1,922
Total revenue WAsEER 1,327,215 248,475 9,067 1,922 670 1,587,349
(LBITDA)/EBITDA (LBITDA)/EBITDA (459,211) 10,389 (38,752) (11,200) (27,010) (525,844)
Depreciation e (102) (6,014) (159) - (1,930) (8,205)
Segment results — (LBIT)/EBIT PEEE — (LBT)/ERIT (459,373) 4,375 (38,911) (11,200) (28,940) (534,049)
Finance costs HEER (2,031)
Loss before tax bRiRAIES R (536,080)
Income tax credit FrisiRiEe 266,087
Loss for the year KEEER (269,993)
As at 31 March 2022 RZBZZ%#=RA=t+-H
Total assets BELE 929,019 128,906 436,758 2,531 31,192 1,528,412
Total liablities BIREE 504,709 103,385 42,153 141 135,482 875,870
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DEPEF (B)
Segment information by business lines BEBEIZFEER (8)
(Continued)
The segment information by business lines is as follows: WERZ2H| 2 HEEBERNT - (&)
(Continued)
Other segment information: H D ERE K} :
Property Property Others and
development Printing  investment Treasury corporate Total
NERR E0R) NERE %  HRT st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

2022 “ETCE
Capital expenditures BRTH - 909 - - 15 924
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #)% « BE kR HITE

equipment (102) (6,014) (159) - (1,930) (8,205)
Impairment of stock of properties  #J¥ESZHME (417,632) = = = = (417,632)
Bank interest income RFERA 280 17 5 - 155 457
Fair valus loss on investment properties 13 &%) 7 AT (&8 - - (40,721) = = (40,721)
Fair value loss of financial assets BRATEHAERZ REE

at fair value through profit or loss ZATEBE - - - (12,028) - (12,028)
Net exchange loss ERGEEE (31) (1,552) (31) - (1,053) (2,667)
(Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME \ BERRZEEE

plant and equipment A - 2,311 - - - 2,311
Write down of other non-current assets Eft3EREIE & 2 A = = (5,115) - (1,761) (6,876)
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4. Segment information (Continued)

Segment information by business lines

DERE R (&)

REZZINZ2DEER (48)

(Continued)
The segment information by business lines is as follows: WERZ2H| 2 HEERT - (&
(Continued)
Property Property Others and
development Printing investment Treasury corporate Total
NELR E0R MERE B%  BEfRIH 5]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT TER TER TER TER TER
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z-Z-—%=HF=+—-H
LLERE
Segment revenue (note 5) DEUA (FrsE5)
Sales to external customers MNP P E 1927,950 194,718 10,773 - 1975 2135416
Other revenue Hft\ - - - 5,146 = 5,146
Total revenue WAEEE 1,927,950 194,718 10,778 5,146 1,975 2,140,562
EBITDA/(LBITDA) EBITDA/(LBITDA) 33,659 4,343 4,808 12,606 (82,091) 23,225
Depreciation i (101) (7,527) (159) = (2,324) (10,111)
Segment results — EBIT/LBIT) DELEE — EBT/(LBT) 33,458 (3,184) 4,649 12,606 (34,415) 13,114
Finance costs MEEMR (2,618)
Profit before tax EsRAT A 10,496
Income tax expense FiEiSd (7,519)
Profit for the year KEERF 2,983
As at 31 March 2021 A8 -F=A=1+-AH
Total assets BEAE 2,339,252 152,642 475,451 42,636 85604 3,095,675
Total liabiities BIREE 1,806,585 120,236 52,862 27 217,007 2,197,107
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4.

Segment information by business lines
(Continued)

The segment information by business lines is as follows:

SEER (48)
REBZZINZ2 D EER (&)

BREZZ25I 2 DBERINT @ ()

(Continued)
Other segment information: Hith o &R -
Property Property Others and
development Printing investment Treasury corporate Total
NELE EVR NELE E%  BtRAH 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
2021 -
Capital expenditures BERTH 85 2525 - - 3,024 5,634
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #)% « BERRERE
equipment (101) (7527) (159 - (2324) (10,111)
Impairment of inventories FERE - (1,158) - - - (1,158)
Bank interest income FATHIEWA 260 19 12 199 789 1,279
Fair value loss on investment properties &Y% 7 /AT EEE - - (3,145) - - (3,145)
Fair value gain of financial assets BATES B ZEREE
at fair value through proft or loss ZATHERE - - - 7,491 - 7,491
Net exchange loss ERhnEE (59 (4,349) (68) - (2,681) (7,157)
(Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME \ BERRZEEE
plant and equipment A - 1,914 - - = 1914
Impairment of prepayment RTIEZHE - - - - (1,185) (1,185)
Write down of other non-current asset  EftiEREIEE 2 #iA, - - (660) - - (660)
Reversal of impairment of completed  BRIEEME 7 HEE[E
properties for sale 135 - - - - 135
Reversal of impairment of accounts ~ FEURERF Z AlE R
receivable - 84 - - - 84

Note: Total liabilities of the “Others and corporate” segment includes tax payable
of nil (2021: HK$40,598,000) which relates to the disposal of a discontinued
operation in prior years. Details are disclosed in note 9.
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DEPEF (B8)
Geographical segment information iz o 2R E

KAEEEFEIBEEET - WARER
FREtE RS - BRI RIERSHEEL
REEMMEMEZY - WM E 52 9 &

The business of the Group operates in different geographical
areas. Revenue is presented by the regions where customers are
located. Capital expenditures and non-current assets are

presented by the regions where the assets are located. The BRI -
segment information by geographical area is as follows:
Revenue Capital expenditures
WA =2 ]
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET TET TFHET FAET
Mainland China alEibN175 1,379,357 1,968,038 909 2,083
Hong Kong 58 20,842 25,866 15 3,551
United States of America EEH 105,757 80,825 - -
United Kingdom 1 28,712 20,043 - -
France A 20,174 12,762 - =
Other regions Hithih& 32,507 33,028 - -
1,587,349 2,140,562 924 5,634
Non-current assets
EREEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHET
Mainland China alEipNES 151,710 137,762
Hong Kong 58 302,662 365,719
Other regions HittthE 4 6
454,376 508,487
Information about major customers FERERZEH

During the year, none of the customers (2021: nil) of the Group
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

REFE > BEFAEERTFERERBI

A10% LA E (
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WAUKREMUWA ~ ZH KEE

net losses 1535
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZANT -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEESHZINA
Sale of properties THE Y 1,327,215 1,927,950
Sale of printed products R & ENR ZE G 248,475 194,718
Others Hih 670 1,975
1,576,360 2,124,643
Revenue from other sources HAmZ A
Rental income GiEEAL PN 9,067 10,773
Interest income from financial assets at BATFESNEBmL
fair value through profit or loss ERIEEZF BN 1,922 5,146
10,989 15,919
Total revenue NN 1,587,349 2,140,562
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and
net losses (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(a)

Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 March 2022

1RFEE ()
BEREHZIA

(a)

HOWAER

5. WALUREMUA ~ ZHRE

BE_ZE__F=-H=1+—HLEE

Property Others and
development Printing corporate Total
MEERE NI HthR{TH 4zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FTERT FET F#
Segments 2
Types of goods EmiEn
Sale of properties HEM=E 1,327,215 - - 1,327,215
Sale of printed products ERIER - 248,475 - 248,475
Others Hih - - 670 670
Total revenue from contracts EREHNZ M ALEEE
with customers 1,327,215 248,475 670 1,576,360
Geographical markets* s g *
Mainland China FEIARE 1,327,215 47,022 - 1,374,237
Hong Kong &8 - 14,973 - 14,973
United States of America ESE| - 105,757 - 105,757
United Kingdom FE - 28,712 - 28,712
France & - 20,174 - 20,174
Other countries HMEZR - 31,837 670 32,507
Total revenue from contracts BEREXNZ W AEEE
with customers 1,327,215 248,475 670 1,576,360
Timing of revenue recognition Y A FERFR
Goods transferred at a point RE—FREEEEER
in time 1,327,215 248,475 670 1,576,360
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and
net losses (Continued)

230

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(a)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

EREHZIA (18)

(@ HAIWAER (&)

5. H&)\l—)(&%ﬂﬂl&)\ » TR

BE_T_—S=-HA=+—HILEE

Property Others and
development Printing corporate Total
MELRE Rl ERATER #REt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TERT TET
Segments SE
Types of goods Emfan
Sale of properties HEME 1,927,950 - - 1,927,950
Sale of printed products SHE ENRIE & - 194,718 - 194,718
Others Hit - - 1,975 1,975
Total revenue from contracts EREHNZ WAL
with customers 1,927,950 194,718 1,975 2,124,643
Geographical markets* i g *
Mainland China FEARE 1,927,950 33,635 - 1,961,585
Hong Kong &8 - 16,400 - 16,400
United States of America eS| - 80,825 - 80,825
United Kingdom e - 20,043 - 20,043
France EE - 12,762 - 12,762
Other countries HExR - 31,053 1,975 33,028
Total revenue from contracts BREH 2458
with customers 1,927,950 194,718 1,975 2,124,643
Timing of revenue recognition Y A FEsREF
Goods transferred at a point RE—REEEEER
in time 1,927,950 194,718 1,975 2,124,643
The business of the Group is operated in different geographical REERNEHEEEET - IWAKRE

areas. Revenue is presented by the countries where the customers

are located.
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and
net losses (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when the properties have been completed and delivered to
the buyers and the Group has a present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is probable.
Payment in advance is normally required.

Sale of printed products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
printed products and payment is generally due within 30 to
180 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts
provide customers with volume rebates which give rise to
variable consideration subject to constraint. The rebates
are recognised when the relevant thresholds set out in the
sales agreements are met. The rebates of approximately
HK$5,231,000 in relation to sales of printed products was
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$3,116,000).

5. WALUREMUA ~ ZHRE
*nv—gﬁ(nﬁ)

EREHZIA (58)

(b)
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WAUKREMEA «- ZHKRE
net losses (Continued) 185%E (48)

An analysis of other income, expense and net losses is as

follows:

HMWA ~ ST RERFERRI DT ¢

2022 2021

HK$’°000 HK$'000

F#ET T8t

Bank interest income IRTTAI B WA 457 1,279

Sales of scrap materials e BERS) 437 1,418

Other service income HAARFSUTA 2,244 887
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  MEKRREBER

plant and equipment Z Wis 2,311 1,914
Professional fees incurred for potential EBIEWREEIEESN

acquisitions BHXEER = (363)
Write-down of other non-current assets HMIERBNE E 2 Mo (Hi5E 16)

(note 16) (6,876) (660)
Impairment of prepayment FENFRIBZ R E = (1,185)
Termination benefit costs* IR H Al A (5,840) -
Net exchange loss FEREEFEE (2,667) (7,157)
Contingent acquisition consideration HAFEEERSHERZ

related to business combination in FAUEBE (5E32)

prior year (note 32) - (7,725)
Sundries HHIE (470) (804)

(10,404) (12,396)

It represents the payment for terminating the staff of printing business.

SRR IEENRIZEFEE T 2 7K ©

6. (Impairment)/reversal of impairment of 6. MEFE (RE) SRERE
stock of properties
An analysis of (impairment)/reversal of impairment of stock of YEES GRE) RERESFINT
properties is as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHBT
Impairment of properties under development — FHEE )3 R B (275,212) -
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of BRIHFEME (RE)
completed properties for sale RERED] (142,420) 135
(417,632) 135
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BHE

TE_F-A=t1+—HIFE

Operating (loss)/profit

The Group’s operating (loss)/profit is arrived at after charging/

7. &

(#518) &

AEBEKE (BER) afgmng GtA)

(crediting): UTFEIERER !
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FHET
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments: &S T A4S » EIEE=EEE ¢
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE. #FrehEMEs 52,047 60,619
Retirement benefit costs IRIRAER A 3,781 2,603
Termination benefit costs el =l 5,840 -
Total staff costs B TR AR48%E 61,668 63,222
Less: Amount capitalised and included in B BEXRERBEEIA
cost of inventories sold BEEFEENAZ 5 (12,561) (21,362)
Staff costs included in selling and marketing ST ASHE RETHAS  1THKR
expenses, administrative and other Ha& S U R EMEES
operating expenses and other expenses ZBTRA 49,107 41,860
Auditors’ remuneration TZEREME & 1,550 1,980
Cost of inventories sold BEFEMA 205,389 162,420
Cost of properties sold EEYERZ 1,323,279 1,859,441
Outgoings in respect of investment BEHE B EMMEE Y
properties arising from rental-earning CEYES H
investment properties 1,182 1,194
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERSREBEZITE
ST 8,205 10,111
Less: Amount capitalised and included B BBEXRERBEETA
in cost of inventories sold for printing EDRIZEFRBEE
business FEERAZ &8 (3,823) (5,945)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREBEZITE
equipment included in selling and Gt AHEREHERASZ UK
marketing expenses and administrative THRHMEER)
and other operating expenses 4,382 4,166
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234

Operating (loss)/profit (Continued) 7.

The Group’s operating (loss)/profit/is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (Continued)

e (B518) & ()

AEBEKE (BER) amf&mng Gt A)
DR &IERIEN : ()

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TET

Impairment of inventories FERE - 1,158

Reversal of impairment of accounts O EWARTURE

receivable - (84)

Write-down of other non-current assets HIERENE 2= Z MUR 6,876 660

Impairment of prepayment TEFRIBZRE - 1,185
Lease payments not included in the Tt AMEEGTEZ

measurement of lease liabilities GEN=ADEN 733 877

Government subsidies* BT Bh (113) (1,987)

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the subsidies.

* A Mz SR ERFNHEETE -

Finance costs 8. MEEH
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET TET
Interest on bank borrowings WITERZFE 4,675 8,813
Interest on lease liabilities HESBRZFE 106 134
Interest arising from revenue contracts (note) HIWASHNESEZFIE (Ffizh) 18,298 42,296
Total interest ISR 23,079 51,243

Less: Interest capitalised in properties under & : BSR4 > BEAREF S

development (21,048) (48,625)
Total finance costs U E R4ERE 2,031 2,618

Note: Interest arising from revenue contracts represented interest expenses
accreted on the contract liabilities (note 25) which contain a significant
financing component.

A capitalisation rate of 2.1% (2021: 2.1%) has been applied to

the expenditure on the qualifying assets for the year ended 31
March 2022.
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9. Income tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has
sufficient tax losses to offset the estimated assessable profits for
the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: nil).

The PRC corporate income tax for the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC is charged at 25% (2021: 25%) of the assessable profits,
and taxable income derived from the PRC by subsidiaries located
outside the territory is charged at the PRC withholding corporate
income tax rate of 10% (2021: 10%).

The LAT for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% (2021: 30% to 60%)
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including cost of land
and all property development expenditures.

FRISHA

MR AERZRFBEREBRERE—"T
T TE-ZA=+—HLEFEZEFHERR
wA > B EMREBISRAREER (CF
TFIE) e

AEBPENB AT 2 PESERESRD
FEERIRHE 2 25% (Z B - —4 : 25%)
sHE > MRt EIE SN B A B E A 2 R
MU AT P ETEIN BN E10%
TET—F 10%) 27 o

AEBFTENBART 2 L MIBERDHL
HEERIEE (BDEEYENFTSEIERA
MRS BHE 3 B2 K Fir 78 4 22 B 3%
) BN FI0%ECON(ZE - —F
30% ZE 60%) BI REFMR UL o

2022 2021
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHT
Current — Hong Kong BIER — &E
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years — i@fFEEBERE, (FBEEEE) 15 (4,300)
Current — Mainland China BPHR — FRERRRE
Corporate income tax EFRER
Charge for the year FEZH 46,867 144,326
Overprovision in prior years (note) B EEBEEEE () (42,244) =
LAT T HIE(ER
Charge for the year FELH 25,255 88,705
Deferred tax (note 28) IEIEFRIE (MI5E28) (295,980) (221,218)
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FEMIE (%) ZH4EEE (266,087) 7,513

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, the directors of the Company
reviewed the subsidiaries’ tax provision of HK$42,244,000 (2021:
HK$40,598,000) for disposal of a discontinued operation in prior years, and
they are of the opinion that the likelihood of the tax provision had become
remote and therefore decided to release those tax provision of
HK$42,244,000 to profit and loss.

Mzt BE_TS__F=H=1+—HIEE » xAF
EEERNEAEERE—BERIEERAH
42,244,000387T (ZZ = —4 : 40,598,000387T)
WK B ABRIBERE > HERABERERE
A REMER K > BARAENRBHRBIREZEAH
42,244,000 BT IBEHE ©
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9. Income tax (Continued) 9. FRiFM (&)
A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to (loss)/ BRARRAKNAT RERE DU B ASFTE
profit before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which SEEE 2 EEMRMXTE G IR AT (B
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to 1B) wF 2 RIE (KR) L R ERR
the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: KB 2 RIERS 2 HERWT ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT T#ET
(Loss)/profit before tax AT (B518) m A (536,080) 10,496
Tax at the rate of 25% (2021: 25%) B 25% (ZE-—%F !
25%) st E 218 (134,020) 2,624
Effect of different tax rates in different TREEEEARRE &
jurisdictions 5,817 5,535
LAT for the year NEE 2 LIB(ER 25,255 88,705
Release of deferred LAT liabilities FRBRIEIE T B ER & E (186,798) (66,528)
Tax effect of LAT deductible for corporate AT BIR IO R Tt
income tax IBERZRETE (6,314) (22,176)
Tax effect of deferred LAT deductible AR EFTSAR H R R IE 3t
for corporate income tax BER NI E 46,700 16,632
Expenses not deductible for tax ENCIERE 5 16,808 5,479
Income not subject to tax BERBZ WA (2,310) (4,763)
Net effect of tax losses and other temporary KRR ISEIELEMEEER
differences not recognised and utilisation of LB A BT RkFERIRTS R
previously unrecognised tax losses and REMEEERZ FRE
other temporary differences 11,004 (13,695)
Reversal of tax provision recognised in MEAFFEHEBKILET
the current year related to the disposal of MR A~ EE RS
a discontinued operation in prior year RIEREE RO (42,244) =
Adjustments in respect of current tax of FIBFEEEIRITRIE 2 A
previous years 15 (4,300)
Tax (credit)/charge at the Group’s BAEBBERREFTHEZ
effective rate MIE (E%) S H (266,087) 7,513
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10. EEMER AR ESHMES

10. Directors’ remuneration and five highest
paid employees
E55i=E

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

R4 EARA ~ B R EMEBIFE383(1)(@)
O~ O KRMOERAT (KEESFAER)
ROIE 2 W BENAFRNESMEWNT -

follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T8t
Fees we 916 968
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@ WIIFMITES

AERNBMNFEILIIFATESZHAE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows: wr:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Mr. Ho Man faIgseE 276 276
Mr. Xu Jianfeng (note (i) RS A (EE () 22 -
Mr. Wang Zhengjun (note (i)) FEBEKE (MI5E() 22 =
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (note (ii)) MRS A (BFSE (i) 226 276
Mr. Hung Kin Man (note (i) FRIBR L (MIEE (i) 226 276
772 828

Notes:

M5z

0] Appointed with effect from 26 January 2022 U ZEE_F_—F AT BREN

(ii) Resigned with effect from 26 January 2022 (i HER—F__F A+ BREXN

RAER > BEEMBULIFNTES
ZHMME (T2 —F 18] -

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2021:
nil).
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10. Directors’ remuneration and five highest 10. ESE R AR EEFHMES

paid employees (Continued) (#8)
Directors’ remuneration (Continued) EEME (BB)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
o RUR
e BMEF  BRARGHEIER e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER FET
2022 BT
Executive directors: WTEE .
Ms. Zeng Zhu (note (i) SR (L () 144 = - 144
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet BT - - - -
Mr. Li Qing (note (ii) =554 (5 i) - - - -
144 - - 144
2021 g
Executive directors: HITESE .
Mr. Li Qing FERE 70 - - 70
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet BelF T 70 - - 70
140 - - 140
Notes: HfeE -
() Appointed with effect from 26 August 2021 0  BERZFTFNATTABERENR
(i) Resigned with effect from 2 April 2022 @  BERTR-FNATHEEXN
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RAEERN > TRESHRXAFTHRE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2021: ERMer 2 (CEZ—F 1 8]) °
nil).
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10. Directors’ remuneration and five highest
paid employees (Continued)

Five highest paid employees

None of the five highest paid employees during the year were
directors (2021: nil) as set out in above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the five highest paid employees who
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

10. ESE R AR EEFHMES

(&)
hExEHMES

RAEFR > AR RSHHMEES  BE—
B(ZEZ—F 8 REF (W LA
#) - MR RBEFTIFRSTHAERZ
IEREHMEESNFERNZMEFENT

follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Salaries e 6,321 6,455
Pension scheme contributions IRIRETEHRR 102 102
6,423 6,557

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

MER THRETHIFESTRIFEETH
ANBZ =B EEAZNT

as follows:
Number of employees
EEAE

2022 2021
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = ZE 1,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 787t 1,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 B 7t E 2,500,000 B 7T 1 1
5 B
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11.

12.

240

Dividends

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: nil). No
interim dividend was declared during the year (2021: nil).

(Loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share (2021: earnings per
share) is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$269,993,000 (2021: profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$2,983,000) and the number of ordinary shares of
5,779,196,660 (2021: 5,779,196,660) in issue during the year.

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is equal to the basic (loss)/

earnings per share since there were no dilutive potential shares in
issue during both years.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

13. 1% ~ BRE K=

Owned assets Right-of-use assets
BEEE fEmigEE
Furniture and
fixtures and
Buildings ~ Leasehold Plant and office Motor Leasehold Motor
inthe PRC improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Sub-total and Buildings vehicles Sub-total Total
fAR%E
NRHAZE
HERT HEMERE  EERBE Ei A& it HEELH i & ot} st &t
HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$'000
Thrn Thn Thn Tin Thn Thn Thn Thn Tin Tin Tin
Cost: e
At1 April 2020 RIZZFEMA-H 31,063 1,391 116,575 16,683 3431 169,143 3,051 4678 1,460 9,189 178,332
Additons 120 610 - 1282 683 85 2610 - 3024 - 3024 5,634
Disposals/wten off HE/H8 (276) - (39,603 379 679) (40,987) - - - - (40937)
Change in exchange rates Exgy - - - 3 17 20 - 123 - 123 143
At31 March 2021 and 1 Aprl 2021 RZB-—E=p=+-H
*Z3Z-EMmA-A 31,397 1,391 78204 16,990 2,854 13083 3,051 7,825 1,460 12,33 143,172
Addtions #m 217 - 512 13 = 94 = = = = 94
Disposals/iten off HE /M - - (35,086) (4,309 - 403%) - (1,564 678) 0212 (82,637)
Change in exchange rates Exgy - - - - 1l 1l - - - - 1l
At 31 March 2022 RZB-ZE=A=+-H 31,674 1,391 42630 12816 2,865 91,376 3,051 6,261 8 10094 101,470
Accumulated depreciation ZRINE:
At1 April 2020 R-E-EEMA-H 19,062 539 98716 14,686 2691 136,604 118 1670 3% 2144 137,838
Charge for the year KEERH 1,59 278 43% 1,163 293 7,16 118 1877 400 2,3% 10,111
Disposals/writen off HE /Wi 213 - (35,563) 879 679) (36,824) - - - - (36,824)
Change n exchange rate Exgy - - - 2 6 8 - kY - % i
At31 March 2021 and 1 Aprl 2021 B -—E=F=1-H
k=3_-%MmA-A 20445 817 67,559 16,462 2311 106,594 2% 3,586 75 4578 1,12
Charge for the year REESH 1512 218 308 946 258 6079 118 172 %7 212 8205
Disposals/witen off HE /M = = (35,184) (4304 - (39,488) - (1,199) (665) (1,758) (#1,26)
Change in exchange rate Exgy = - - - 7 7 - - - - 7
At 31 March 2022 R-E-ZE=RA=+-A 21,97 1,09 35,460 12,104 2576 73192 34 4114 478 4946 78138
Net carrying amount: IREPE
At 31 March 2022 RZB-ZE=A=1+-A 9717 29 7,170 m 289 18,184 2697 2147 304 5148 23332
At 31 March 2021 KRB —E=A=+-H 10,952 574 10,645 1528 543 2.8 2815 4239 04 7,158 32,000

Buildings in the PRC under owned assets and leasehold land
under right-of-use assets with net carrying amounts of
approximately HK$9,717,000 (2021: HK$10,952,000) and
approximately HK$2,697,000 (2021: HK$2,815,000),
respectively, have been pledged as security for the bank facilities
of the Group (note 26).

BEEEE T2 HEEBFREAEEEE
T2 BT HAREFE DI A499,717,000
BT (T —4 ©10,952,000787T0) K&
2,697,000 7 (Z=F - —4 : 2,815,000 /&
7t) » EFAEEEBIRTRE (FA KT
(ffizE 26) ©
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14.

242

Investment properties 14. IEYE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET TFET
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year ¥ 4E#] > BREE 442,045 434,440
Changes in fair value NEEED) (40,721) (3,145)
Exchange realignment PE R EE 5,393 10,750
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZEREE 406,717 442,045

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying value of approximately HK$275,000,000 (2021:
HK$306,000,000) were pledged to secure bank facilities granted
to the Group (note 26).

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties was Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2021: nil).

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2022 by an independent professional valuer, Graval Consulting
Limited, who holds recognised relevant professional qualifications
and has recent experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. For all investment properties, their
current use equates to the highest and best use.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / A SEEDER A A
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14. Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)

The Group’s management reviews the valuations performed by
the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes and
reports to the directors of the Company. Discussions of the
valuation processes and results are held between the
management and valuer at least once every six months, in line
with the Group’s interim and annual reporting processes. The
management:

— verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
reports;

— assesses property valuation movements when compared
to the prior period valuation reports; and

— holds discussions with the independent valuer.
Valuation techniques

Fair value of completed commercial or office properties in Hong
Kong and Mainland China is generally derived using the income
capitalisation method and direct comparison method, wherever
appropriate. The income capitalisation method is based on
capitalisation of the net income and the reversionary income
potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are
derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to valuers’ view of recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. The direct
comparison method is based on market comparable transactions
available in the market and adjustments of various factors would
be made between the subject properties and comparable
properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

14, K£EYE (@)

KEE 2 HEBRRE (B)

AEEZEEEARITHHRS TIFME
RBIUAEMELZGE ) TREARTZ
EERS - BEEERELSNER—RHA
HEMNREERBERER  HAEE Y
THNEEREEF—H - EEETE :

— BREBIGERSZMEIZNE

— SRBEHBZEERSIEHEER - 5F
HEMEZES ; &

— BB (HEEETR o
&E7D=*

BB RPERENENBEIMAEYFE
ZATFEBEFRBBRABRCEREREL
BOE (NBER) EE - WABSLETHRA
GENERBCLERRWA TR RBIH
mEZBERABRL > MEBENELRE
EEE R UHER S 2 DT REEE R
BEEERZERNPEHERELRE -
BEFffRAZERHERZT MIRHYE R
Ht P BB E 2 fAE~A2E - B
BUEBGEDERTBARIRZHSEIE
EEERRZIET > TR ERPIEL
BYENESARFLRE

RAEER > HEHELEETES o
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14. Investment properties (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to

determine fair value

14. KEYE (@)

AUEEAFEZEATAHE
AR

Relationship
Significant of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Range or inputs to fair
techniques inputs weighted average fair value
ERFHRE RABREARE
&{ER % BARE SESNETL HATENRR
2022 2021
Commercial properties Income Capitalisation 2.5% 2.7% Note i
in Hong Kong capitalisation rate BifzEi
REBNERYZE method BAEXR
Y ON=v:N w73
Unit market HK$120 HK$110 Note i
rent per month to HK$230 to HK$270 (G
per square foot 1208 TE 110BTE
SRBUMGHEE 230 87T 27087
(BEHER)
Direct Average unit HK$53,000 HK$52,000 Note i
comparison market price to to = i
method per square foot HK$100,000 HK$118,500
BRLEE THEATHER  5300087TE  52,0008TE
(BERER) 100,000 7T 118,500 87T
Commercial or Income Capitalisation 4.0% 3.9% Note i
office properties in capitalisation rate to 4.5% t0 4.5% Bk
Mainland China method BREE  4.0%E45% 3.9%E4.5%
NEEINGEFEE BWABRIE
HE/NEXYES
Unit market HK$60 HK$60 Note i
rent per month to HK$195 to HK$190 Bfski
per square meter 60ETE 60BTE
SRBimEHEE 195787 19087t
(BEFAK)
Direct Average unit HK$14,000 HK$14,500 Note i
comparison market price to to B
method  per square meter HK$55,000 HK$58,000
EEILEE PHEATEREE  1400087TE  145008B7TE
(BTAHK) 55,000 7T 58,000 7T
Notes: B 5E -

The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value

ii The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value

i The higher the unit market price, the higher the fair value
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15. Leases 15. A&

The Group as a lessee FEEEAEBAA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings and RNREB AR FET A ERNZEIEF
motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum payments were EABHBEEMNHEESH - BiRAIfEH—=X
made upfront to acquire the leased land in the PRC from the MR URETWEMRNTIENEAE -
owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments i FAERAS0E » MiBEZE T MBEER
will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of 18R BAZHEE ST ERIFNIE - BFFE
buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, ENEHEEA2E5F > MAEMNHERE
while motor vehicles generally have lease terms between 3 and 5 HEAIESF o —fikME » AEEAAEZA
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and EBDINN TEELEAEEEE o

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets (@)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are disclosed in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Lease liabilities (b)
The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are disclosed in note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c)
leases are as follows:

ERREE
FEBEREEENRAERFRE
BINBIN AR S M IRARMEE13 -
HE&R
FEEHERRNREERFNES
WRERGE M BRRMEE27

MEEN BRI T

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET BT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAaEN S 106 134

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (& A& EITER 2,126 2,395

Expense relating to short-term leases ~ EA5SHATA EA RIS 697 842
Expense relating to leases of BREEEERERRANRX

low-value assets 36 35

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 18z PSS RUIEAEZE 2,965 3,406
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15.

246

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting
of commercial properties and office properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The terms
of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was approximately HK$9,067,000
(2021: HK$10,773,000), details of which are included in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the Group had total undiscounted minimum
lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

15. 105 (&)

FEEEAEBEA (B)

(d) FEERESRHAZEREN RSN ESR
RUIEESS5 o

FEBEALES

REBRBESCEHELHEREANRS AR
FRERFENEEY X (R:E14) » 815
EMERMAEY)Z o MEBRN—REK
BEXZ M RESWREERNIBITHRE
HAGATE - AEBEANERBNWES WAL S
9,067,00078 75 (— & — — 4 : 10,773,000
BIT) 0 BREEEN RS I IRRMIEES ©

A _E_"F=B=1+—H > AEBRIRE
HHEAFFTIINA ] B E A SR EIEE
155 > RAREE BRI IRRERE N
FABZFEANR

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T8t

Within one year —FR 7,723 9,612
After one year but within two years —FERE 5,225 3,157
After two years but within three years MEE=F 2,991 903
After three years but within four years —FEENE 2,854 151
18,793 13,823
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

BHE

B HF=HA=1+—HLFE

16. Other non-current assets

16. HtIERSEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FAET
Tax indemnity upon sales of properties (note) $4E) 1% ~ MIEHE (M:E) 24,293 29,408
Others Hith 34 34
24,327 29,442
Note: Balance represents the tax indemnity from Chuang’s Consortium MIsE © AETEIEA R B EE YR RENHT BB A B M EWE
International Limited (“CCIL”) in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries in THBEBIRARAE (TS 2 RIEHE -
prior years. According to the sale and purchase agreement, CCIL, being the RIEEE RS > TTHE ((FABR) BreE
seller, shall indemnify the Group for profits tax liabilities arising from the HEAEERKENBARSEMIREGZ Y
subsequent sales of the properties acquired by the Group through the FMELEZNEBREBEREAEEURS
acquisition of subsidiaries with the maximum amount of HK$37,658,000. 37,658,00078 o 2 BB E S E o RWAFER »
During the year, a write down of approximately HK$5,115,000 (2021: T Uk [E1#R TER B R SRR 4V 5,115,00078 7T (=
HK$660,000) is recognised for the tax indemnity recoverable because of the T —14F 1 660,00087T) > THEHRIEREYZEN
decrease in the fair values of the respective properties. ANFERLD ©
As disclosed in note 31, the Group acquired GF Capital (Cayman) Limited MKIEESI I ER  AEER S _—FtA
and recognised non-current assets of approximately HK$1,761,000 on 21 —+—H U8B GF Capital (Cayman) Limited 3z 5
July 2021. At the end of the reporting period, the Group performed IERENBEEL 1,761,000 87T © REREHA
impairment assessment and a write-down of approximately HK$1,761,000 7 £ [ E 1T R E ST 0 35X A P9 B BT MU AV
is recognised during the year because of the decrease in the recoverable 1,761,000787T » L5 R BB EN A W EE
amounts of the respective assets. ZBRIVFTEY ©
. 4
17. Inventories 17. 78
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Raw materials =y 8,327 9,733
Work in progress &S 6,671 10,615
Finished goods SURY 3,963 3,387
18,961 23,735
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

18. Properties under development

18. P

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHE7T
Properties under development expected BN EREEABANTI R
to be completed within normal operating I [EIRIREEE 42
cycle and recovered:
Within one year after the end of the RIREAREB—FRN
reporting period 354,618 1,144,100
After one year after the end of the REIREHARE—FR
reporting period 100,625 598,608
455,243 1,742,708

The properties are expected to be completed within the normal
operating cycle and are classified under current assets. The
balance represents residential properties under development
situated in Sichuan Province, the PRC. During the year, an
impairment of properties under development of approximately
HK$275,212,000 (2021: nil) is recognised (note 6).

19. Completed properties for sale

The balance represents completed residential properties held for
sale situated in Sichuan Province, the PRC, and certain
residential villas held for sale situated in Hunan Province, the
PRC. During the year, due to the downturn in the property
market, an impairment of completed properties for sale in
Sichuan Province of approximately HK$142,420,000 (2021:
reversal of impairment of HK$135,000) is recognised (note 6).

248 Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B AS B D B R A 7

19.

ZYEEHBEN EREEBHRTT > 9
HEARNEE o S5FEANHTEID) 42
R ETYE - FABREREERYE
BIE# 275,212,000 875 (Z 2" —F &)
(FfzEL) ©

EME

EEEAURTFENI G Z2ERIHEET
ME > RURPBEPEEZETHEET
AEE o M EMEMIHZRR » FRERR
RO ENERIFEYEREY
142,420,0008 75 (Z 2 Z—F . BER[D
135,0007%87t) (HIE6) °

BRIRF
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

20. Accounts receivable/prepayments, other

20. FEURERTR TR(ITRIA « HAthFE
i thEZE

receivables and other assets UBRFR B E 1
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Accounts receivable FEWAR TR 53,407 52,314
Less: Impairment B ORE (320) (320)
53,087 51,994

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 180
days to its trade customers of the printing business. Rental
income is received in advance. Proceeds from the sale of
properties are received in advance or upon delivery of the
completed properties to customers. For customer with long-term
business relationship, a longer credit period may be granted.
Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable (mainly arising from
printing business) based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

FEBGETHIRNEBEZER0AE
180H ZEEH - HEW AT FASTULEL
HEYEFEMADRAWEENZNE
TIMEEZRFRE - HINABRRAX
BRAGNER > AIRTERNEEH &
WEBRRR ST S o

REBEHAR > BUERR(EZRBEEHIRIZE
#5) {IRE IR R AR RIZE R A2 2 RE
DI

2022 2021

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

FET TET

Within 30 days 30XA 21,588 16,866
31 to 60 days 31 260K 3,427 6,153
61 to 90 days 61 ZE 90K 8,293 12,926
Over 90 days B3 90 K 19,779 16,049
53,087 51,994

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECLs which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all accounts receivable. Impairment of accounts receivable is
calculated using the expected loss rates, which are based on
credit assessments on ageing of the accounts receivable, past
repayment history, subsequent settlement status, deposits
received, credit profile of the customers and on-going business
relationship with the relevant customers and adjusted for
forward-looking information affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the accounts receivable.

FEEXRBEBYH RS ERFIR[HE
FEETEBREERE  APTARIERR
EREAERBREE - BUERNRZAE
DEHERHBBERTIRENEET G B
TEMESE - RESENRE - EligE
EREERRMEERERFEETR
% ERRMBERFE > IRFERR
A B WERRBIBE D BV AT BE L B R E

o
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20. Accounts receivable/prepayments, other
receivables and other assets (Continued)

250

20. FEURERTR “FR(STRIA « HAthFE
e iRk B EL At 2 (48)

The movements in loss allowance is as follows: ESIEEE < EFUNT ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHET
At the beginning of the year =] 320 404
Write-back of impairment loss RERE 2 B = (84)
At the end of the year SRS 320 320

The Group’s accounts receivable in the amount of approximately
HK$1,261,000 (2021: HK$575,000) are held as collateral for
bank borrowings of the Group (note 26).

The following is an analysis of the prepayments, other receivables

NEFEAEL1,261,000/8T(ZE—F .
575,000787T) ZEWRNBIEARERE

HY$R1

TIERREVIEIR R (PEE26) o

BUF BIaMRIR » HEWEIRRMAREME

and other assets: B2
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M5k FHET T8t
Deposits and prepayments e NTETRIE i) 145,286 232,038
Cost of obtaining contracts ES &AL A (i) 2,282 12,969
Other receivables HinpEURERR (iii) 25,472 36,611
Prepaid value added taxes (“VAT")  Fa{J1g{EH: (MEEH)
and levies R#E 9,050 7,164
182,090 288,782
Notes: BfdEE

(i)

(i)

Balance mainly represented the prepayments and deposits paid to suppliers
for construction works of property development projects, procurement of
printing raw materials and the office rental deposits.

Cost of obtaining contracts represented the prepaid sales commission paid
in connection with the sales of properties. The Group has capitalised the
amounts paid and will charge them to the income statement when the
revenue from the related property sales is recognised and will be included in
selling and marketing expenses at that time. During the year ended 31
March 2022, sales commission of approximately HK$13,928,000 (2021:
HK$14,895,000) was charged to the consolidated income statement.

Other receivables mainly represent VAT recoverable, prepaid LAT and
deposits paid to the government authorities.

Impairment of other receivables is measured at either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since the initial recognition.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / A SEEDER A A

(i

(i)

BEITZENYEERBEEEZETE KRB
RIER A2 #4525 F (R I8 8 = TR TR Redg & MU
RFBHEERE -

IS AR ATa R E VXS I WFEHE R
% o AEBMERFZIMREBEBERL » WP

RERAHEMERARERERRPAR > B
Bt AHEREESH BHE_T-__F=H
=+—HIEEE > $HE{BE4913,928,0008 7T
(ZZ——% 114,895,000/ 7T) ENGE W
RKAAALR ©

L th FEUT AR R 3 E2 5 e U [B] 3 B 7R ~ TR (Y
MIREIR K S AT F BRI 232 o

HMBW IR ZBEZ 12E A FBREERES
BREHRAEERESE RYE0D
HESUIER T HIREAEERARIEM -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

21. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

21.

BRAFESFABRZEMEE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FHE7T

Corporate bonds listed in Hong Kong REBLHATAES 1,628 23,154
Corporate bonds listed outside Hong Kong R&EBIRIN EHATES - 19,368
1,628 42,522

The above investments in corporate bonds were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. During the
year, fair value loss of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss amounting to approximately HK$12,028,000 (2021: gain
of approximately HK$7,491,000) is recognised in profit or loss.

The corporate bonds held by the Group as at 31 March 2022
and 2021 were mainly issued by several listed companies which
engaged in property development related business in the PRC.
The fair values of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the fair values of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss may be
lower than the respective fair values as at the end of reporting
period due to the volatility of the bond market.

22. Restricted bank balances and cash and 22,

bank balances

LR ABESEZRE D EARATE
STABRZEMEE - £ ERNERRE
TR AFEF ARG EREEZ ATE
E5184912,028,000 80 (Z & —_—F | IX
##97,491,000787T) °

A— i — —
N e

I = =
FEEFHATES T BMETRPER
EYEEBENEES FHARET - &
ATER NIBR T SREEATET RS
SR TR R (ER 8 o

ERESHIERE  RREARBRAF
Bt ABDZEMEEATEANEBRNE
HEENREARNAFE -

SIRGIRITREEURT S RIE

PA

1T4ETF

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#HT TFBT

Restricted bank balances (note) ZIRGIIRTTAETF (MIEE) 14,934 29,128
Cash and bank balances: IRE IR TAETE

Cash at banks and in hand RITFEANFERE 48,647 76,138

Short-term deposits DHATERR 5,435 73,082

54,082 149,220

Note: In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations, proceeds from
the pre-sale of certain properties under development are required to be
deposited into designated bank accounts and restricted to be used in the
relevant project construction. Such restriction will be uplifted upon the
attainment of the relevant ownership certificates issued by the authorities.

MizE : RBAAMPEIEERG > REPETHEEYE
BIFRISRIBRF AR RITIRP R Z G5 18R
HERRER - ARRGIRKNESEREKE
PRMBIFT AR E & R0 o
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22.

23.

252

Restricted bank balances and cash and
bank balances (Continued)

Cash at banks eans interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The effective interest rates on short-term deposits
range from 0.01% to 1.35% (2021: 0.02% to 1.35%) per annum
and these deposits have maturities ranging from 1 day to 3
months (2021: 1 week to 3 months). The bank balances and
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

Majority of cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) are held in Mainland China and subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations
restrict capital remittance from the territory, other than through
normal dividend distribution. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Accounts payable
An ageing analysis of accounts payable at the end of the

reporting period based on the date of suppliers’ invoices is as
follows:

22.

23.

ZIRBIRITEFURRERIR
174 7F (@)

GERIBTHIRERIES HIRITERENZ
EFEBEEF S o fHER . BREFE
NF0.01%E1.35% (CE_-—4 :0.02%
£1.35%) > ZEFAREPEENF1HES
BE (CE-—% 1EAZE3@EA) - iR1745
EREAERREERTF BITREEAR
FRAYIRTT o

REBBUARE TARE)) sHENRER
IRTTAEF IR R EIRFERTA T2 HI 5 E e
TEBRBI o 2F B 1t BE 52 E H1% 5 R
ERELIRI > BB —RREDIKER
Sho ARBEFREBHRIBRAEMER » 2
> IR E AR 2 SNEEIRRE UK A
B EERMEEENRE  ~EBELES
BEREETINEERHFZRTRARER
MaHEMER -

FE(TRRTR

RREHR > BARFIZHEFEREH
25 ZEREDTWT

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Within 30 days 30K 110,059 95,289
31 to 60 days 31 & 60K 8,335 10,802
61 to 90 days 612 90K 19,695 16,304
Over 90 days BB o0k 23,459 62,435
161,548 184,830
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24. Accrued charges and other payables 24, FEtE AR EMEMERTR
The following is an analysis of the accrued charges and other MU TN AESTER R EMERNERRZ DM
payables:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Accrued staff costs, subcontracting costs  FEstE A ~ P EERAK
and other accruals HitpEst &R 6,019 11,332
Customer, tenant and other deposits =ZE AR EEMES 26,939 9,649
Construction costs payable related to BRI R ERRE R
investment properties 7,158 11,267
VAT and levies payable (ER R e (18R 2,049 10,888
Consideration payable for acquisition of WE—IBY) B RER
a property development business* FEIB - 39,432
Accrued contingent consideration (note 32) FEEFIIAE (FIEE32) - 7,725
Others Hith 10,397 16,781
52,562 107,074
On 1 August 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity interest of Jinjin * RIZE—NFENA—H > xEBERECHREE

25.

Investment Co., Limited and its subsidiaries, which is principally engaged in
development and sales of residential properties in Sichuan Province, the
PRC, as detailed in note 32 to the financial statements. As at 31 March
2021, the consideration payable for the acquisition amounted to
HK$39,432,000, and the accrued contingent consideration amounted to
HK$7,725,000. The aforesaid consideration payable for the acquisition and
accrued contingent consideration were fully settled during the year ended

31 March 2022.

BRABDKENBAT ZZEKE  HEEH
FEM) S REEEWEREREE BN
MBERRWAREE - R _—F=H
=+—H > EUWERES39,432,00087T
FEET VA B A 7,725,00038 7T o kit FE(TURES
REREARANBERGEE_Z 5=
=t+—HIEFERZIAEE o

Contract liabilities 25 A4y BaE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract NEEDRIU TEIWAMRRE S 5485
liabilities:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHBIT
Sale of printed products SHEENRIE & 2,418 6,342
Sale of properties THEY= 97,393 1,017,486
Total contract liabilities EHNEEEEE 99,811 1,023,828

As at 1 April 2020, the Group had recognised contract liabilities
related to sales of printed products of approximately
HK$6,965,000. The Group receives payments from customers
based on the billing schedule as established in contracts.

As at 1 April 2020, the Group had recognised contract liabilities
related to sales of properties of approximately HK$1,886,409,000.
The Group receives payments from customers based on the
payment schedule as established in contracts.

A—

ATECERFNA—H > AEBERIE
RETH & ENR E & 2 548 E47 6,965,000 78
oo AEBERBEENTRIINNTEEED
B UWETR ©

ATEEENR—H AEBERIE
RATHEYZE 2 5481847 1,886,409,000 78
oo AEBERBEENTRIINNTEEED

&P UER TR e
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25. Contract liabilities (Continued) 25.

The decrease in contract liabilities in both years was mainly due
to the revenue recognised in respective year in relation to
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period from
the sale of properties.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

GHEEE)

RMEEEZENEERIDEERRE
ERESHIRBHEMENGNE -
WA e

TRITAAR S BB RERHWA BEES
NEEAEREE D -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET BT
Revenue recognised that was included in ~ FLESEENRIE REYIZE ST AEL]
the contract liabilities balance at SHBEEEENEESIUA
the beginning of the year for sales
of printed products and properties 1,023,828 1,595,009

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

R=ZB=T—R2EERGENEE KE

performance obligations (unsatisfied) as at 31 March are as 7)) 2R EBREENT .
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T8t
Amounts expected to be recognised FEHRRERR AU A Z 7008
as revenue:
Within one year —&FR 134,858 1,080,165
After one year —F% - -
Total R 134,858 1,080,165

For contracts that have an original practical expected duration of
one year or less, the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 is not
disclosed as permitted by the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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26. Bank borrowings 26. IR1TIEX
2022 2021
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
BIEHZE (%) BIEFIZE (%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Current e
Bank loans — secured RTED — AIEE 1.99 to 5.74 1.88105.8
1.99%5.74 175,319 1.88%5.8 219,075
Maturity of the bank borrowings are RITEREHNRA HK$'000 HK$'000
analysed into: FT#ET FTAE7T
Within one year or on demand —FRHEENK 175,319 219,075
Notes: B 5E
(@) Certain bank facilities of the Group are secured by: (@) NEEETRITRERUTZBERE .

(i) the pledge of the Group’s right-of-use assets amounting to
approximately HK$2,697,000 (2021: HK$2,815,000);

(ii) the pledge of the Group’s buildings amounting to approximately
HK$9,717,000 (2021: HK$10,952,000);

(iii) the pledge of the Group’s investment properties amounting to
approximately HK$275,000,000 (2021: HK$306,000,000) and
assignment of rental income; and

(iv) the pledge of the Group’s accounts receivable amounting to
approximately HK$1,261,000 (2021: HK$575,000).

(i)

(i)

(iv)

REE 2 FEREEEX2,697,000% T
(ZE=—% : 2,815,000 7T) ZIEIF ;

SEBZIEFL,717,0008 T (ZF
——%F 110,952,000587T) Z K ;

A EE B 2 % E W) 2 49275,000,000 78 7T
(Z= ——4 : 306,000,000 75) &7
SMAZ BB IR &

NEEE 2 FEWARFRAY 1,261,000 8 7t (=
T £ 575,000 7T) ZHKH o
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26.

256

Bank borrowings (Continued) 26. IRITIE (4B)
As further explained in note 38 to the consolidated financial iR PR R MIZE S8 FTiE— T fifE » &8
statements, due to the adoption of HK Interpretation 5 R E B2 BEsSE T EREXZZ2Y
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the — BANBHBHERENEN Z BEE
Borrower of a Term Loan That Contains a Repayment on HoE o RZE__F=H=1+—H &K
Demand Clause, the Group’s bank loans with the aggregate EBRHAERNERENBEX ZHBEEHN A
amount of approximately HK$175,319,000 (2021: 175,319,000 t( = & = — £
HK$219,075,000) as at 31 March 2022, containing a repayment 219,075,000/ 7t) SR1ITERBE DA R H
on demand clause, have been classified as current liabilities. For BE - Ltlohms > LERITEFE
the purpose of the above analysis, these bank loans are included stABNERSTBIRITER » WO AR—%E
within current interest-bearing bank loans and analysed into bank NIIREREEZIRITEN - ZBS(FE[iZ
loans repayable within one year or on demand. Ignoring the effect BEREBIEN 2 ERIBERTERZE
of any repayment on demand clause and based on the maturity HAHARR » ARASRITIER B EEWT -
terms of the bank borrowings, the amounts repayable in respect
of the bank borrowings are as follows:
In the third
In the to fifth
Within second years, Beyond
one year year inclusive five years Total
B=FZE
FRE(EF
—ER FTF HERMF) HBRARE =5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET TET
As at 31 March 2022 RZIBZZHF
=A=+-8
Bank loans RTE 45,639 17,320 112,360 = 175,319
As at 31 March 2021 RZEZ—&
=B=+—H
Bank loans RITEMN 87,075 16,000 116,000 - 219,075
Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B AS B D B R A 7
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27. Lease liabilities 27. lHE&E

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during HEEENREERERNEEUNT -
the year are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Carrying amount at beginning of the year REYZEREE 4,869 3,933
New leases RS - 3,024
Accretion of interest recognised during FERESRAIA B IZ
the year 106 134
Payments NES (2,054) (2,300)
Lease modification HEEST (409) -
Exchange realignment PE R AT 22 78
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZEREE 2,534 4,869
Analysed into: DA -
Current portion mEnEs 1,434 2,195
Non-current portion JERENEL D 1,100 2,674
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to HEBEIADMEER GRS SRR
the consolidated financial statements. 538 ¢
28. Deferred tax 28. IRIEFRIH
The movements of net deferred tax liabilities of the Group are as AREBIRERIBSEFREZEHU T !
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET F#ET
At beginning of the year =] 333,887 520,660
Deferred tax credited to the income FERFFAWEER ZIELERIE
statement during the year (note 9) (fg5E9) (295,980) (221,218)
Exchange realignment PE R 8,506 34,445
At end of the year REAL 46,413 333,887
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28. Deferred tax (Continued) 28. IRIEFRIA (48)

FRAEBELRNEREE(BE) 228
(RIBIER—MRBBE AR AR W -

The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) of the Group
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

Deferred
Deferred tax liabilities tax assets
RIERIERE BEREEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
investment
Fair value properties
adjustments and
arising from  Accelerated completed
business tax properties
combination  depreciation for sale Total Tax losses
REME
RERT
EBAtEL MERE FENREE
HATERE nE ZATERE #ags MR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET TET
At 1 April 2020 R_E_ZEMA—H 473,938 937 45,952 520,827 (167)
Charged/(credited) to income  ERIBRE,/ GTA)
statement during the year ~ IiZE & (219,674) (937) (774) (221,385) 167
Exchange realignment QAR 33,185 - 1,260 34,445 -
At 31 March 2021 and AZEZ—F=F
1 April 2021 = el =
“TT—FlmB—H 287,449 - 46,438 333,887 -
Credited to income FRF ARG R
statement during the year (288,981) - (6,999) (295,980) =
Exchange realignment fER iR 7,883 - 623 8,506 -
At 31 March 2022 RZE__&=H
Ea=l2 6,351 - 40,062 46,413 -

EANBRINERARIBITE 2 T = RIKiH B2
BAK1.816EABT(ZE - —% :1.973
BB NREBBRBHEEN R TGRS
WMRNERAELERBEE > JTHRAR
BR AN KA EB BRI o] B iR
AHBERFEEREEER - REEZ R
FARBERPEN140EBT(ZE
——HF 11,0608 A7) BRI EHRER
FANEm > RNEBZERETEE MBS o

Unused tax losses, net off with temporary differences in respect
of accelerated tax depreciation in the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$181.6 million (2021: HK$197.3 million) have
not been recognised as deferred tax assets in the consolidated
financial statements as it is not considered probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the tax losses and the
temporary differences can be utilised. The unused tax losses of
approximately HK$14.1 million (2021: HK$10.6 million) in the
PRC will expire within five years from the end of reporting period
and the remaining balances in Hong Kong have no expiry dates.
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28. Deferred tax (Continued) 28. IRIEIRIE (48)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% RIERRE T ZERERE > RNEREA AL
withholding tax, is levied on dividends declared to foreign MINE D EEINEEEE TR B B
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in M10% TEINI - BRAREB —ZEZ/N\F—
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January B—HREMEEAR _E2+E+_"H
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower =t+—HZBZERA - HREAMEAINET
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty HEEMBIEHEIERBEHE » BF]
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign BAREBENRE - AEBNBERAREXA
investors. The applicable rate of the Group is 5%. Deferred tax 5% o BN ETHEWEB A B RELRFITE
liabilities of approximately HK$0.4 million (2021: HK$0.4 million) B BEREBEE » ZERMNZBEIIRE
arising from withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of certain EZIRIERBEAEEN4I0EE T (CE_—
PRC subsidiaries have not been recognised totalled FI40EBT) AR ST _F=H4
approximately HK$7.1 million at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$7.4 —t+—HRGEHFRREDSLL710
million) in the consolidated financial statements as these earnings BAT(CE—F 1 7408ABTT) °
are expected to be reinvested.
29. Share capital 29. &7
2022 2021
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FAT THET
Authorised: ETE -
8,000,000,000 (2021: 8,000,000,000) 8,000,000,000f& (ZE_-—% :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 8,000,000,000 %)
SREEOC.10BITHZER 800,000 800,000
2,000,000,000 (2021: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000 8% (—Z & ——=% :
preference shares (note (i) 2,000,000,000 f%) B4ch%
(B (i) 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE :
5,779,196,660 (2021: 5,779,196,660) 5,779,196,660 48 (Z B - —£ :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 5,779,196,660 %)
SREEO.10BITHZER 577,920 577,920
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29. Share capital (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

29. fg7k (48)

RRBZRFEFEARINT ¢

follows:
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
BRITRHNHE iR7s
HK$’000
FHTT
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, E’:\_g_;ﬁiﬂﬁ H-
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 —=E-—F=H=+—H
—_—FmMB—Ak
_g__ﬁ B=+—H 5,779,196,660 577,920
Notes MisE -
(0] The preference shares rank in priority to the ordinary shares of the Company 0] KATBERERERERREFEZEEBE
as to dividend and return of capital. REIERG 7 s o

(i) The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
the annual general meeting held on 29 August 2012, which is valid and
effective for a term of ten years from the date of its adoption. Under the
Scheme, the directors may grant options to the eligible persons as defined
in the Scheme, inter alia, any directors, employees or business consultants
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company
under the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 29 August
2012. No options have been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

30. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
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FE__HF=H=+—HILFE

31. Acquisition of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group acquired a
subsidiary (namely GF Capital (Cayman) Limited) which and its
subsidiary (the “Acquired Entities”) are principally engaged in
provision of consultancy and asset management services.
Golden Full Asset Management Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary of GF Capital (Cayman) Limited) is a licensed
corporation under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance to carry out regulated activities Type 4 “Advising on
Securities” and Type 9 “Asset Management”. The primary reason
for the below acquisition was for the expansion of the Group’s
business and to increase returns to its shareholders.

31. WEE—RIMEBAE]

HE_S-_H#="B=+—HIEFE &
S EUEE RSB A BIGF Capital (Cayman)
Limited > Z A B RENB AR (TFTUEE
B FERERELARBESIERT
GF Capital (Cayman) Limited 2 2 &Mt B A
B EEEEEERLABAREE BES
KR EEBIETETSH 458 (MEHRMEER)
RFHE (BEEERE) TRERB 2 A
o EE RYIWEN EERRA T, AEAR
EEEFB I MRREIR

Percentage of

Date of registered Purchase
acquisition capital acquired consideration
Ffr U B 2 1
YR HA =N WEEHKE
HK$'000
TR
Business combination in: EBRAH
GF Capital (Cayman) Limited GF Capital (Cayman) Limited 21 July 2021 100% 2,800
T
+tB”+—H

The fair values of the assets and liabilities of the acquiree at date
of acquisition are as follows:

RSB BRREEANEEREEATE
LI

HK$’000
FHT
Non-current assets EREEE 1,761
Prepayment TEFIE 2
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 1,095
Accrued charges fEstER (58)
Identifiable net assets acquired by the Group AEEFFFWBEEAIEEFE 2,800
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: RSB EENIRES TR RS .
HK$’'000
FHBT
Cash consideration paid ENRENE (2,800)
Less: Cash and bank balances acquired B PTUNEEIR S M IR1TAE TR 1,095
Net cash outflow IREMH P RE (1,709)
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31.

32.

262

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The fair values of the prepayment and cash and cash equivalents
at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$2,000 and
HK$1,095,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$363,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in other expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

The Acquired Entities contributed HK$ Nil to the Group’s revenue
and made a loss of HK$972,000 for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 March 2022.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2021, the Group’s
revenue and loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,587 million and HK$270 million respectively. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had an acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2021, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

Contingent consideration

On 1 August 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
of Jinjin Investments Co., Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Jinjin
Group”), which is principally engaged in the development and
sale of residential properties in Sichuan Province, the PRC.
According to a sale and purchase agreement entered into
between the Group and the seller, the acquisition consideration
of HK$400,000,000 was satisfied by: (i) the allotment and
issuance of 662,162,483 ordinary shares of the Company and (i)
the payment of approximately HK$260,946,000.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B AS B D B R A 7

31.

32.

WaiE— B AT (48)

RUEHBRAMREURIRERIEEEE
Y2 NF{E D A2 2,000 7 75 K 1,095,000
BT ©

FEBFLUILW B FIRAE £ 5 A4 363,000
BT RFERH ERNGRE Wm R I 5
AHMF ©

RWERE _—_E - —F=HF=+—HH
BT ERARER WA BREETT
K %15 E548 972,000 78 7T ©

HEEER 2 - —FMNA—RET > &
EBPWAKRFEEER DRI 7315.87
BETK270ERBTT BEEREMHR
B3 WIFEAEBEEER — 2 - —FM
A—HREmRAERBERERHWAR
ICERIBIEIR » I BRMERARREZTEA -

SARRE

RIE2E—NFNB—H » AEBWEER
KREABRABKRENB AR (TEiRER)
2R EEER P EREE
TMEBENIBEE o BRIEAEEEE H5]
I E B WEE L& 400,000,000 7
TR RIS (B RBTEA
F]662,162,483% & & AR X)X 7 49
260,946,000 77T ©
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32. FALME (48)

32. Contingent consideration (Continued)

Profit target (the “Profit Target”) and delivery target (the “Delivery
Target”) were set out in the sale and purchase agreement. The
Profit Target related to the contribution of the aggregate
consolidated net profits by the Jinjin Group of not less than
RMB200,000,000 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company from the completion date (i.e. 1 August 2019) to 31
March 2021, while the Delivery Target related to the delivering of
the aggregate gross floor area of not less than 550,000 square
meters of the properties to the customers during the same
period. The Group agreed to make the conditional Pro Rata
Payment (as defined below) for up to HK$200,000,000 (the
“Conditional Payment”) to the seller in proportion to the fulfilment
of the Profit Target or of the Delivery Target, whichever was the
lower, during the Relevant Periods (as defined below).

In consideration for fulfilment of the Profit Target and the Delivery
Target, the Group should pay the Conditional Payment in
tranches (the “Pro Rata Payment”) for the periods from (i) the
completion date to 30 September 2019; (i) 1 October 2019 to 31
March 2020; (i) 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020; and (iv) 1
October 2020 to 31 March 2021 (altogether the “Relevant
Periods”).

The Pro Rata Payment should be determined by (i) the product of
the Conditional Payment and the accumulated completion
percentage of either the Profit Target or Delivery Target
(whichever was lower); and (i) deducting the applicable tax and
the Pro Rata Payment previously paid by the Group. In the event
that the Profit Target and/or the Delivery Target had not been
reached by 31 March 2021, the Group would have no obligation
to pay the remaining balance of the Conditional Payment that
had not been paid.

A EE (MaF B2 KT BZE (T2
BiE)) SR EEWmE © A BiEH k&R
EEEERHEHBEIZE—hENE—H)
E_E_—F=-HA=+—HAEAXRTEGES
B R E R A5 A B 1 200,000,000
TTZ EtiRaaF) - M BAZ W R E
—HEEERARNHEERERRELN DR
550,000 F F Kz - REBRBERAB
FAREE (E& R T30 #iaf BRI B
IEZ ML UABREEAEE) B8 A2
B % 200,000,00078 7t (T BIE 4R 2
BIEEREAER (EER T

amd B R R BEEEEN > AAER
BARUTHBE 2= MERGA (TZLE
B L ()TERBHEZZ—NFNA
=+H;HZF—NF+BE—BEZZZ
TFE=H=+—H; [[HiZZZFFHF—
HEZZZZEFAA=+H; kivy=ZZ
EE+H—HE_ZE_—F=HB=+—H
(478 TERAHARL) ©

¥ EE B B () B R T E F) B 2
RV EEZZ Rt B 2 tt (UBREES
) ZFE ; KR ()VORERRIERAERE
BIESZ 2RI ETE  Wiaf B2
B/ EXNBERR B —F=B=+—
HairEiER > ARAERRERTZTH
AT 2 BIEHTRERRE ©
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32.

33.

34.
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Contingent consideration (Continued)

For the purpose of determining the Profit Target, the Jinjin Group
had contributed accumulated net profits of approximately RMB8
million to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the period from the completion date up to 31 March 2021. The
aggregate gross floor area of the properties delivered to the
customers for the period from the completion date up to 31
March 2021 amounted to approximately 272,000 square meters.
Consequently, contingent consideration of approximately
HK$7,725,000 was accrued by the Group during the year ended
31 March 2021. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Group has paid the aforesaid accrued contingent consideration
amounted to approximately HK$7,725,000.

Commitments

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has no capital commitment
(2021: contracted for but not provided for an acquisition of an
entity of HK$2,800,000).

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2022, the Group provided financial
guarantees in respect of mortgage loans made by certain banks
to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties in Mainland
China, either directly provided to the banks or to the housing
provident fund management centre who arranged the bank
mortgages of approximately HK$1,368,549,000 (2021:
HK$1,818,175,000). Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
upon default in mortgage payments by these purchasers, the
Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled
but not limited to take over the legal titles and possession of the
related properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the
dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
issuance of real estate ownership certificates. The directors of
the Company consider that the fair value of the guarantees is not
significant and in the case of defaulted payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties will be sufficient to cover
the outstanding mortgage principals, the accrued interest and
penalty. Therefore, no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: nil) for these guarantees.
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MEEEMNBEEMS > £RERBTME
HEE - —F=-RA=+—H#BRAZ
EEZGREUBERREMBFTATOUAR
8o0E T B HBEE S - —4&F
—B=t—HEEREE RN £4EE
BEBLA272,000F 5K o H L » &
ERSE_S-_—4F=HA=+—HLEE
FESTIABAY 7,725,000 7T © IREEC
T _HF-H=+—HIEEE > xEEBD
SAF B R SARCE 7,725,000 8 7T ©

IR

RIE-__F=B=+—H > AEETE
BARAE(CS % B5I0EREE
U B —R9E 52 2,800,000 78 7T) ©

NAERE

R EBERAREMEHIFEEN > KT
T "F=H=+—H » AEERETIE
TRAERETHEAEYEE S IEHD
IR E IR A FSIERAY 1,368,549,000 74
7T (ZEZ—4£ :1,818,175,000/87T) * A
RNABRRARTHEAZHRITERZEE
NESEEROIRM o BIBEERBER
WZEE B ARESZ(ZIBHIE » AEEA
BERRTEEENE AN AERR
BAE > BRETHERIR > MAEE
B (BRER) ZERMYEN A EERE
KB o REBMRMRBHBEHBHARZ
BEREHRRESEHEERETE AL
KRBT EZRAERHNAFELAER
HARBESZIRIE > BREYEN A EIRFE
B EUEEMANZIBEAS - EBstFERK
Sim o At ZERBE_ZS"_"F=8
=+ —HIEFEZGEMBHRRTELZ
SHEFELERE (CSE - —F ) o
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35. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had non-
cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$3,024,000 and HK$3,024,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for property,
plant and equipment.

(b) The movements in liabilities from

5. AR ERERME

(a) EEIFRERS

BE_ T —S=H=1+—HIE
B> REBM®YE  BERXEZE
Eiﬁ%kﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁéalﬂﬁéiﬁ%&%ﬁ

& &9 B4 % 3,024,000 75 K
3,024,000 BT ©

(b) MEETHEEZEGEZEH

financing activities are as follows: MTF
Interest
payable
(included in
accrued
charges
and other Bank Lease
payables) borrowings liabilities
FE(HFI S
GoNi
B REHA
FEfTERTR) RITIEM HEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TERT TET
At 1 April 2020 RIZ-Z2FNA—H 3,076 373,127 3,933
Changes from financing cash flows FIZIR&HRSEH) (11,393 (154,957) (2,300)
New leases HMEHEE - - 3,024
Finance costs MEEH 8,813 - 134
Exchange realignment EREE - 905 78
At 31 March 2021 and A _E_—F=H=+—H
1 April 2021 EZEZ—FF—H 496 219,075 4,869
Changes from financing cash flows FiE IR < RS &) (4,760) (44,219) (2,054)
Reassessment HEER = = (409)
Finance costs BEEH 4,675 - 106
Exchange realignment B R = 463 22
At 31 March 2022 RZE-_F=B=1+—H 411 175,319 2,534
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35. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (Continued)

36. Related party transactions

266

(c) The total cash outflow for leases included

35. xR IR MEBRMNE (&)

(c) sSFARERERNVEERE

in the statement of cash flows is as TRHABREEUNT -
follows:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBIT
Within operating activities SRS 733 877
Within financing activities B EE) 2,054 2,300
2,787 3,177

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management is as follows:

36. BAE AR5

ESRHEMETBEERENSZFHMIIT -

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHE7T

Short-term benefits SHAfS A 4,413 4,502
Post-employment benefits BEE 1B EA 39 36
4,452 4,538

Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B AS B D B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022

BHE

=T F=H=+—HItFE

37. Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

37. BB SR T A

RREPRZER SR TEREENT !

2022 T
Financial assets ETRMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss Financial
- mandatorily assets at
measured amortised
as such cost Total
BATE
STABEZ
EMEE— ZEE Al A
st E STEN
AlbEE EMEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#ET FET
Accounts receivable FEUSERR - 53,087 53,087
Financial assets included in STATETTUE « HFEWERER
prepayments, other receivables REMEEZ CREE
and other assets = 32,812 32,812
Financial assets at fair value BAFESAETR
through profit or loss THEE 1,628 = 1,628
Restricted bank balances RIRFIRITHER - 14,934 14,934
Cash and bank balances Be LiRfTEE - 54,082 54,082
1,628 154,915 156,543
Financial liabilities Erd A=K
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
FeiESH PR 25
FTENERMEE
HK$°000
FHR
Accounts payable FE(TBRER 161,548
Financial liabilities included in accrued charges A ERREMENIRRZ
and other payables Eirtce =i 50,122
Bank borrowings RITERR 175,319
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,534
389,523
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37. Financial instruments by category
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(Continued)
2021

Financial assets

37. BEHANER T A (48)

—T_—f
EMEE

Financial assets

at fair value
through
profit or loss Financial
— mandatorily assets at
measured amortised
as such cost Total
BATE
STABTmZ
TREE— bog: 7= [N
RS2 STEM
A It4E TRIEE ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Accounts receivable FEUBRRR - 51,994 51,994
Financial assets included in STATEFRIE ~ EFEUERR
prepayments, other receivables REMBEZ EHEE
and other assets - 43,421 43,421
Financial assets at fair value BAFEABRZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 42,522 - 42,522
Restricted bank balances SIR&IIR{T4ETE - 29,128 29,128
Cash and bank balances BERIRTER - 149,220 149,220
42,522 273,763 316,285
Financial liabilities TRiaE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
TG AN AN
FrENEMAs
HK$’000
TFET
Accounts payable FE(TBRTR 184,830
Financial liabilities included in accrued charges StAMEST B R EMEMERR
and other payables FRIBE 95,782
Bank borrowings RITERR 219,075
Lease liabilities HESE 4,869
504,556
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. BA7E RS B IE B RE

policies
Financial risk factors

The activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial risks
including credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk. The overall risk
management programme of the Group focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance
department under policies approved by the board of directors
(the “Board”). The Board establishes principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas.

Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset (other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss) after deducting any
impairment provision in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks, credit exposures to customers and other debtors. The
Group has credit policies in place and exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, for the printing business, the Group has purchased
credit insurance from Export Credit Insurance Corporation on
certain overseas sales to compensate for losses from debts that
are not collectible. Rentals in respect of investment properties are
payable in advance by tenants in accordance with the lease
agreements.

M REEER

FEEEBARZEARZHHRAR > &
BEERR - RPBEAR - RERER
AFEMNERRRE - ERRERNERRE -
AERZERRREESEIERNELE
Az &5 > TR TN AERRM
BRIV BENFITE

MFHERREERVBEREESE (EF
TOMEZHRIT EFEIIEEER
REERR AR E RS EEER °

EE R

RAZEERBAEEMBHRRERMATIE
BEMEE BATEF ARG EMEE
BRON MPRMEMRER FER ZIREE ©

rEBZEERBREZHBITER R
REMEFZAEERRARM  £~EBIA
FERR @ THNEERIEZEERAR -

ERRERERZEERE  AEEEIE
EeEE—ENNIEEREFEE &
EEREMERREZR @ BAEKNRETS
DRI HARIE « IE5h - ZEBEFLENRI
EF 2 ETEMNEERAHOSEHRERE
BEEERE  UHEREREEEZE
Ko REVMEZHRERBEBHZRTRTX
HHEE -
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38.

270

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that rental deposits are
required from tenants prior to commencement of leases.
Proceeds from sales of properties are received in advanced or
upon delivery of the completed properties to customers. As at 31
March 2022, 40% (2021: 35%) of the Group’s total accounts
receivable were derived from the top five customers of printing
business. However, the Group concluded that the credit risk in
relation to its customers is not significant because they have no
history of default in recent years. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
considered that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced
and there is no significant concentration of risk on the accounts
receivable which consist of a large number of customers,
spreading across diverse geographical areas.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification. For listed debt investments, the Group also
monitors them by using external credit ratings. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. BAIE S I EEREE (48)
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued) B RESEE (48)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) o B R ERPEES (48)
At 31 March 2022 RZE__#=A=+—8H
Gross
carrying Amounts applied for various ECL impairment
amounts assessment approaches ECLs
IREAE RS ERNEESERETHAENEEE =818
General General General

approach  approach  approach  Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 approach
—WEE  —RAE WA
sRE  F-BE  B=RE SEhE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TER TEx TEr

Accounts receivable FEWER R 53,407 - - - 53,407 320
Financial assets included in stATETIE « EthElR

prepayments, other RaREMEEZ

receivables and other assets ~ £RIEE

— Normal® —Fg* 32,812 32,812 - - - -
Restricted bank balances SIRGIRTER 14,934 14,934 - - - -
Cash and bank balances* HERiRTEE" 54,082 54,082 - - - -

155,235 101,828 - - 53,407 320

Other item: HAmag .
Financial guarantee contracts ~ BAFFIEIREHA 1,368,549 1,368,549 - - = =
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38.
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

At 31 March 2021

MHBREEEEBFRER (&)

A5 E bR A &= ()
B = AR R E R (8)

RTE—F=A=1—H

Gross
carrying Amounts applied for various ECL impairment
amounts assessment approaches ECLs
AREARME EREERREEEBAETE A ENEE EEEE
General General General
approach  approach  approach  Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach
—fwAE  —MEE —WAE

FIEE
HK$'000  HK$'000

BB EZER  BEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET TET
Accounts receivable FEUBR R 52,314 - - - 52,314 320
Financial assets included in stATEATIE « EthfElR
prepayments, other RAREMEEZ
receivables and other assets ~ £RIZE
— Normal* —FE* 43,421 43,421 - - - -
Restricted bank balances ZIRFEIRTER 29,128 29,128 - - - -
Cash and bank balances* RERBTEE" 149,220 149,220 - - - -
274,083 221,769 - - 52,314 320
Other item: Hgs !
Financial guarantee contracts I EREX 1,818,175 1,818,175 - - - -

The credit quality of the financial assets included in cash and cash
equivalents, prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

The Group provides for credit losses against accounts receivable
to customers by geographical location and the lifetime expected
credit loss rate of 0.6% (2021: 0.6%) on the accounts receivable
balance.

The Group was not aware of any credit risk on other receivables
and deposits as their counterparties are corporations with proven
credit history. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
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FE__HF=H=+—HILFE

38. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
current obligations when they fall due. The Group measures and
monitors its liquidity through the maintenance of prudent ratios
regarding the liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities,
loans and commitments of the Group. The Group has put in
place a policy of obtaining long-term banking facilities to match
its long-term investments in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The
Group also maintains a conservative level of liquid assets to
ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any
unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. In addition, as at 31 March 2022, the Group
had standby banking facilities to provide contingency liquidity
support which amounted to approximately HK$276.0 million
(2021: HK$262.8 million). Details of the bank borrowings are
disclosed in note 26.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows including interest payment.

8. MHBEREEBFEREK (4)

MEBEBREE (8)
TBEE AR

mEERRRIIEAERRERTRA R
HZARETZAR  AEBTEERE
EBE s BRARKEZRBEEHEE
FEEZLEE UMHEREEERBES
AR o REBBEFI B BUER > BEURHPIRIT
EEUREEETBRPEAREZ REFR
B o b4 REBRREE EHFINRT
KF > BREBEEETHREEE TV
HWEREMENEAFERERZEAREE
KeBE RIEZZTHF=H=1+—H>
BRIRTEEHRBEN27T6EBT(ZE
T —1F 1262828 7T) INAREBIRME
SZRHESTIE c BRARTERZEB
IWEEFAHIEE 26 ©

TREZRSHASESOEIHBE ZRERE
BHRAEN DT EEBR L FRAEEZS
MEE - TRAVIZMEBERGHIRMRZ
REMBUE BB SAM -
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. BA#ZE S EIE B R EE (48)
policies (Continued)

274

Financial risk factors (Continued) B REREE (48)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE S A (4)
Within Inthe  Within the
one year or second third to
on demand year fifth years Total
—F A B=FE
FER FER FRERA “azE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET THET THET F#ET
2022 B F
Accounts payable [ET RN 161,548 - - 161,548
Accrued charges and other FESHE A R EMETERRR
payables 50,122 - - 50,122
Bank borrowings* RITER 184,123 = - 184,123
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,467 1,110 - 2,577
Financial guarantee contracts  BAFSHEREX 1,368,549 - - 1,368,549
1,765,809 1,110 - 1,766,919
Within In the Within the
one year or second third to
on demand year fifth years Total
—FAK F=F
FER BERN ERAFA “E%R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TET T8t
2021 B
Accounts payable FE(TARTX 184,830 = = 184,830
Accrued charges and other FEST & R R EL R (T BRRR
payables 95,782 - - 95,782
Bank borrowings* RITER 229,218 - = 229,218
Lease liabilities HEESER 2,286 1,609 1,110 5,005
Financial guarantee contracts ~ BAFSERE4Y 1,818,175 - - 1,818,175
2,330,291 1,609 1,110 2,333,010
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. BAi A IS TIE BEREE (48)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

* Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
HK$175,319,000 (2021: HK$219,075,000) containing a repayment on
demand clause giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at
any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these
amounts are classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors do
not believe that the bank loans will be called in their entirety within 12
months, and considered that the bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the maturity dates as set out in the respective agreements. This
evaluation was made considering: the financial position of the Group at the
date of approval of the financial statements and the fact that the Group has
made all previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the
terms of the bank borrowings, the contractual undiscounted cash flows
including interest payment for maturity terms as at 31 March 2022 are
approximately HK$58,297,000 (2021: HK$89,956,000) payable less than 12
months, approximately HK$18,224,000 (2021: HK$18,316,000) payable in
the second year, and approximately HK$107,602,000 (2021:
HK$120,946,000) payable within third to fifth years).

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the position of the Group may be
adversely affected by the changes in market interest rate. The
policy of the Group involves close monitoring of interest rate
movements and replacing and entering into new banking facilities
when favourable pricing opportunities arise.

The interest rate risk of the Group mainly arises from interest-
bearing bank deposits, bank borrowings and the bond
investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Bank deposits and bank borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The bond
investments at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors
monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis and will
consider hedging interest rate risks should the need arise.

As at 31 March 2022, if interest rates had been 1% (2021: 1%)
higher with all other variables held constant, the loss before tax of
the Group would have increased by approximately
HK$1,753,000 (2021: profit before tax decreased by
HK$2,191,000).

A7 R A &= ()

mEEERERE (8)
* s AT BRI TIER 2 FI849175,319,000/7 (=

T —4£ 219,075,000 7T) MARERER
B BFERABEGEFBERERENR
AL > RIE EABERER 0 ZERENEA Z
EREE] ©

BE LRBEEREBERGR EERABRRT
ERFER+EAANEL2HBE > BR A%
LIRITEN R LB BRI AR EE - It
EFELRZE | AEBPHER S HRE
B HARY B B 0 R A &S [ ILE AT B R BF U AR
FrARIBMIE © IRIRBITER G BT
S CF-A=1+—HBREMNEAHRZEHX
AL IR IR <& 7 2 89 2 HAHA R 4 49 4 58,297,000 78
7t (ZZ = —4% : 89,956,000 7t) B 121@A
A {8 518,224,000 Tw( = & — — &£
18,316,000/ 7T) BN E_EREE &
107,602,000 770 (ZZE = —4 : 120,946,000 7
TT) BRE=EFRERNEE -

RERERATENRRRE

MEREBIEAERR T EERAT ST
REFMRI TN EZRR - AEEZ
BRI RERERMNERED  BEBNZ
EBREBIREOaEmMIRITER ©

FAEBZHNXRBREEREFABZRITE
o RITERKRIIRBZAFESABRZ
TRBEER THESFKRE - IR
BZRTERKRIRITERS R EB AR
TREMNRER - HEEMNKFRBZES
RECHEERARATENREAR - %
| B ) 0 o ) R R o 1) R AR ART 1) R o
BR - EFEHEREAERZ AR &
BERF IS BEPARRER

AT _EZA=+—H BFELEH
1% (ZEEZ—F 1 1%) > MAE EMES
MR BIARERZ BRRAT SRR
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38.

276

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises on monetary assets and liabilities
being denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency, differences resulting from the translation of financial
statements into the presentation currency of the Group are not
taken into consideration.

The sales of printing products are invoiced mainly in United
States dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”) and RMB. The Group has
foreign currency sales, accounts receivable, other receivables
and cash and bank balances, which expose the Group to foreign
exchange risk. Exchange rate fluctuations have always been the
concern of the Group. The Group currently does not enter into
any derivative contracts to minimise the foreign currency risk
exposure. However, management will consider hedging
significant currency risk should the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollar against EUR, 1%
increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollar against USD, and
5% increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollar against RMB.
10%, 5% or 1% are the sensitivity rates used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represent management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 10%, 5% or 1% change in relevant foreign
currency rates. A 10%, 5% or 1% strengthening or weakening of
the Hong Kong dollar against the relevant foreign currencies will
give rise to a decrease or increase in profit before tax and the
impact is shown in the following table.
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. BAIE S I EEREE (48)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

MEEERRER (&)
FES I ()

Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax

PRIQ ARG, GRiL)

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Usb =7t (280) 827)

EUR G (16) (461)

RMB AR 548 830
Price risk B E

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from the change in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. To manage its price risk arising from
investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

As at 31 March 2022, if market price of the Group’s publicly-
traded investments increased/decreased by 5% with all other
variables held constant, the loss before tax of the Group would
have decreased/increased by approximately HK$81,000 (2021:
profit before tax increased/decreased by HK$2,126,000).

FEFEAARBFEBRER > AEMFA
ZREADDEASBAFEFABRZEH
BE -RABRATEFABDZZEREEZ
AT EEFMELE Z RER W@ NBERTE
mEWmRAES - HAEERRATES
ANEBmZ EHMEENKREFMELE ZERE
% REEOHEREHES - DHREM
GBI IRBAERFTE 2 RIRETT °

AT _E=A=+—H > GXEEA
HEBERENHEEM 5L 5% MAE
HMS SR > BAEEZ BRI
BER R 18 IN4981,0008 T (—Z
——%  BRRELEAIE 0, 2,126,000
BIT) °
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38.

278

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Capital risk management

The objectives of the Group for managing capital are to safeguard
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as a percentage of bank borrowings
over net asset value attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Bank borrowings are calculated as total bank
borrowings (including current and non-current bank borrowings
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position). Net
asset value attributable to owners of the Company represents
shareholders’ funds as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. As at 31 March 2022, the debt to equity ratio
was 26.9% (2021: 24.4%).
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39. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 39.

financial instruments

The disclosure of fair value measurements of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level in the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1)

° Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly (Level 2)

° Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
(Level 3)

See note 14 for disclosure of the investment properties that are
measured at fair value.

The Group had no Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments as at
31 March 2022 and 2021. The only Level 1 financial instrument
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 represented financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (note 21), the fair value of which is
based on quoted market prices. There was no transfer of
financial instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 or transfer of
financial instruments into or out of Level 3 for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

%EEIEZ’AEFE&’AEFEE

RIBETIAFEFESFRIEATETIRZ
TR TANATEFERENT !

s NEEBTSAHMREEENERZIR
B RERE) (F—FR)
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o  ERHATESEMS BEANAD

EERES RN A BB GET S
H=2H)
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2RMIEE14 ©
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39.

280

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (Continued)

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current price within the bid-ask spread which is the most
representative of the fair value in the given circumstances. The
fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with the generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The fair values of the non-current portion of bank borrowings
were estimated using the expected future payments discounted
at market interest rates. The carrying amounts of the non-current
portion of borrowings approximated their fair values since they
were floating interest rate borrowings.

The carrying amounts less any estimated credit adjustments for
financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one
year, including accounts receivable, financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables, pledged cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, cash and bank balances,
financial liabilities included in accounts payable, accrued charges
and other payables and the current portion of bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.
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40. Statement of financial position of the

=T F=H=+—HItFE

40. =R E)MFEARIR

company
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT Z #Em 718,113 917,090
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables A RIE K E A E U ER X 6,572 401
Cash and bank balances B RIE(T4ETF 18,756 73,247
Total current assets MENE EMEE 25,328 73,648
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEasE
Accrued charges and other payables FEst & B & E A FE T ER TR 1,028 4,670
Bank borrowings IRITE 132,000 160,000
Total current liabilities BB EEE 133,028 164,670
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mBaERE (107,700) (91,022)
NET ASSETS BHEFE 610,413 826,068
EQUITY g
Share capital B 7= 577,919 577,919
Reserves (note) fEfE (IEE) 32,494 248,149
TOTAL EQUITY 4% 610,413 826,068
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40.

282

Statement of financial position of the 40. s AT BAFEAR AR (BB)
company (Continued)
Note: s :
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AT 7 EEHRENT -
Share Other Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
BAR 1 HithfE s BARER Retisie “azE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT TR THT TR THET
At 1 April 2020 S ZERFMA—H 331,610 4,000 77,963 (192,715) 220,858
Profit for the year REEHF] - - - 27,291 27,291
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 BB —F=H=+—H
R_ZE_—Fm™A—H 331,610 4,000 77,963 (165,424) 248,149
Loss for the year KEERE = = = (215,655) (215,655)
At 31 March 2022 RIEZZF=HB=+—H 331,610 4,000 77,963 (881,079) 32,494

Pursuant to the special resolution approved by the shareholders
of the Company in the 2016 annual general meeting of the
Company, share premium, other reserve and contributed surplus
of the Company are available for distribution to ordinary
shareholders of the Company (after deduction of the
accumulated losses) provided that the Company will be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
immediately following the date on which any such distribution is
proposed to be paid.

Other reserve of the Company relates to contribution by the then
substantial shareholders of the Company who were also the then
holders of the preference shares. It represents the excess of the
face value of redeemable preference shares over the
consideration paid upon redemption in 2004.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
which were acquired by the Company at the date of a group
reorganisation in 1996 (the “Group Reorganisation”) and the
nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company for the
Group Reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

41. Principal subsidiaries 4. TEWB AT
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: EATIETEWBATIEBNT -
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share Percentage of
Name operation capital equity attributable to the Company Principal activities
sHeRaL BETLER/
B8 TS R FATIRMEERE AL IBEH
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ZS_TE=A=t-H ZZ"_—#=A=1-H
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Ef# et B i
BENENCIRHEE Mainland China RMB32,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Property development
ARAT (note MizE)
hEARE AFRH32,000,0007 MERE
Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou Mainland China US$12,500,000 - 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Midas Printing Limited (note) printed products
EELBREENEOS hEAE 12,500,000%7% ERIE RS RIHE
BIRAE ()
Midas Printing International Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000 - 100% - 100%  Trading of printed products
HiEERIERERAT & 7,007 HFEmES
BMRARESARBERAS  Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
(note HizE)
hEARE AFH39,000,00070 MERE
Magnus Concordia Development  Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
(Chengdu) Limited
RAER (5#) BRAT & 60,000,00077¢ ESE
Perfect Qutlook Limited British Virgin Islands/ USS$1 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong
EBEIES/ 127 ST
&
Delta Key Limited British Virgin Islands/ USS$1 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong
EREYHES/ 127 NERE
&8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e MFBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_Z__HF=A=+—HIFE

41. Principal subsidiaries (Continued) 4. TEWB AR (B)
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share Percentage of
Name operation capital equity attributable to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTLER/
&8 TS s AR FAFREEEADL TELH
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ZE$_TE=A=t-H ZZ"_—#=A=1-H
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B Faft B i
Ever Favour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% = 100%  Property investment
KMERRAE BE 187 MERE
EMNREHEBRAT Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Property development
(note i) (2021:
RMB50,000,000)
hEAE ABH35,000,00070 NEER
(B &
AR#50,000,0007T)
Lever Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 = 100% = 100%  Treasury investment
MEERIRERAT & 500,000787T BERE
Magnus Concordia Management  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Management services and
Limited treasury investment
MAEBEEERAT B 1570 EERBRERRE
Note: The entities are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign investment Wizt © ZEERELIINESBE XS SR -
enterprises.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in PRV EEFATESEARERFRNE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the BB EEETEL DN AATH B A
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Bl EENA > FYEMB A ZFIE
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion BEs | AN BRTE ©

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

42. Approval of the financial statements 42. HEBFEIRER
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue R RERESEeN S - _F,5H
by the board of directors on 29 June 2022. T+ h B RRIRRET 3 o
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FEVFEEH

Investment Properties KREME

The following list contains investment properties held by the Group as AEBER _E-_F=A=1+—HFE2EEY
at 31 March 2022. EHR T

Location Term Usage Group’s interest
2L FRAYHARR R& TEFEEF D
Shop B, Ground Floor, Medium lease Commercial 100%
Wuhu Residence, FREAFAAY [EES

No. 111 Wuhu Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

e

FUREATHE)

FORE 11158

FOME

T B &S

Shop D, Ground Floor, Medium lease Commercial 100%
Wuhu Residence, FREAFAAY [HES

No. 111 Wuhu Street,

Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

58

FLBEATH

FOME 11138

=

D

Shops 3, 4 and 5, Medium lease Commercial 100%
Ground Floor, FREATAAY (EES
Parkes Residence,

No. 101 Parkes Street,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

58

T1BE

BNt 101 58

10 e &F

HITREE3 ~ 4 550
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FEVFEEH

Investment Properties (Continued) REWE (8B)

Location Term Usage Group’s interest
Uk TH4AYHAMR A& EEEBER
6th Floor, Chengdu Digital Plaza, Medium lease Commercial 100%
No. 1 Renmin South Road Fourth FREAFAAY [EES

Portion, Wuhou District, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province,

the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”")

FREE A AR (THED)

vl &

REB TR EE

NG e
FREBEANSE Y 618

Units 01, 02, 03, 06 and 07, Medium lease Office 100%
38th Floor, R&F Yingkai Square, HHAFR A9 B
No. 16 Huaxia Road,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

the PRC

FREERE

BN RAE

EDIK165E

ENRIES

3801 = ~ 3802 = »

3803 = ~ 3806 = 5 3807 =
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FEVFEEH

Properties under development

The following list contains principal properties under development held
by the Group as at 31 March 2022.

BERPYIE

FEER T _F-RB=+—HFFZIEE
R E T o

Gross floor
Group’s area sq.m Estimated
Location Term Usage interest (Approximately) completion date
FEE BIEEERA
12k THAYHAIR A& WEEDE TR (8E49) flstif THE
Land lots C1-10 Yongyaju, Long lease Residential 100% 32,000 End of 2022
Zhonggang Shenhai Forest Project, RHTEA F= “ETTHFRK

the high-tech Industrial development zone
of the Yanluyu District of Wolong Lake in
Zigong City,

Sichuan Province,

the PRC

FREIE) &

BEheMKiTEXRER
EAREEE AR &

HE o RIBHRMIEE

C1-10 IR E
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Financial Summary

MEBE

Results e
For the year ended 31 March
HE-HA=1+—HILEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHBT FBT FBT FHET
REVENUE WA 1,587,349 2,140,562 310,404 214,380 222119
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  ZR4E[E (§518) (269,993) 2,983 (73,715) 2,541 14,696
Assets and liabilities SERE8E
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET T8 FBT FHBT
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 1,528,412 3,095,675 4,190,366 966,573 951,033
TOTAL LIABILITIES BE4aLE (875,870) (2,197,107) (3,348,510)  (339,940) (313,164
NET ASSETS BEEE 652,542 898,568 841,856 626,633 637,869
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY NATERFE NEML
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 652,542 898,568 841,856 626,633 637,869

288 Magnus Concordia Group Limited / B AS B D B R A 7



RIARBEIRIAAIRZ2O

MAGNUS CONCORDIA GROUP LTD



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	董事報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高層管理人員之履歷詳情
	企業管治報告書
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	主要物業資料
	財務概要
	封底



